
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 
 
Date: Wednesday, 28 September 2011 
Time: 
 

6.15 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2011. 

 
3. MERSEYSIDE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS  
 
 Report of the Director of Finance to follow 

 
4. AUDIT COMMISSION - MERSEYSIDE PENSION FUND ANNUAL 

GOVERNANCE REPORT (Pages 9 - 30) 
 
5. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
 
 Report of the Director of Finance to follow 

 
6. AUDIT COMMISSION - ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT (Pages 

31 - 74) 
 
7. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  
 
 Report of the Director of Finance to follow 

 

Public Document Pack



8. BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2012/2015 (Pages 75 - 82) 
 
9. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  
 
 Report of the Chief Internal Auditor to follow 

 
10. AUDIT COMMISSION - PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 83 - 120) 
 
11. UPDATE ON AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS RELATING TO LAW, 

HR AND ASSET MANAGEMENT  
 
 Report of the Director of Law HR and Asset Management to follow 

 
12. INSURANCE FUND ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 121 - 126) 
 
13. CORPORATE RISK AND INSURANCE  MANAGEMENT (Pages 127 

- 132) 
 
14. FRAUD PREVENTION (Pages 133 - 140) 
 
15. REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA)  - 

QUARTERLY UPDATE (Pages 141 - 144) 
 
16. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 

(PART 1)  
 
17. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC  
 
 The public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 

the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information. 
 
RECOMMENDATION – That in accordance with section 100A (4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following items of business, on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined by the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) to that Act. The public interest test has been applied and 
favours exclusion. 
 

18. CARE HOMES - CONTINGENCY PLANNING (Pages 145 - 160) 
 
19. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 

(PART 2)  
 
 
 



������������	
������
�
����������

�
�

�������	
����
���������
�

��������� ����������� 
������������������
�
� ������������ ���������	�

�� ��!������
"#�����	�
$�$����
�


%�&�����

�'����	�
(�)�����*��
�

�
�

�� �
��
�	�����
���������������
���������	�������
�
	���
�
��*�����+������,���������������+����������	�����-�����������-��.�������� ����������
��������������+������	� ���*������� ������!��������
� �/���
� ����������� ���*�����������
+�������	�+���0�
�
����������� &����� ��������� �� -�������� ��������� ��� �!����� ���*� 1� 2� (�������� ������
�������"�-��������3����������*������1�-������	�4�������/�����+�/������!��*-��	������
��������
�+����������������	���������.������������0�
�

�� �����
	��
�
���� $�������� �/� #�+
� 5"� ���� ������ ����!�*���� ���*������ ���� *������� �/� ����
*�����!����������6�����������0�
�
7������� ���*������ 66� �(�������� ������ ����� ����3�����
� ���� (�����*�$�������� �/� ������
����������4�����-���������������������-��������-��4���������/��������/�����*����������
��*���� �/� ������� ����� ���� ����� ������
� ����������� +���� -��������������0� 5��
��**�������������*�.���-��!��**���/�+��,�����������������,���������������������
-���� �/� -��������������
�+����� ���� ��������� ��� ���� ��������� ���!��� ����!� �8������
�
�������	� ��� ���� �8-���������� �/� ����$�-���*�����/�5������ ���9������� ����� ���� ����
-��4����� �:�� ��-���0� 9�� ��� 
���� ����
� �� ��������� ���4�	� �/� ������ �����������;�
-��/��*��������<(�������,���)������=�����/�����>�������������0�
�
���� (�����*� $�������� ��**������ ����� ����� ���� $���� ������*���� ���4���� 5�"��
�5�*�� ������*���� ���� "�����*���� ���*�� ���� ��+� ����� ��-������ �	� �� ��+�
���4���
����"�����������*�������*��������"�����*����������������������������������
����� �����--�����!�-��-��������!�����������*������������4��	�-������
�+����������
-��4���������--�������	�/�������--����-�����������-�����������!�����������!�������
/����+��!� ������ �������!�� /��*� ���� ���4���0� (�����*� �����!�*����� +���� ��+� ����!�
-��������+�����������/���	�-�������+�	�����+��,�+������������-�������-��4�������/�
����������*����-�����/��������4����+�����!���!�����������������������!�+���������!��
����?�����	�+�����!�0�
�
�����������
�
���� �� !�!���"#$%!����&�!���"��!#$'�������$�()�� *+��(,��-�.�� //*����0�
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



�(�� �� !�!�����! #����%/� !��&*�"�!����$!�*#"��#*�+!�*��&���%�!�	�+# ��	�*�#+���
.��$�!��0�

�
�1�� �� !� !��� !� $2�� �&� !��� ��""#!!��� .��  ++�*���� !�� !��� �$!�*#"� �#*�+!�*-�

�! &&�3#!�#$� ��		�  $�� !��� /*��#�%�� � .#$�!� ��".�*� &�*� !��� �#'$#&#+ $!�
#"/*���"�$!��  +�#����� #$� *�� !#�$� !�� /�*��$ �#� !#�$�  !�  � / *!#+%� *�4�
+� ���$'#$'�!#"��&�*���+ �� %!��*#!#��0�

�
�5�� �� !� !��� �$!�*#"� �#*�+!�*� .�� *�6%��!��� !�� /*��#���  � &%*!��*� %/� !�� !��

��".�*���#*�+!-�#$�*�� !#�$�!��!���+%**�$!�/��#!#�$�3#!���#*�+!�/ 4"�$!�0�
�

�� �77�����
������8��
��9�����
�
9����*�������	����������������	���������������	��������������������
����+���2��
�
��������� �� �� !� ��%$+#���*� ������� .��  //�#$!��� 8#+���� #*� &�*� !��� �$�%#$'�
"%$#+#/ ��4� *0�
�

=� ����
��7��:
�����	�(,�(;(,�<��
�
����$�������� �/� 7������� -��������� ���� -��.������ ���!��� /��� ����3���>
�+����� ����
�����������������	� ������������ ����� 
��������� �*������@� ��/����0�5������ ���� ����
����*-������+����������-������ ����-��.������������ ��-�������-��� ���������*���/�
!�������!����������������������!������4��������0� ��������+����-��.������������A10�*�
���������������������+������4��!����4��!��������,���������������
������-�����������
������+����������-��.�����������/�����/�A��06*� �������3����
�A�@01*� �������3���=�
����A��0�*�������=3���>0�
�
(�� ���-����� �����**����� /��*���*����� ��� ��������� ��� ���������������
� ��������/�
%8�����4�������������������������������/���)����������������������������+���!�������
�����/�����	�������*����-����������������	���������	0�(/����/��*��
�����������������������
!����������4����������������!��/�����0�
�
������������
�
���� �� !�!���.%�'�!�/*�=�+!#�$��.��*�'%� *�4�*��#�3��0�
�
�(�� �� !�  � "�*�� ��! #���� %/� !�� .�� /*���$!��� !�� !��� $�>!� "��!#$'� �&� !���

��""#!!���%/�$�!��� ��%"/!#�$��%$��*/#$$#$'�!���.%�'�!�/*�=�+!#�$�0�
�
�1�� �� !� #$&�*" !#�$� .�� /*��#���� !�� ��".�*�� �#*�+!� %/�$� !��� '* $!�

#"/�#+ !#�$���&�!�����$�%��(,��0�
�

>� ���
������������7���
��
�
���� ����/� (�������� �������� ��-������ ����� ��� ������ ��� ������� ��� �//����4�� ���-������
!�4�������� ���� /��/��� ��������	� ��?����*����
� ���� (�������� ������ �������� �/� ����
7������� $�-���*���� ��4��+��� *���!�*���� ���� ���4���� ����4��	� �����!�*�����
+���������������������+�������/������������������	���*�0�)��,�������+�������������/���
��4��+� ��� ���� ������ �/� ���,�� ������/���� ��� ���� ���-������ "��,� "�!������ ���� ���
��������� �	� (�������� ������ ��� ������������� +���� ����/� 9//������ ���� ����!���0� 5���

Page 2



��-���� ������/���� ���� �4�������� ���� -��/��*����� �/� ���� (�������� ������ �������� ����
��������� �������� �/� ���� ������� +��,� �������,��� �����!� ���� -������ �� �-���� 2� �����	�
����0�
�
5����-�����������������!��������+����������*���/���!��/�������/���������-�����!�-������
������/���� �����!� ���� ������ -������
� +����� ��?������ ������� �	� ��*����
� ���
��**������ �-��� �� ��*���� �/� ���*�� �/� ����� ���������!� ��!���!� ������ +��,� ���
��������� ��� ��*-������� +���� ���� �"�� %���!	� %//������	� ����*�B� 4������ ���
$�-���*����������!�*�������*�*�����!�������!�!��+����*���!������!�����!�����
������/�(�������������������!�����3����B�9������7������������!B������1�����C�D����9���
�������7�����!0�
�
������������� !�!���*�/�*!�.��$�!��0�
�

1� ���
�������������������
7����(,�,;(,����
�
��������/�(����������������-�������������(���������������������"�-����/�������3����
�
+����� +��� ��*��� ��� ��--���� ���� �����*���� �/� (�������� �������� �+������ ���� �������
&�4�������������*���������+������������������-��������������4���������?���	�����
�//����4������ �/� ���� ��!���������;�� �������� ��4����*���0� 9�� ���� ������ �/� +��,�
�������,��� �����!� ���� 	���
� ��� ���������� ����� ���� �������;�� ��������� ��������
��4����*���
� ���,� *���!�*���� -������� ���� ���-������ !�4�������
� ��,��� ��� ��
+����
� +���� ���?����� ���� !�������	� �//����4�0� ������!�� ������ +���� �������� �������
��!���!����
�+���������������������������
�����+��,��������,��������!�����	��������
������/����!�����������/��//����4����������������������������������������-������+�������
��4��	��������!��!���4����*���0�
�
��*����� �8-������� �������� ��� ��������� ��� �� ��*���� �/� ���4���� �-���/��� ��������
�
-����������	� ��� ��������� ��� ,�	� ����**���������� ��� ����$�-���*�����/� #�+
�5"�����
������ ����!�*���
� �������� ��� ���� ���-������ &�4�������� �!����� +����� ��?������
/������� �*-��4�*���� /��� ���� -������� ��� ��������0� ��*����� ����� �8-������� ������
�����������������$�-���*��������������4���-�������������	���*������,��+���!������
���-���� ��� (�������� ������ ��-����� ���� ������� �//����4�� �*-��*��������� �/�
����**����������*���0�
�
��������/�(�������������������/��*���������//��������������������**����������+��������
$�������� �/� #�+
� 5"� ���� ������ ����!�*���� ��� ������/	� -��!����� �!������ ��	�
����������!� ����**���������� ���� ���������������+����� ��� -��������� ��� ���� ��8��
*�����!� �/� ���� ��**������ ��� ��������� ��� ��	� ����������!� ,�	� �������� ���
����**���������0�
�
������������
�
���� �� !�!����$!�*$ ���%�#!��$$% ����/�*!�(,�,;(,���.��$�!��0�
�
�(�� �� !�  $� %/� !�� .�� /*���$!��� !�� !��� $�>!�"��!#$'� �&� !��� ��""#!!��-� !��

#$+�%���  $� �+!#�$� 7� $� !�� �$�%*�� !��� �&&�+!#��� #"/��"�$! !#�$� �&�  $4�
�%!�! $�#$'�2�4�*�+�""�$� !#�$�� *#�#$'�&*�"��$!�*$ ���%�#!�*�/�*!�0�

�
�
�
�

Page 3



@� ���7����
���	
�������	�����
������
�
����
�
���� $�������� �/� 7������� ��-������ �-��� -��!����� *���� �!������ ���� ��.����4��� /���
���-���������,����� ����������*���!�*�������� ����������-�������4���-*����� ��� ����
��*��!�*��������������!�����-�����/�������3����������-�������-������!���!�����+��,�
����������,����� ���������
�+��������!��������--���� ����"��,�����!�*����������!	�
���� *�������� ���� �������/��� *���!�*���� �/� ���� (��������� 7���0� ���� ����/�
%8�����4�� ������� 4��+�� �8-������� �	� ��*����� �-��� ���� �*-�������� �/�
�*-��4�*����� ��� ����"��,�����!�*����������!	� ���� /��� ������**������ ��� ��4�� ��
,�	���������������4���-*���0�
�
������������� !�!���*�/�*!�.��$�!��0�
�

6� �����������		�����

	�(,��;(,�(��
�
���� $�������� �/� 7������� ��-������ �-��� ���� ������ ��**������� /��� /��� ����3����
�
+����� +��� ������ �-��� �� ���,� ������ �--������ ��� ������ -������!� ��� ���� ���� ��� ����
����� �/� ������ ��������0� ���� ������ 7��� �/� A�>�
6��� ��������� �� ���������� ��� /����
��/������!� ���� ��+��--������ ��� ������E����� /�������	�+��,� ���� �� �F� ���������� ���
��/����� ��+��� ���������!� ������ -���G�*-��*��������� �/� (������������� 7���������
"�-�����!� ���������0� ������ +��� ����� �� /������� ���������� /��*� ����3����� ���� ����
$����������**����������� ��� ��/�������������!���!�+��,����+������������������������
��������**������
����� ��������**��*���� ������,� ��� ������� ������ /���0�5�� ��-������
����������������+��,�+����������,���������-�����/����������/���������/�!���������*������
��������+�����+���4�������
���-��������-���������*����������	-����/�!��������+����
��� ��	� �-���/��� ��?����*����� �/� ���� !����G-�	��!� ���	0� ���� -������� /��� /���
����3�����+���A���
��������!��������������/�A�6
���������������3�����/��0�
�
���� $�������� �������� ��**������ �-��� ���� /������� +����� ��/�������� ���� /���� ����
�������������������-������������-����+������������������$���*��������0�5��-��4�����
���������/���-����������+��������������������!�������������/�����������������������+����
+�����?������/��*������������;�����������*0�
�
������������� !�!����%�#!�����&�*�(,��;(,�(�.�� '*���0�
�

C� �����������		�����

	�(,��;(,�(����
�	
?	��
�7
�	����������
�
���� $�������� �/� 7������� ��-������ ����� ���� /���� ��� ��� ����!��� �	� ���� ������
��**�������/��������������/������������������/��������������*������/����������	�����
��������7����/��� ����	�������������������������*����������A1�
C11
�+�����+���
�����������+����������������4��/�������������������������9-�����������-����������������
�����������**������������
�����	�������*������1=���/�����������/����������������/�
���������,���������������������/���������!�����-������!�-������0�
�
������������� !�!���&�����&�@A,-BAA�&�*�!��� %�#!��&�!��� ++�%$!�� $��&#$ $+# ��
�! !�"�$!���&���*��4�#���7�$�#�$��%$��&�*�(,��;(,�(�.��$�!��0�
�

��� �����������		����7����
		��
7�����
�
���� $�������� �������� -��������� ���� ������ ��**������� ���!����� "�-���� ����3����
�
+�����-��4���������-������/���!���!�������+��,���� �����������0�5���������� ����,�	�
*����!�������������+��������������*���
���������!�������!��/�������������!���������,�

Page 4



����������� +���� ���� �*-��*��������� �/� ���� (������������� 7��������� "�-�����!�
���������� �(7"��0� E����� /��� ����	� +��,� +��� -��!������!� ��� -���� ���� +��,�
����������������-�����/��($��������������2�����������������4����������������*�����/�
5�!�+�	������%�!�������!����4������������*����%8��������5%��%�0�
�
5�� ��-������ ����� ����� ���� �������� +��� ���������!� ��� /����+� �-� *������� ��� ����
���C3����� <�������� 7����� (�������4�� �<7(�
� +���� ���� ������� ����� A��6,� +��� ����!�
����4�����/����+��!����������/����0�������������<7(�����4��	�/�!����/�������3�����+���
A�C,0�
�
������������� !�!����%�#!���""#��#�$�7*�'*������/�*!�.��$�!��0�
�

��� �����������		�����
7���	��
�
��������/�(����������������-�������������**��	��/���4��+���������,����	�����������
��**�������/�������-���������-�������1����������������������-��4��������������/�����
������������)�������������
���������!����������	�������������7���
����������?�����	�
��,�������*-��*������������**��������������������+�����������������������-����0�5��
��**������ ����� /��� ���� *��������!� -������ ����������� ���� ����� �����4��� ����� ����
����**���������� ���� ����� �*-��*�����0�5�+�4��
� ���-���� �� ��*���� �/� ��?������
/����4������� ������-��4����� /��� /���� ��-�����+������ ����$�-���*�����/�#�+
�5"�����
������ ����!�*���
� �4������� �/� �*-��*��������� �/� ���� ����**���������� +��� ����
-��4����� ���� ��� ��**������ ����� �� ��*���� �/� ����**���������� ���� �����
��-�������� +������� ��4��!� ����� �*-��*�����0� 5�+�4��
� ��� ���������� ���� ��+�
����� -��4����� ����� ���� ����**���������� +����� ��� �*-��*������ /����+��!� ����
��������������/���+� ��!��������� ��� ���� /������*��!�	�������� ����$���������/�#�+
�5"�
���� ������ ����!�*���� ���� ����� ��4����� ��� ���������� �� �	���*� ��� ������� �����
����**���������� *���� �	� ���� ������ ��**������� +���� ���-������ ��� ����
�*-��*�������������*��	�*�����0�(�����-����������**�����/��*���*����
���������/�
(����������������-��-��������-�����������-��������������8��*�����!��/�������**�����0�
�
������������
�
���� �� !�!���*�/�*!�.��$�!��0�
�
�(�� �� !�  ��� ��#�&� �&&#+�*�� .�� *�"#$���� !�� �$�%*�� !� !� !��4� *��/�$�� #$�  $�

 //*�/*# !�� $��!#"��4�" $$�*�!�� ���*�+�""�$� !#�$��" ���.4�!����%�#!�
��""#��#�$0�

�
�1�� �� !�  $� %/� !�� #$� *�� !#�$� !�� +�"/�# $+�� 3#!�� �%�#!� ��""#��#�$�

*�+�""�$� !#�$��.��/*���$!���!��!���$�>!�"��!#$'��&�!�����""#!!��0�
�

��� ������
��
7����
���7�����
�
����$�������� �/� 7������� -��������� ���� ���/�� 7�������$�-���*���� ����� ����3����
�
+������������������,�	����4����
���*��������.����4�������������������������������4��	�
�/��������-����������0�5����-�����������-��/��*������!���������������+���*���������
�	�����$�-���*����������!�*�������*������*�����	���������������������+��������
-��/��*�����*���!�*���������!�*������--��4����	�������������=��-��������0�����
#������ �/� ���� �������
� +��� +��� ���� -���/����� ������� /��� 7������� ����  ���� E����
�
�����4��� �� *�����	� �����*���� ���+��!� -��!����� �!������ ���� ,�	� *���������� ����
��.����4�������������-��������������4��	��/��������-����������0�

Page 5



�
(����������
���������������-���������$�-���*������"��,�"�!�����
�+��������������������
�������-������"��,�"�!�����0�5��������������������������*���/�-�����������������+������
��*�����/����,�������������H��,�������;��������/�������������!�����!��-���������	����������
���,�+�������4������*-�������������������
�����+�����/�����4���/���������!�����������
�������� ���� ���� $�-���*���� +��� ��������	� �����!���!0� 5�+�4��
� ���� *���!����!�
��������� ����� +���� ����!� -��� ��� -����� ��*��� ��� ������� ������ ������� ���� ���� "��,�
"�!������+����������/���������������!�	0�
�
��*��������!�������������������+���������*��������+��������!�-������-����
�+����
/�+������//�+����������$�-���*���0�7���������/��*������+����������?�������������������
��� ���,�� ����!� ��G������
� ����� ����������� �������� *�������� ���� ����� �--����
� ����
��*����� ����� ��?������� ���� -��4������ �/� *���� ��� ��-��� ���,� �-���/��� �������!0� (��
���-����
� ���� ����/� %8�����4�� ���������� ����� ���� ������� ��� ��������� ��� ���,� ������!�
�//������ ���� $�-���*����� ���� ��� -��-����� ����� ���� �������;�� "��,� ���� (���������
9//����� ������� ���� ��8�� *�����!� �/� ���� ��**������ ��� �������� ������ ��������	G+����
������0�
�
������������
�
���� �� !�!����#$ $+����/ *!"�$!�7� $�(,��;(,�(�.��$�!��0�
�
�(�� �� !� �&%*!��*�*�/�*!�.��/*���$!���!��!���$�>!�"��!#$'��&� !�����""#!!���

�$�!���������/#$'� //*� +��!��*#�2�" $ '�"�$!0�
�
�1�� �� !� !��� �#*�+!�*� �&� �#$ $+�� .�� *�6%��!��� !�� �# #��� 3#!�� !��� �� #*�  $��

�/�2��/�*��$��#$�*�� !#�$�!��!���!* #$#$'�*�6%#*�"�$!���&�!�����""#!!��0�
�

��� �����
����������7�������������
�
����$���������/�7�������-��������������-�������������������������������$�-���*����
/��� ��**�������� ���� #����� &�4���*���� �$�#&�� ��� �� ������������� -�-��� ��� ����
7������ �/� #����� ������� �����
� +����� ���� ����� ����������� ��� ����� ��*���� �/� ����
��**������/�����**���0�
�
������������� !�!���*��/�$���!��!��������+�$�%�! !#�$�.��$�!��0�
�

�=� ��������
?������
�����7����?��
�
����$�������� �/� 7������� ��-������ ����� /����+��!� ���� -����������� �/� �(�7�� !��������
��������	
���	�	
������������������������	
���	��	�����	������	����	
����������
�
�����
����
�	������	�� !""#$%
������������;�����������	�#��������!������	����������
�-������������������*-�������+���������-��������������/�����	��(�7����������������	�
�/�#�������������	�����/�%8�����4�����9#��%�0�
�
������������
�
���� �� !�!���*��#�����$!#���$�4�� %$��*#$'�7��#+4�.��$�!��0�
�
�(�� �� !�!���*��#����/��#+4�.��/*�"�!��� +*����!�����%$+#�0�
�

Page 6



�>� ����
�?�����(,�,��
�
����$���������/�7�������-��4�����������������/����� �����	��������������������������
�������� ��?������ ��� ������� ��*-������0� 5�� ����� ���� ���� ���� ���������� +����� +����
�--����������������������
���������4�����/���-������������������������
�+�����+��������
�*-��*������ ��� �� 
��	� ����0� 5�� -��������� �� ���/�� �����  �����	� �����	
� +����� ����
����� -��-����� ��� ����������� +���� �(�7�� ����� -�������� ���� ��**������ �����
/����+��!�������������+���� ����5�����/�#�!���������*�������4����
�����������-����
���� ����� -��-����� ��� ������� ����� ������������ �*-��*������ �--��-������ �������� ���
��*-�	�+����������?����*������/��������0�
�
������������
�
���� �� !�!����$!#��*#.�*4�7��#+4� $���+!#�$�7� $�.��$�!��0�
�
�(�� �� !�!���7��#+4�.��/*�"�!��� +*����!�����%$+#�0�
�
�1�� �� !� !��� ��%$+#�� ! 2��  //*�/*# !�� �!�/�� !�� �$�%*�� +�"/�# $+��3#!�� !���

��'#�� !#�$� ��#��$!#&#���#$�!����+!#�$�7� $0�
�

�1� �
��������������8
	�������?�7�C
�	�����(,,,����7����
��D����
��?��7���
��
�
����5�����/�#�!���������*�������4����
���������/��/�����$���������/�#�+
�5"�����
������ ����!�*���� -��������� �� ?�������	� �-����� ��� ��������� ��� ���� ���� �/� ��4����
���4��������� �	� ���� �������� ���+���� ��� �-���� ����� ���� �� 
���� ����0� ���� 5�*��
9//���� ����� �/� ��������� ��� ��4���� ���4��������� ��?������ �4��	� �������� ��� ��-����
?�������	�������������/�"(�����������--��4���������	�����-����	����"(��0�
�
5����**���������������4��+����������-����������	�����5�*��9//���
�+�����*������
��*�����/�����**�������������������!�������������������2��
�
••••� �������!�������I���--��4��� ���������� ��?������ /��� ��������������	������/�"(���

������������������������������������������������������/��*�����������//���������
����*����!��������4����!����	��������������������0�

�
••••� ����� ���������/�"(����������������������������4����������������������/����� ���

������ +����� ���� �//����� ������ ��4����!������ �������� �� *�8�*�*� ����������
��������� �/� ��8� *������ ��� *���0�  ��� �������� �/� ���� �*-�������� �/� ���������
���4������������������������!� ��4����!������� �����������!���������/�������������
�������
� ���� &�4���*���� ������� ���� ���,� ��� �--�	� ���� ���������� ��� ������
�����0�

�
����-��-��������������������-���������������/�� ��!�������������+�����8-������������
���������������0�5���8-�����������4��+�������/����� ��������*����+
����+���������*��
*������//�����������������4��������/�����������������4����0������������������/����������
�������������+���������-����������������������+���������+��������*�����������������
!�4���4������� �/� ���������*���/� ���������+��� ��������������������������4��������/�
��4�������4���������+���������!����4�����������-��4�����	�+����������!����������0����	�
+�����/����������������������������!�����������+�+�����-�������������!������-��4��	��/�
���-������-��-����������/�����G�����������4����
�+�����+����������!�������������!����
-������	������������!����/�������4����*�������4��-����/���	�����+�������/���0�

Page 7



�
�� ��*���� �8-������� ���� 4��+� ����� /����+��!� ���� -����������� �/� ���� 5�*�� 9//����
��4��+
� ������������ ���������4�� ��,������-�� ��� ��*-�	�+���� ���� ����**���������
�
������������+�����!�/���������!�����������+������,��-����0�
�
������������
�
���� �� !�!���*�/�*!��$�!���%����&�+���*!��%*��#�� $+��.��$�!��0�
�
�(�� �� !� !�����%$+#�E�� +%**�$!� /��#+4�  $�� /*�+��%*�� �$���7�� .��  //*����-�

/�$�#$'�!���+�"#$'�#$!��&�*+���&�$�3� "�$�#$'���'#�� !#�$0�
�

�@� �
��
�	�����������
�
���� $�������� �/� 7������� ��-������ ����� ���� �(�7�� !�������� H������ ����������� &�
���
��
��������	
��������
��������������;�����**�����������������*������/����������
��**������ ������� �����4�� �-���/��� �������!� ��� ������ ����� ���� ���-������������� ���
��*����� �/� ����� ��**�����0� ���� $�������� ��-������ ����� ������ ���1� ���� �������!�
��?����*����� ���� ����� ��*-�������4��	� �����4��� ��� *���*�*� ����� �	� �--������!�
���� �/� ���� ��*����� �/� ���� +��,��!� -���	� +��� +����� ���� �(�7�� !�������� ���
�������,�������������!0�����������������������--������4����+����������������������/�
A�
>��0�
�
��*����� �8-������� ���� 4��+� ����� *���� ��� ��-��� �������!� +����� ��� �--��-�����
�
��	��������-��*��	��������!�������	��������,����	�*������*����0�
�
������������� !� !����#*�+!�*��&��#$ $+��.��*�6%��!��� !�� �# #���3#!�� !����� #*�
 $���/�2��/�*��$��!�� '*��� ��%#! .���!* #$#$'�/ +2 '�0�
�
�
� � �
�

Page 8



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

1
 A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

re
p

o
rt

M
er

se
ys

id
e 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d

A
u

d
it

 2
01

0/
11

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

2
 C

o
n

te
n

ts
K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..3

B
ef

o
re

 I 
co

m
p

le
te

 m
y 

au
d

it
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..4

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

5

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 D
ra

ft
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

au
d

it
o

r’
s 

re
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

W
ir

ra
l B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
ci

l..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
10

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
a 

– 
D

ra
ft

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 in
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

2

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 t

o
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

4

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 L
et

te
r 

o
f 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

16

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..1
8

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 5
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
9

 

T
ra

ff
ic

 li
g

h
ts

 
R

ed
   

   
   

  A
m

be
r 

   
   

   
 G

re
en

 

Page 10



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

3
 K

ey
 m

es
sa

g
es

 
T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

fr
o

m
 m

y 
20

10
/1

1 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 o

f 
M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 (
th

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

) 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 s
u

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 c
o

m
p

le
te

.

O
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 

A
ud

it 
op

in
io

n 
 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

 !
 

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 m

at
te

rs
 I 

pl
an

 to
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
au

di
t o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 o

f M
er

se
ys

id
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d.
 

 !
 

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 tw

o 
m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
or

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

, t
he

 o
m

is
si

on
 o

f a
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
s 

at
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

09
, a

nd
 a

 m
is

-c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 £
27

3m
 p

oo
le

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

s 
eq

ui
ty

. T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
ag

re
ed

 to
 a

m
en

d 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
bo

th
 o

f t
he

se
 it

em
s.

 
 !

 
I i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
 s

m
al

l n
um

be
r 

of
 o

th
er

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

er
ro

rs
 a

nd
 o

ne
 n

on
-t

riv
ia

l a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

er
ro

r,
 a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

ag
re

ed
 to

 a
m

en
d.

 

     

Page 11



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

4
 B

ef
o

re
 I 

co
m

p
le

te
 m

y 
au

d
it

 
 

 I c
o

n
fi

rm
 t

o
 y

o
u

 
M

y 
re

po
rt

 in
cl

ud
es

 o
nl

y 
m

at
te

rs
 o

f g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

in
te

re
st

 th
at

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 m

y 
at

te
nt

io
n 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t. 

M
y 

au
di

t i
s 

no
t d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
al

l m
at

te
rs

 th
at

 m
ig

ht
 b

e 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 y
ou

.  

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce

I c
an

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

's
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

au
di

to
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

E
S

 1
 (

re
vi

se
d)

 -
 In

te
gr

ity
, O

bj
ec

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. I
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

co
nf

irm
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a

 th
re

at
 to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 in

te
gr

ity
.  

 T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
's

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

ha
s 

no
t u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
an

y 
no

n-
au

di
t w

or
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
du

rin
g 

20
10

/1
1.

 

 
 

I a
sk

 y
o

u
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
o

 m
e 

I a
sk

 t
h

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
to

: 

!
 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t b
ef

or
e 

re
co

m
m

en
di

ng
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 to

 
W

irr
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
(t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s)

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

itt
ee

 (
th

e 
A

R
M

C
).

 

!
 

ta
ke

 n
ot

e 
of

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d’

s 
ac

co
un

ts
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t (
A

pp
en

di
x 

2)
;  

!
 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 le

tte
r 

of
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
(A

pp
en

di
x 

3)
 to

 th
e 

A
R

M
C

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 
F

un
d 

be
fo

re
 I 

is
su

e 
m

y 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

; a
nd

 

!
 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
e 

A
R

M
C

 a
pp

ro
ve

 m
an

ag
em

en
t’s

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 (
A

pp
en

di
x 

4)
. 

 I a
sk

 t
h

e 
A

R
M

C
 t

o
: 

!
 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 P

en
si

on
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 b
ef

or
e 

it:
 

!
ap

pr
ov

es
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

; 
!

ap
pr

ov
es

 th
e 

le
tte

r 
of

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

(A
pp

en
di

x 
3)

 b
ef

or
e 

I i
ss

ue
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

; a
nd

 
!

ag
re

es
 a

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 (
A

pp
en

di
x 

4)
.. 

Page 12



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

5
 F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
 

 
T

h
e 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
’s

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 a

n
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
m

ea
n

s 
b

y 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 

fo
r 

it
s 

st
ew

ar
d

sh
ip

 o
f 

th
e 

fu
n

d
s.

 T
h

e 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

A
R

M
C

 h
av

e 
fi

n
al

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
es

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
t 

is
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
th

at
 t

h
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
o

f 
th

e 
A

R
M

C
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 m

y 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
b

ef
o

re
 a

d
o

p
ti

n
g

 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’s
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 m
at

te
rs

, I
 p

la
n 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 a

ud
it 

re
po

rt
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
M

at
te

rs
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

re
: 

!
 

I h
av

e 
no

t r
ec

ei
ve

d 
a 

fin
al

 s
et

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l t
he

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 a
gr

ee
d 

on
 a

ud
it 

  
!

 
I h

av
e 

ye
t t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f m

y 
te

st
in

g,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 o

n:
 

!
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

, a
nd

 
!

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

co
nt

ai
ns

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 m

y 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t f
or

 in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s.

 

I r
ec

ei
ve

d 
th

e 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t f

or
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

on
 1

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 If
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 m

at
er

ia
l i

nc
on

si
st

en
ci

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t r
ef

le
ct

s 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

(A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n)

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

8 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
gu

id
an

ce
, I

 w
ill

 is
su

e 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

op
in

io
n.

 A
pp

en
di

x 
1a

 c
on

ta
in

s 
a 

co
py

 o
f m

y 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t f
or

 in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d’
s 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t. 

E
rr

o
rs

 in
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 tw

o 
m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
or

s 
in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d’
s 

ac
co

un
ts

. T
he

 fi
rs

t i
s 

th
at

, i
n 

co
m

m
on

 w
ith

 m
os

t l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

s,
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 d

id
 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 a

 N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t a

s 
at

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
09

. I
t i

s 
a 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f I
F

R
S

 1
 F

irs
t t

im
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 IF

R
S

 th
at

 b
od

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
N

et
 

A
ss

et
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t a

t t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
to

 IF
R

S
. T

he
 s

ec
on

d 
is

 a
 m

is
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

of
 tw

o 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 to

ta
lli

ng
 £

27
3m

 a
s 

eq
ui

ty
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 p

oo
le

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.  

I a
ls

o 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
e 

no
n-

m
at

er
ia

l e
rr

or
 in

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
 s

m
al

l n
um

be
r 

of
 o

th
er

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

er
ro

rs
.  

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 a

m
en

d 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
al

l o
f t

he
 e

rr
or

s 
I i

de
nt

ifi
ed

. 

Page 13



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

6
 F

or
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

f a
ll 

of
 th

e 
am

en
de

d 
er

ro
rs

, s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
re

 a
ls

o 
am

en
di

ng
 th

e 
dr

af
t a

cc
ou

nt
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 b

y 
£6

.7
m

. I
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 it

s 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

y,
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
d 

us
ed

 th
e 

la
te

st
 a

ud
ite

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 (

as
 a

t 3
0 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
10

) 
to

 v
al

ue
 a

n 
un

qu
ot

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, b

y 
th

e 
tim

e 
of

 
ou

r 
au

di
t, 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
s 

at
 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 w
er

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 w

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

m
ov

em
en

t i
n 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
1

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t l
ed

ge
r 

af
te

r 
it 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ec

on
ci

le
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l l

ed
ge

r 
ar

e 
al

so
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

R
2

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

la
te

st
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 u

nq
uo

te
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 fo
rm

al
 p

ro
ce

ss
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l a

dj
us

tin
g 

po
st

 b
al

an
ce

 s
he

et
 

ev
en

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
em

be
rs

' a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s.

 

S
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
ks

 a
n

d
 a

re
as

 o
f 

ju
d

g
em

en
t 

In
 p

la
nn

in
g 

m
y 

au
di

t I
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 o

f j
ud

ge
m

en
t t

ha
t I

 h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f m

y 
au

di
t. 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
an

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
F

in
d

in
g

1.
 T

ri
en

n
ia

l A
ct

u
ar

ia
l V

al
u

at
io

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 

T
he

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
 T

rie
nn

ia
l A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

its
 p

os
iti

on
 a

t 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 

20
10

. W
hi

ls
t t

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 a

 d
ire

ct
 a

ud
it 

op
in

io
n 

ris
k,

 it
 is

 a
 k

ey
 is

su
e 

as
 r

eg
ar

ds
 th

e 
on

go
in

g 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 F

un
d.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 r

is
ks

 o
f i

nc
re

as
ed

 d
ef

ic
its

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
os

ts
 fr

om
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

. 

 

A
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 a
tta

ch
ed

 to
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d’

s 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

N
o 

em
pl

oy
er

 h
as

 d
ef

au
lte

d 
on

 th
ei

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

. 

 

2.
 M

o
ve

 t
o

 ‘O
p

en
A

ir
’ s

ys
te

m
 

T
he

 F
un

d 
re

pl
ac

ed
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 u
se

d 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l i

nt
er

na
lly

 m
an

ag
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

, 
‘S

ha
re

ho
ld

er
’, 

w
ith

 th
e 

‘O
pe

nA
ir’

 s
ys

te
m

 in
 2

01
0/

11
. T

he
re

 is
 a

 r
is

k 
th

at
 th

e 
ba

la
nc

es
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
ly

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

a 
ris

k 
th

at
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 p

la
ce

 in
 th

e 
ne

w
 

sy
st

em
. 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
re

co
nc

ile
d 

th
e 

cl
os

in
g 

bo
ok

 c
os

t 
fig

ur
es

 fr
om

 ‘S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

’ t
o 

th
e 

op
en

in
g 

bo
ok

 
co

st
 fi

gu
re

s 
w

ith
in

 ‘O
pe

nA
ir’

.  
T

he
y 

di
d 

no
t 

id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

di
sc

re
pa

nc
ie

s.
 

Page 14



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

7
 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
F

in
d

in
g

3.
 Im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
vo

lu
n

ta
ry

 r
ed

u
n

d
an

cy
  

I a
m

 a
w

ar
e 

th
at

 W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 u
nd

er
go

in
g 

a 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

re
du

nd
an

cy
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

he
re

by
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ill
 le

av
e 

in
 2

01
0/

11
. T

hi
s 

m
ay

 a
ffe

ct
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
e 

te
am

 to
 

de
liv

er
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 c
or

re
ct

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 a

gr
ee

d 
tim

es
ca

le
s.

 

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
pr

ov
id

ed
 it

s 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
au

di
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
de

ad
lin

e 
on

 2
8 

Ju
ne

.  

4 
F

ir
st

 t
im

e 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
 o

f 
In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

F
ro

m
 2

01
0/

11
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 a

do
pt

 th
e 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

IF
R

S
) 

C
od

e.
 T

he
 C

od
e 

se
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

pr
op

er
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
 th

at
 b

od
ie

s 
m

us
t f

ol
lo

w
 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
s 

so
m

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l d

is
cl

os
ur

es
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
  

 

W
e 

fo
un

d 
on

e 
m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
or

 in
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 

F
un

ds
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
of

 IF
R

S
 –

 in
 c

om
m

on
 w

ith
 

m
os

t l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

s 
th

e 
F

un
d 

om
itt

ed
 a

 tr
an

si
tio

na
l N

et
 A

ss
et

 S
ta

te
m

en
t. 

5 
F

in
an

ci
al

 p
re

ss
u

re
s 

– 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 e

m
p

lo
ye

rs
 

W
e 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

bo
di

es
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 a
re

 u
nd

er
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

re
ss

ur
e 

an
d 

in
 m

an
y 

ca
se

s 
ar

e 
of

fe
rin

g 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

ea
rly

 r
et

ire
m

en
t, 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
re

du
nd

an
cy

 a
nd

 p
os

si
bl

y 
m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

co
m

pu
ls

or
y 

re
du

nd
an

ci
es

 in
 th

e 
ne

ar
 fu

tu
re

. T
hi

s 
m

ay
 p

la
ce

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
kl

oa
d 

on
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
s 

te
am

 in
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
la

rg
e 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 s

ev
er

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

W
e 

di
d 

no
t f

in
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f a

ny
 b

ac
kl

og
 in

 
pe

ns
io

ns
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 w
or

kl
oa

d 
fr

om
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

nu
m

be
rs

 
of

 s
ev

er
an

ce
 c

as
es

 in
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

bo
di

es
. 

6 
R

ec
o

n
ci

lia
ti

o
n

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 A
X

IS
e 

an
d

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 L

ed
g

er
 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
di

d 
no

t c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
va

lu
es

 in
 A

X
IS

e 
P

en
si

on
s 

P
ay

ro
ll 

an
d 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s 

to
 th

os
e 

in
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 L

ed
ge

r 
in

 2
00

9/
10

. T
he

se
 a

re
 

es
se

nt
ia

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 
th

e 
fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

re
 c

or
re

ct
ly

 s
ta

te
d 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

ve
r 

re
ce

ip
ts

 a
nd

 
pa

ym
en

ts
 in

 k
ey

 a
re

as
. 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
re

co
nc

ile
d 

lu
m

p 
su

m
s 

in
 A

X
IS

e 
an

d 
th

e 
le

dg
er

. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
sk

ed
 fo

r 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f a
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 o

th
er

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

. 

7 
T

im
el

in
es

s 
o

f 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

42
(2

) 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t P

en
si

on
 S

ch
em

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
8 

re
qu

ire
s 

em
pl

oy
er

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 to
 p

ay
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

ad
m

in
is

te
rin

g 
au

th
or

ity
 w

ith
in

 1
9 

da
ys

 o
f t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
th

e 
m

on
th

 to
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 r
el

at
e.

 O
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 in
 2

00
9/

10
 fo

un
d 

th
at

 w
hi

ls
t m

os
t b

od
ie

s 
pa

y 
on

 ti
m

e,
 s

om
e 

sm
al

le
r 

bo
di

es
 m

is
se

d 
th

es
e 

de
ad

lin
es

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
, b

re
ac

hi
ng

 th
e 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
.

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
sk

ed
 fo

r 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f t
he

 ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 fr
om

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
 

Page 15



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

8
 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
F

in
d

in
g

8 
V

al
u

at
io

n
 o

f 
u

n
q

u
o

te
d

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
(S

O
R

P
) 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
to

 b
e 

at
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

r 
w

he
re

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
is

 n
ot

 r
ea

di
ly

 a
sc

er
ta

in
ab

le
, a

t t
he

 F
un

d'
s 

es
tim

at
e 

of
 ‘f

ai
r 

va
lu

e’
. T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d'

s 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

de
sc

rib
e 

th
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
th

es
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
s 

‘a
t m

an
ag

er
's

 v
al

ua
tio

n’
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
 fo

r 
bo

th
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 r
el

ie
s 

on
 v

al
ua

tio
ns

 r
ep

or
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d/

or
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

s.
 It

 is
 

es
se

nt
ia

l t
ha

t t
he

 p
re

pa
re

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

es
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 S
O

R
P

. G
ui

da
nc

e 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

P
en

si
on

s 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

A
dv

is
or

y 
G

ro
up

 (
P

R
A

G
) 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

of
 d

ue
 d

ili
ge

nc
e 

fo
r 

pr
ep

ar
er

s 
of

 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

st
at

em
en

ts
  

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

a 
du

e 
di

lig
en

ce
 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
P

R
A

G
 fr

am
ew

or
k.

 
It 

ha
s 

us
ed

 th
is

 w
he

n 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
. 

9 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
w

it
h

 C
ap

it
al

 D
yn

am
ic

s 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

pr
iv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

re
lie

s 
on

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

C
ap

ita
l 

D
yn

am
ic

s 
Lt

d 
un

de
r 

an
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t d

at
in

g 
ba

ck
 to

 1
99

1.
 O

ur
 r

ev
ie

w
 in

 2
00

9/
10

 o
f t

he
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 is

 o
ut

 o
f d

at
e 

an
d 

do
es

 n
ot

 s
pe

ci
fy

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
w

or
k.

 

 

A
 n

ew
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 C

ap
ita

l D
yn

am
ic

s 
Lt

d 
w

as
 

si
gn

ed
 in

 J
un

e 
20

11
. 

10
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
to

ry
 a

d
d

ed
 y

ea
rs

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

re
ce

ip
ts

 a
nd

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 w

er
e 

ov
er

st
at

ed
 b

y 
£1

2m
 in

 2
00

9/
10

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
in

co
rr

ec
t i

nc
lu

si
on

 o
f c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

ad
de

d 
ye

ar
s 

(C
A

Y
s)

. C
A

Y
s 

ar
e 

aw
ar

de
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
0 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
fa

ll 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

LG
P

S
. T

he
 L

G
P

S
 (

M
is

c)
 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

9 
no

w
 p

er
m

it 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

to
 c

on
ve

rt
 C

A
Y

s 
in

to
 p

en
si

on
 s

er
vi

ce
, h

ow
ev

er
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 to

 d
o 

th
is

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

by
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

an
ag

er
s 

ha
ve

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 

th
at

 n
o 

em
pl

oy
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 h

as
 m

ad
e 

a 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

to
 c

on
ve

rt
 C

A
Y

s 
in

to
 p

en
si

on
 

se
rv

ic
e.

 (
I h

av
e 

as
ke

d 
th

at
 m

em
be

rs
 a

ls
o 

co
nf

irm
 th

is
 in

 th
e 

le
tte

r 
of

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n)

. T
he

 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 C

A
Y

S
 

fr
om

 it
s 

in
co

m
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 in

 2
01

0/
11

. I
t 

ha
s 

al
so

 a
m

en
de

d 
th

e 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
fig

ur
es

 fo
r 

20
09

/1
0.

  

 

Page 16



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

9
  S

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l

I h
av

e 
n

o
t 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

n
y 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l  

I o
nl

y 
re

po
rt

 th
os

e 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
I i

de
nt

ify
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

th
at

 a
re

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

 a
m

 n
ot

 e
xp

re
ss

in
g 

an
 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

. 

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
I c

on
si

de
r 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 y

ou
r 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
, a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s,
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
es

tim
at

es
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
.  

I h
av

e 
on

ly
 o

ne
 m

at
te

r 
to

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
yo

u:
 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
, p

o
lic

ie
s,

 e
st

im
at

es
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 c

lo
su

re
s 

Is
su

e
F

in
d

in
g

s 
an

d
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s

1.
 D

is
cl

o
su

re
 o

f 
p

o
o

le
d

 a
n

d
 in

te
rn

al
ly

 m
an

ag
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 

T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
in

iti
al

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 in
te

rn
al

ly
 m

an
ag

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t b
al

an
ce

s 
in

 a
gg

re
ga

te
 o

nl
y.

 P
oo

le
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ve
hi

cl
es

 w
er

e 
al

so
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 in
 a

gg
re

ga
te

 o
nl

y.
 W

hi
ls

t t
hi

s 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 d
oe

s 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
S

O
R

P
, i

n 
m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

is
 d

oe
s 

no
t g

iv
e 

th
e 

re
ad

er
 o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
ad

eq
ua

te
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

se
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.  

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ag

re
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
ul

d 
be

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 
to

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
us

ef
ul

 to
 th

e 
us

er
 o

f t
he

 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

 

 L
et

te
r 

o
f 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

B
ef

or
e 

I i
ss

ue
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 a

ud
iti

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 r
eq

ui
re

 m
e 

to
 a

sk
 y

ou
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
or

 w
rit

te
n 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

. I
 h

av
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
 d

ra
ft 

at
 A

pp
en

di
x 

4 
 

Page 17



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

10
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 1

 –
 D

ra
ft

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
re

p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
o

f 
W

ir
ra

l B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

ci
li

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

p
en

si
o

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I h
av

e 
au

di
te

d 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

 T
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
e 

F
un

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
, t

he
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
la

te
d 

no
te

s.
 T

he
se

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
P

ol
ic

ie
s.

 
 T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 is

 m
ad

e 
so

le
ly

 to
 th

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f W
irr

al
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

t I
I o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8 

an
d 

fo
r 

no
 o

th
er

 
pu

rp
os

e,
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
8 

of
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
of

 A
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 in

 M
ar

ch
 

20
10

. 
 R

es
p

ec
ti

ve
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 o

f 
th

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

’s
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ro
pe

r 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. M
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 to
 a

ud
it 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
n 

A
ud

iti
ng

 (
U

K
 a

nd
 Ir

el
an

d)
. T

ho
se

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

A
ud

ito
rs

. 

 i F
or

 in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

Page 18



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

11
  S

co
p

e 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

; t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

of
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

fu
nd

; a
nd

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

 r
ea

d 
al

l t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

[a
nd

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t]i
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

m
at

er
ia

l i
nc

on
si

st
en

ci
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
f I

 b
ec

om
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
pp

ar
en

t m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

I c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
m

y 
re

po
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
: 

" 
gi

ve
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
nd

 d
is

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1
ot

he
r 

th
an

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
to

 p
ay

 p
en

si
on

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

be
ne

fit
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e

ye
ar

 
an

d 
" 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

op
er

ly
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 o
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
gi

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

[a
nd

 th
e 

co
nt

en
t o

f t
he

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t]i
i  f

or
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 p

re
pa

re
d 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 
     i I

 w
ill

 in
se

rt
 th

es
e 

w
or

ds
 if

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 m
y 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t. 

ii 
I w

ill
 in

se
rt

 th
es

e 
w

or
ds

 if
 I 

ha
ve

 n
o 

m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 m
y 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t. 

Page 19



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

12
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 1

a 
– 

D
ra

ft
 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 in
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 
A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 
D

ra
ft

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
re

p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
o

f 
W

ir
ra

l B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

p
en

si
o

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I h
av

e 
au

di
te

d 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

 T
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
e 

F
un

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
, t

he
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
la

te
d 

no
te

s.
 T

he
se

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
P

ol
ic

ie
s.

 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 is
 m

ad
e 

so
le

ly
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f W

irr
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

I o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8 
an

d 
fo

r 
no

 o
th

er
 

pu
rp

os
e,

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

8 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 in

 M
ar

ch
 

20
10

. 
 R

es
p

ec
ti

ve
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 o

f 
th

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

an
ce

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

’s
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ro
pe

r 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. M
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 to
 a

ud
it 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
n 

A
ud

iti
ng

 (
U

K
 a

nd
 Ir

el
an

d)
. T

ho
se

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

A
ud

ito
rs

.

Page 20



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

13
 S

co
p

e 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

; t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

of
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

fu
nd

; a
nd

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

 r
ea

d 
al

l t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
m

at
er

ia
l i

nc
on

si
st

en
ci

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

f I
 b

ec
om

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 a

pp
ar

en
t m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

I 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
m

y 
re

po
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
: 

" 
gi

ve
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
nd

 d
is

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
to

 p
ay

 p
en

si
on

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

be
ne

fit
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ye
ar

; 
an

d 
" 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

op
er

ly
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
gi

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t f

or
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 p

re
pa

re
d 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 
 M

at
te

rs
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I 

re
p

o
rt

 b
y 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

 

I h
av

e 
no

th
in

g 
to

 r
ep

or
t i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t o

n 
w

hi
ch

 I 
re

po
rt

 to
 y

ou
 if

, i
n 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

(A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n)

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

8 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

    

Page 21



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

14
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 2

 –
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

 t
o

 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
I i

d
en

ti
fi

ed
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g
 m

y 
au

d
it

 a
n

d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
h

av
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. I
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
em

 t
o

yo
u

r 
at

te
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

id
 y

o
u

 in
 f

u
lf

ill
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
. 

 

F
u

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

st
at

em
en

t 

A
dj

us
te

d 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

N
at

ur
e 

of
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t 
D

r 
£0

00
s 

C
r 

£0
00

s 
D

r 
£0

00
s 

C
r 

£0
00

s 

T
ra

ns
iti

on
al

 IF
R

S
 n

et
 a

ss
et

 
st

at
em

en
t o

m
itt

ed
 

In
cl

ud
e 

ne
t a

ss
et

s 
st

at
em

en
t a

s 
at

  
1 

A
pr

il 
20

09
 

 
 

 
 

M
is

an
al

ys
is

 o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 

£1
39

m
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

A
m

un
di

 G
lo

ba
l 

E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 £

13
4m

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
M

&
G

 G
lo

ba
l E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 c
at

eg
or

is
ed

 
as

 e
qu

ity
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 p

oo
le

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

 
 

 
 

10
,0

00
 u

ni
ts

 in
 L

’O
re

al
 P

rim
e 

de
 

F
id

el
ité

 o
m

itt
ed

 fr
om

 n
et

 a
ss

et
s 

st
at

em
en

t 

In
cr

ea
se

 v
al

ue
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 in
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s 
st

at
em

en
t a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 m
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 fu

nd
s 

ac
co

un
t 

 
72

8 
72

8 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 

Page 22



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

15
 

F
u

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

st
at

em
en

t 

O
th

er
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
er

ro
rs

 
!

 
a 

sm
al

l n
um

be
r 

of
 ty

po
gr

ap
hi

c 
er

ro
rs

 a
nd

 
m

is
-c

as
tin

gs
  

 !
 

gr
os

s 
up

 £
4m

 F
or

w
ar

d 
E

ur
o 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
an

d 
£4

m
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

in
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

no
te

 
 !

 
£0

.5
m

 tr
an

si
tio

na
l f

un
d 

m
an

ag
er

 b
al

an
ce

 
ca

te
go

ris
ed

 a
s 

eq
ui

ty
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 c

as
h 

 !
 

T
he

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 n

ot
e 

do
es

 n
ot

 d
is

cl
os

e 
th

at
 a

n 
el

em
en

t o
f r

eg
ul

ar
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
de

fic
it 

fu
nd

in
g 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 23



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

16
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 3

 –
 L

et
te

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

M
er

se
ys

id
e 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 -

 A
u

d
it

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

n
d

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 

I c
on

fir
m

 to
 th

e 
be

st
 o

f m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
be

lie
f, 

ha
vi

ng
 m

ad
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

of
 o

th
er

 d
ire

ct
or

s 
an

d 
of

fic
er

s 
of

 th
e 

M
er

se
ys

id
e 

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
(t

he
 F

un
d)

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 g
iv

en
 to

 y
ou

 in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 F

un
d’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 

20
11

.  

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
st

at
u

to
ry

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
 

I h
av

e 
fu

lfi
lle

d 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

un
de

r 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
 w

hi
ch

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 F
un

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 y
ou

, a
nd

 fo
r 

m
ak

in
g 

ac
cu

ra
te

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 to
 y

ou
. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
ec

o
rd

s 

A
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 p
er

so
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
en

tit
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 y

ou
 fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 y
ou

r 
au

di
t, 

an
d 

al
l t

he
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
th

e 
F

un
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

op
er

ly
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 a
nd

 r
ec

or
de

d 
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.  

Ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
es

I a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

de
si

gn
, i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
ec

t f
ra

ud
 o

r 
er

ro
r.

 

I a
ls

o 
co

nf
irm

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

: 
!

 
m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

of
 fr

au
d,

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
fr

au
d,

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
ei

th
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ol
es

 in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

r 
ot

he
rs

 w
he

re
 

fr
au

d 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

;  
!

 
m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

of
 a

ny
 a

lle
ga

tio
ns

 o
f f

ra
ud

, o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
fr

au
d,

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
en

tit
y’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
ed

 b
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 fo

rm
er

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
na

ly
st

s,
 r

eg
ul

at
or

s 
or

 o
th

er
s;

 a
nd

 
!

 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f o

ur
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

he
 r

is
k 

th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 m

is
st

at
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 fr

au
d.

 

Page 24



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

17
 L

aw
, r

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s,
 c

o
n

tr
ac

tu
al

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

d
es

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 

I h
av

e 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

to
 y

ou
 a

ll 
kn

ow
n 

in
st

an
ce

s 
of

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e,

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s,

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
od

es
 o

f p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 w

ho
se

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 w

he
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

T
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
ve

nt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 la

w
, r

eg
ul

at
io

n 
or

 o
th

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

  T
he

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 th
at

 c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
m

at
er

ia
l e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e.

   

A
ll 

kn
ow

n 
ac

tu
al

 o
r 

po
ss

ib
le

 li
tig

at
io

n 
an

d 
cl

ai
m

s,
 w

ho
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
he

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, h
av

e 
be

en
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 to
 

th
e 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
ep

or
tin

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 e
st

im
at

es
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 f

ai
r 

va
lu

es
 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

in
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
at

 fa
ir 

va
lu

e.
  

R
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 th
e 

id
en

tit
y 

of
 th

e 
F

un
d’

s 
re

la
te

d 
pa

rt
ie

s 
an

d 
al

l t
he

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 o
f w

hi
ch

 I 
am

 a
w

ar
e.

 I 
ha

ve
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

su
ch

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 a

nd
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f t
he

 fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

C
o

m
p

en
sa

to
ry

 a
d

d
ed

 y
ea

rs
 (

C
A

Y
s)

  

N
o 

em
pl

oy
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 h

as
 m

ad
e 

a 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

to
 c

on
ve

rt
 C

A
Y

s 
in

to
 p

en
si

on
 s

er
vi

ce
.

S
u

b
se

q
u

en
t 

ev
en

ts

A
ll 

ev
en

ts
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t o

r 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, h

av
e 

be
en

 a
dj

us
te

d 
or

 d
is

cl
os

ed
. 

Page 25



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

18
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 4

 –
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 

P
ag

e
n

o
. 

3. T
o

p
ic

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

4.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1 
= 

L
o

w
 

2 
= 

M
ed

 
   

 3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

5.
 T

o
p

ic
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

 

A
g

re
ed

 
C

o
m

m
en

ts
 

D
at

e
 

6 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ny
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t l

ed
ge

r 
af

te
r 

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ec
on

ci
le

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l 
le

dg
er

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

. 

3 
G

ro
up

 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

t 
Y

es
 

A
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
flo

w
s 

ha
s 

al
re

ad
y 

be
gu

n.
 

Ju
ne

 
20

12
 

6 
R

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
la

te
st

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 u
nq

uo
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 fo

rm
al

 
pr

oc
es

s 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

ad
ju

st
in

g 
po

st
 b

al
an

ce
 s

he
et

 
ev

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
' a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

3 
G

ro
up

 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

t 
Y

es
 

 
S

ep
t 

20
12

 

Page 26



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

19
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 5

 –
 G

lo
ss

ar
y 

A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t

A
 s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
 p

re
pa

re
d 

by
 a

n 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 a

nd
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
  

O
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, I
 m

us
t g

iv
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

:  
!

 
w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
 a

nd
 it

s 
sp

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 in

 q
ue

st
io

n;
 a

nd
  

!
 

w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

pr
op

er
ly

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

ru
le

s.
   

O
p

in
io

n
 

If 
I a

gr
ee

 th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

, I
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n.
 I 

is
su

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
pi

ni
on

 if
: 

!
 

I f
in

d 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
o 

no
t g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
; o

r 
!

 
I c

an
no

t c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
. 

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

an
d

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

ce
 

T
he

 A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

 (
A

P
B

) 
de

fin
es

 th
is

 c
on

ce
pt

 a
s 

‘a
n 

ex
pr

es
si

on
 o

f t
he

 r
el

at
iv

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
or

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 m
at

te
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

. A
 m

at
te

r 
is

 m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

ts
 o

m
is

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
in

flu
en

ce
 u

se
rs

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
ad

dr
es

se
es

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ito

r’s
 r

ep
or

t; 
al

so
 a

 m
is

st
at

em
en

t i
s 

m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

t w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
si

m
ila

r 
in

flu
en

ce
. M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fo

r 
an

y 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
rim

ar
y 

st
at

em
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

r 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 it

em
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

em
. W

e 
ca

nn
ot

 d
ef

in
e 

m
at

er
ia

lit
y 

m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
ly

, a
s 

it 
ha

s 
bo

th
 n

um
er

ic
al

 a
nd

 n
on

-n
um

er
ic

al
 a

sp
ec

ts
’. 

 

T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

‘S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

’ a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

es
e 

w
id

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
au

di
to

rs
 a

do
pt

 a
 le

ve
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 th
at

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
le

ve
l a

pp
lie

d 
to

 th
ei

r 
au

di
t i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 h
as

 b
ot

h 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s.

  

 

Page 27



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

20
 W

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

A
 w

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

xi
st

s 
w

he
n:

  
!

 
a 

co
nt

ro
l i

s 
de

si
gn

ed
, s

et
 u

p 
or

 u
se

d 
in

 s
uc

h 
a 

w
ay

 th
at

 it
 is

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
, o

r 
de

te
ct

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

, m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
qu

ic
kl

y;
 o

r 
 

!
 

a 
co

nt
ro

l n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

, o
r 

de
te

ct
 a

nd
 c

or
re

ct
, m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 q

ui
ck

ly
 is

 m
is

si
ng

.  

A
n 

im
po

rt
an

t w
ea

kn
es

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 is
 a

 w
ea

kn
es

s,
 o

r 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
th

at
, i

n 
m

y 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 ju

dg
em

en
t, 

ar
e 

im
po

rt
an

t e
no

ug
h 

th
at

 I 
sh

ou
ld

 r
ep

or
t t

he
m

 to
 y

ou
. 

 

Page 28



  If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

cc
ep

t n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

: 
!

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
/m

em
be

r 
or

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
; o

r 
 

!
 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

           

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
1 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



!"

A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

ep
o

rt
 

W
ir

ra
l C

o
u

n
ci

l 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1 

Agenda Item 6

Page 31



C
o

n
te

n
ts

K
ey

 m
es

sa
ge

s 
 

1 
B

ef
or

e 
I c

om
pl

et
e 

m
y 

au
di

t  
 

3 
F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
4 

V
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 
18

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

1 
– 

D
ra

ft 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
ud

ito
r’s

 r
ep

or
t 

22
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

– 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
27

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

3 
– 

U
na

dj
us

te
d 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
29

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

4 
– 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
30

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

5 
– 

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
33

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

6 
– 

D
ra

ft 
le

tte
r 

of
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 3

7 
    T

ra
ffi

c 
lig

ht
 e

xp
la

na
tio

n 
   

  R
ed

   
  A

m
be

r 
   

  G
re

en

Page 32



!"

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

T
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 s

u
m

m
ar

is
es

 t
h

e 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
20

10
/1

1 
au

d
it

 w
h

ic
h

 is
 

su
b

st
an

ti
al

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. I

t 
in

cl
u

d
es

 t
h

e 
m

es
sa

g
es

 a
ri

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y 

au
d

it
 

o
f 

yo
u

r 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

th
e 

w
o

rk
 I 

h
av

e 
u

n
d

er
ta

ke
n

 t
o

 a
ss

es
s 

yo
u

r 
ar

ra
n

g
em

en
ts

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 v
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 in
 

yo
u

r 
u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

.  

 
T

ra
ffi

c 
lig

ht
 

U
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

au
di

t o
pi

ni
on

 
 

 

P
ro

pe
r 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 

 
 

W
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 

 
 

 

T
hi

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 v
er

y 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ye

ar
 fo

r 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r 

an
d 

W
irr

al
, 

lik
e 

so
m

e 
ot

he
r 

co
un

ci
ls

 h
as

 s
tr

ug
gl

ed
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 

un
de

r 
th

e 
ne

w
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 (
IF

R
S

).
 M

y 
au

di
t o

f y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 is

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 S

ub
je

ct
 to

 
th

e 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
cl

ea
ra

nc
e 

of
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 is

su
es

, I
 p

la
n 

to
 

is
su

e 
an

 a
ud

it 
re

po
rt

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
ds

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

) 
! 

T
he

re
 w

as
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l a
m

en
dm

en
t o

f £
64

.8
m

 to
 th

e 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
 

st
at

em
en

t a
nd

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 o
th

er
 e

rr
or

s 
th

at
 in

di
ca

te
 th

er
e 

w
as

 
lim

ite
d 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

F
in

an
ce

. 
! 

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 n
um

be
r 

of
 e

rr
or

s 
in

 th
e 

IF
R

S
 r

es
ta

te
m

en
t 

ex
er

ci
se

 a
nd

 th
e 

au
di

t e
xt

en
de

d 
fr

om
 J

an
ua

ry
 to

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 A

ug
us

t 
20

11
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 v

er
si

on
s 

pr
es

en
te

d 
fo

r 
au

di
t. 

! 
T

he
 d

ea
dl

in
e 

fo
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

by
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 
w

as
 n

ot
 m

et
. W

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
w

er
e 

no
t p

re
se

nt
ed

 fo
r 

au
di

t t
o 

th
e 

de
ad

lin
e 

an
d 

so
m

e 
w

er
e 

no
t t

o 
st

an
da

rd
. 

! 
N

on
-c

ur
re

nt
 a

ss
et

s 
re

m
ai

n 
a 

m
aj

or
 w

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

um
be

r 
of

 th
e 

er
ro

rs
 in

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
.

! 
T

he
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 h

av
e 

no
t c

ha
ng

ed
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l g
en

er
al

 fu
nd

 
ba

la
nc

e.

Page 33



#"

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
om

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

bo
ut

 w
he

th
er

 W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. I

 p
la

n 
to

 is
su

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
pi

ni
on

 th
at

 d
ra

w
s 

at
te

nt
io

n 
to

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

 H
E

S
P

E
 c

on
tr

ac
t a

nd
 

ot
he

r 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 is
su

es
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 w

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
co

rd
in

g 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l o
f a

ss
et

s.
 M

y 
op

in
io

n 
w

ill
, h

ow
ev

er
, 

co
nc

lu
de

 th
at

  w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 th
es

e 
m

at
te

rs
, I

 a
m

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 in

 a
ll 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

es
pe

ct
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
 

! 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
its

 s
av

in
g 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 ta
rg

et
s 

in
 

20
10

/1
1,

 a
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

re
du

nd
an

cy
 s

ch
em

e 
th

at
 w

as
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
, t

he
 ‘C

ha
ng

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e’
 w

as
 n

ot
 o

n 
co

ur
se

 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
av

in
gs

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 a

lth
ou

gh
 s

av
in

gs
 w

er
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 2

01
0/

11
. T

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 w

as
 m

on
ito

re
d 

cl
os

el
y 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 b

y 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
bu

dg
et

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fin
is

he
d 

th
e 

ye
ar

 w
ith

 a
 b

et
te

r 
th

an
 p

la
nn

ed
 b

al
an

ce
 o

n 
its

 g
en

er
al

 fu
nd

 a
nd

 s
et

 a
 

ba
la

nc
ed

 b
ud

ge
t f

or
 2

01
1/

12
. P

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 th

e 
20

11
/1

2 
bu

dg
et

 is
 a

de
qu

at
e 

bu
t c

ha
lle

ng
in

g 
w

ith
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
re

ss
ur

es
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 in
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f 

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
(D

A
S

S
).

 T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 b
ud

ge
t s

ho
rt

fa
ll 

fo
r 

20
12

/1
3 

is
 £

25
.3

m
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 s

ho
rt

ly
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
ho

w
 to

 c
lo

se
 th

e 
ga

p.
 

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 c

ru
ci

al
 to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

is
. 

! 
W

e 
ha

ve
 s

om
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 w

he
th

er
 W

irr
al

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

ho
w

 it
 s

ec
ur

es
 e

co
no

m
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s.

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 p
rio

rit
iz

in
g 

its
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 w
ith

in
 ti

gh
te

r 
bu

dg
et

s,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
by

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 c

os
t r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 h
as

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 
w

ith
in

 it
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

la
n 

w
ith

 p
la

ns
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 fu
rt

he
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, i

t i
s 

no
t a

bl
e 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 it

 is
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
pr

od
uc

tiv
ity

 in
 s

om
e 

ar
ea

s,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

an
d 

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t E

xe
rc

is
e 

(H
E

S
P

E
) 

co
nt

ra
ct

. W
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
re

al
iz

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

H
E

S
P

E
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
in

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
la

st
 tw

o 
an

d 
a 

ha
lf 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 n

ot
 a

bl
e 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 it

 is
 r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 b
et

te
r 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

on
ey

 s
pe

nt
. 

! 
T

he
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 is

su
es

 th
at

 a
re

 im
pa

ct
in

g 
on

 th
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e,
 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

w
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

is
su

es
 in

 D
A

S
S

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
ra

is
ed

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
re

co
rd

in
g 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l o

f a
ss

et
s.

 

Page 34



$"

B
ef

o
re

 I 
co

m
p

le
te

 m
y 

au
d

it
 

I c
o

n
fi

rm
 t

o
 y

o
u

  

I a
sk

 y
o

u
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
o

 m
e 

 
         

 

M
y 

re
po

rt
 in

cl
ud

es
 o

nl
y 

m
at

te
rs

 o
f g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
in

te
re

st
 th

at
 h

av
e 

co
m

e 
to

 m
y 

at
te

nt
io

n 
in

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

m
y 

au
di

t. 
M

y 
au

di
t i

s 
no

t d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

al
l m

at
te

rs
 th

at
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 y

ou
.  

In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce

I c
an

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

B
oa

rd
's

 e
th

ic
al

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
au

di
to

rs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 E
S

 1
 

(r
ev

is
ed

) 
- 

In
te

gr
ity

, O
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
. I

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
re

at
s 

to
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 in

 th
at

 th
e 

so
n 

of
 a

 m
em

be
r 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t t

ea
m

 w
or

ks
 a

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

of
 a

no
th

er
 m

em
be

r 
of

 th
e 

te
am

 h
as

 
ha

d 
so

m
e 

de
al

in
gs

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 la

nd
, b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 p
la

nn
in

g.
  I

 a
pp

lie
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

th
at

 r
ed

uc
ed

 th
es

e 
th

re
at

s 
to

 a
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

ly
 lo

w
 le

ve
l: 

no
 w

or
k 

on
 p

ay
ro

ll 
or

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t b
y 

th
e 

fir
st

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

an
d 

no
 w

or
k 

on
 la

nd
, b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 b
y 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 in

di
vi

du
al

.  

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
's

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

ha
s 

no
t u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
an

y 
no

n-
au

di
t w

or
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

du
rin

g 
20

10
/1

1.

I a
sk

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

to
: 

• 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
m

at
te

rs
 r

ai
se

d 
in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
  

• 
ta

ke
 n

ot
e 

of
 th

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t (

A
pp

en
di

x 
2)

;  

• 
ap

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
le

tte
r 

of
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

al
on

gs
id

e 
th

is
 r

ep
or

t, 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
fo

re
 I 

is
su

e 
m

y 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

; a
nd

 

• 
ag

re
e 

yo
ur

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 (
A

pp
en

di
x 

5)
. 

Page 35



%"

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

O
p

in
io

n

S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e 

sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ry

 
cl

ea
ra

n
ce

 o
f 

a 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 is
su

es
, I

 p
la

n
 t

o
 is

su
e 

an
 a

u
d

it
 r

ep
o

rt
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 a

n
 

u
n

q
u

al
if

ie
d

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

 a
ls

o
 p

la
n

 t
o

 is
su

e 
an

 
u

n
q

u
al

if
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
M

P
F

 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

T
h

e 
ac

co
u

n
ts

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
an

ce
 a

n
d

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 
fo

r 
au

d
it

 c
o

n
ta

in
ed

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
o

r 
o

f 
£6

4.
8m

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ca

sh
 f

lo
w

 
st

at
em

en
t 

an
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

o
th

er
 

er
ro

rs
.

T
h

er
e 

w
er

e 
a 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

er
ro

rs
 in

 t
h

e 
IF

R
S

 r
es

ta
te

m
en

t 
ex

er
ci

se
 a

n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

ve
rs

io
n

s 
w

er
e 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
au

d
it

. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 m
at

te
rs

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ac
co

un
ts

, I
 p

la
n 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 a

ud
it 

re
po

rt
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

co
nt

ai
ns

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 m

y 
dr

af
t 

au
di

t r
ep

or
t. 

 

A
s 

W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 th
e 

ad
m

in
is

te
rin

g 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r 
th

e 
M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

(M
P

F
),

 th
e 

F
un

d’
s 

ac
co

un
ts

 fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

st
at

em
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s.

 T
he

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

R
ep

or
t (

A
G

R
) 

th
at

 is
 b

ei
ng

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
19

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

an
d 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

28
 S

ep
te

m
be

r.
 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

G
R

 a
ls

o 
st

at
es

 th
at

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 m
at

te
rs

 o
n 

th
e 

M
P

F
 

ac
co

un
ts

, I
 p

la
n 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 M
em

be
rs

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 
th

e 
is

su
es

 in
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

A
G

R
 p

rio
r 

to
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
an

d 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l s
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
cc

ou
nt

s.
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 m
at

te
rs

 

A
s 

at
 6

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

 I 
st

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
au

di
t p

ro
ce

du
re

s 

! 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

£9
.5

m
 d

ef
ic

it 
on

 r
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

P
la

nt
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t (
P

P
E

) 
as

se
ts

 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

on
 th

e 
fa

ce
 o

f t
he

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

co
m

e 
an

d 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 S

ta
te

m
en

t (
C

IE
S

) 

! 
fin

al
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 P

P
E

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

 a
nd

 n
on

-a
gr

ee
m

en
t b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

le
dg

er
 a

nd
 a

ss
et

 s
ys

te
m

 

! 
re

vi
ew

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t/s

um
m

ar
y 

ac
co

un
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

ac
co

un
ts

  

! 
fin

al
 c

he
ck

 o
f t

he
 a

m
en

de
d 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t 

! 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f W
ho

le
 o

f G
ov

er
nm

en
t A

cc
ou

nt
s 

(W
G

A
) 

! 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t (

A
G

S
).

 

Page 36



&"

         
 

I w
ill

 u
pd

at
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
t t

he
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
28

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

, b
ut

 m
y 

vi
ew

 is
 

th
at

 it
 is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
th

at
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

se
 is

su
es

 w
ou

ld
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
m

at
er

ia
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 
or

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 m
y 

pl
an

ne
d 

op
in

io
n.

 

E
rr

o
rs

 in
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
  

T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
pr

es
en

te
d 

fo
r 

au
di

t c
on

ta
in

ed
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l e
rr

or
 o

f £
64

.8
m

 to
 th

e 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
 s

ta
te

m
en

t t
ha

t h
as

 
be

en
 a

m
en

de
d 

by
 o

ffi
ce

rs
. T

he
 s

ur
pl

us
 o

n 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

co
m

e 
an

d 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 S

ta
te

m
en

t (
C

IE
S

) 
w

as
 in

co
rr

ec
tly

 e
nt

er
ed

 a
s 

a 
de

fic
it 

in
 th

e 
fir

st
 li

ne
 o

f t
he

 c
as

h 
flo

w
 s

ta
te

m
en

t. 
A

n 
in

co
rr

ec
t b

al
an

ci
ng

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t w

as
 th

en
 e

nt
er

ed
 in

to
 li

ne
 2

 o
f t

he
 s

ta
te

m
en

t. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he

 c
as

h 
flo

w
 

st
at

em
en

t d
id

 n
ot

 r
ec

on
ci

le
 to

 th
e 

ca
sh

 e
qu

iv
al

en
ts

 e
nt

ry
 o

n 
th

e 
fa

ce
 o

f t
he

 b
al

an
ce

 s
he

et
. 

T
he

 e
rr

or
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
am

en
de

d 
an

d 
af

fe
ct

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 a
t A

pp
en

di
x 

2 
(a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

se
t o

ut
 a

t t
he

 s
ec

tio
n 

be
lo

w
 o

n 
qu

al
ity

).
 T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
ov

er
al

l c
ha

ng
e 

to
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
am

en
dm

en
ts

.  

 T
he

re
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

ne
 u

na
dj

us
te

d 
er

ro
r 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
3)

.  

• 
T

he
 d

ef
ic

it 
on

 r
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 P

P
E

 a
ss

et
s 

lin
e 

on
 th

e 
fa

ce
 o

f t
he

 C
IE

S
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

fu
lly

 s
up

po
rt

ed
. T

he
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pa

pe
rs

 a
pp

ea
r 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
ite

m
s 

w
hi

ch
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
ep

or
te

d 
un

de
r 

ne
t c

os
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

M
em

be
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
ns

id
er

 w
he

th
er

 to
 a

m
en

d 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

un
ad

ju
st

ed
 e

rr
or

. I
f y

ou
 d

ec
id

e 
no

t t
o 

am
en

d,
 p

le
as

e 
te

ll 
m

e 
w

hy
 in

 th
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
le

tte
r.

 If
 y

ou
 b

el
ie

ve
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

he
 u

nc
or

re
ct

ed
 e

rr
or

 is
 

im
m

at
er

ia
l, 

pl
ea

se
 r

ef
le

ct
 th

is
 in

 th
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
le

tte
r.

 P
le

as
e 

at
ta

ch
 a

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 th
e 

un
co

rr
ec

te
d 

er
ro

r 
to

 th
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
le

tte
r.

 

  

Page 37



'"

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

W
ir

ra
l C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 A

n
n

u
al

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

ar
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
t 

m
ea

n
s 

b
y 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 
it

s
st

ew
ar

d
sh

ip
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 f

u
n

d
s.

 A
s 

C
o

u
n

ci
l m

em
b

er
s 

yo
u

 h
av

e 
fi

n
al

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
es

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
t 

is
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
th

at
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 m
y 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

b
ef

o
re

 y
o

u
 a

d
o

p
t 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
A

n
n

u
al

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 S
ta

te
m

en
t.

 
In

 p
la

nn
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t I

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 a

re
as

 o
f j

ud
ge

m
en

t t
ha

t I
 h

av
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f m
y 

au
di

t. 

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
an

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

K
ey

 A
u

d
it

 R
is

k 
 

F
in

d
in

g
: 

1.
 IF

R
S

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
  

C
ou

nc
il 

ra
te

d 
at

 a
m

be
r 

in
 la

st
 IF

R
S

 s
ur

ve
y 

bu
t r

ed
 o

n 
le

as
es

. P
ro

gr
es

s 
st

ill
 b

eh
in

d 
sc

he
du

le
. R

is
k 

th
at

 2
01

0/
11

 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

re
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 m
is

st
at

ed
 a

s 
ne

w
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 o

r 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
co

rr
ec

tly
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 T

hi
s 

is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ris
k.

 

 W
irr

al
, l

ik
e 

so
m

e 
ot

he
r 

co
un

ci
ls

, h
as

 s
tr

ug
gl

ed
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

ne
w

 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 (
IF

R
S

) 
an

d 
di

d 
no

t m
ee

t i
ts

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n 
m

ile
st

on
es

 o
r 

de
ad

lin
es

. T
he

re
 w

er
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 n
um

be
r 

of
 e

rr
or

s 
in

 th
e 

IF
R

S
 r

es
ta

te
m

en
t 

ex
er

ci
se

 a
nd

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 v
er

si
on

s 
w

er
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
fo

r 
au

di
t. 

T
hi

s 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 o
ur

 r
es

ta
te

m
en

t 
re

vi
ew

 e
xt

en
di

ng
 fr

om
 J

an
ua

ry
 to

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

1.
 T

he
 m

at
er

ia
l a

nd
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
IF

R
S

 r
es

ta
te

m
en

t i
nc

lu
de

d:
 

! 
U

p 
to

 2
00

9/
10

, a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
t p

ro
pe

rt
y 

as
se

ts
 w

er
e 

va
lu

ed
 a

t £
1 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

m
et

ho
d 

us
ed

 b
ei

ng
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

pe
pp

er
co

rn
 r

en
ts

. O
n 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

se
 a

ss
et

s 
it 

w
as

 fo
un

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 u
se

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 C

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
va

lu
ed

 a
t e

xi
st

in
g 

us
e.

 T
hi

s 
is

su
e 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 £

4.
15

m
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l £
8m

 r
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

an
d 

am
en

dm
en

t o
f a

ss
et

 v
al

ue
s 

un
de

r 
IF

R
S

.
! 

N
ot

e 
48

 g
iv

es
 th

e 
re

ad
er

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 d
ue

 
to

 IF
R

S
. T

hi
s 

no
te

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 fr

om
 th

e 
ve

rs
io

n 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 s
up

pl
ie

d 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f t
im

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
IF

R
S

 r
es

ta
te

m
en

t.
! 

C
ap

ita
l g

ra
nt

s 
un

ap
pl

ie
d 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 £
2.

2m
 a

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

as
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 s
up

pl
y 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 th
es

e 
gr

an
ts

.
! 

C
as

h 
an

d 
ca

sh
 e

qu
iv

al
en

ts
 w

er
e 

am
en

de
d 

by
 £

3.
7m

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

to
 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

ve
rs

io
ns

. 

Page 38



("

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

 K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

ks
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d

K
ey

 A
u

d
it

 R
is

ks
 

 
F

in
d

in
g

: 

2.
 C

h
an

g
e 

in
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

ha
ng

es
 to

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
fo

r 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n,
 A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e.

  R
is

k 
th

at
 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
re

du
ce

s 
le

ve
l o

f s
up

er
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 

hi
gh

 le
ve

l c
on

tr
ol

s.
 

 W
e 

fo
un

d 
no

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 fa
ilu

re
s 

in
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

l c
on

tr
ol

s 
bu

t t
he

 le
ve

l o
f 

er
ro

rs
 in

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 fo
r 

au
di

t i
nd

ic
at

es
 th

at
 th

er
e 

w
as

 
lim

ite
d 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

F
in

an
ce

. 

3.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 p
re

ss
u

re
s 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 c

en
tr

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

re
ss

ur
es

. I
nc

re
as

ed
 r

is
k 

of
 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
is

re
po

rt
in

g 
(c

on
si

de
re

d 
in

 fr
au

d 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t)
 

 

 W
e 

fo
un

d 
no

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 a
ny

 fr
au

du
le

nt
 fi

na
nc

ia
l m

is
-r

ep
or

tin
g.

 

4.
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 r

ed
u

n
d

an
cy

 (
V

R
) 

 
A

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

um
be

r 
of

 s
ta

ff 
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 le

av
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t d

ur
in

g 
20

10
/1

1 
an

d 
20

11
/1

2.
 R

is
ks

 th
at

 k
ey

 s
ta

ff 
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

le
av

e 
th

er
eb

y 
pu

tti
ng

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

au
di

t, 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 V

R
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

ge
ne

ra
te

s 
sa

vi
ng

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ne
ed

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

in
 2

01
0/

11
 (

e.
g.

 h
ow

 w
ill

 s
ev

er
an

ce
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 b
e 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
an

d 
ul

tim
at

el
y 

fu
nd

ed
 a

s 
no

t i
n 

20
10

/1
1 

bu
dg

et
) 

   

 S
om

e 
ke

y 
fin

an
ce

 s
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 le

ft 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

iv
er

te
d 

by
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 a
nd

 in
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 w
or

k 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
V

R
 

ex
er

ci
se

. W
e 

ha
ve

 n
o 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

tr
ea

tm
en

t o
f t

he
 V

R
 

in
 2

01
0/

11
. 

Page 39



)"

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

ks
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d

K
ey

 A
u

d
it

 R
is

ks
 

 
F

in
d

in
g

: 

5.
 C

lo
se

d
o

w
n

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
  

W
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

an
d 

ac
co

un
ts

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
on

 ti
m

e,
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
ss

ue
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

20
09

/1
0 

w
er

e 
no

t r
es

ol
ve

d 
un

til
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
la

te
 in

 th
e 

au
di

t. 
R

is
k 

th
at

 if
 r

ep
ea

te
d 

in
 2

01
0/

11
 th

e 
au

di
t w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
s 

au
di

t 
re

so
ur

ci
ng

 w
in

do
w

 is
 m

is
se

d 
(a

ud
it 

te
am

 ‘o
ns

ite
’ p

rio
r 

to
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
an

d 
ac

co
un

ts
) 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

l i
ss

ue
s 

ar
e 

no
t r

es
ol

ve
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 o
pi

ni
on

 d
ea

dl
in

e 

 T
he

 d
ea

dl
in

e 
fo

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
by

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 w

as
 

no
t m

et
. W

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
w

er
e 

no
t p

re
se

nt
ed

 fo
r 

au
di

t t
o 

th
e 

de
ad

lin
e,

 
so

m
e 

w
er

e 
no

t t
o 

st
an

da
rd

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
w

as
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

so
m

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s.
 T

he
 IF

R
S

 r
es

ta
te

m
en

t e
xe

rc
is

e 
w

as
 n

ot
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 to
 

de
ad

lin
e.

 T
hi

s 
ha

s 
ha

d 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

au
di

t r
es

ou
rc

e 
pr

es
su

re
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

su
m

m
er

. T
he

re
 a

re
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 is

su
es

 a
t t

he
 d

at
e 

of
 

w
rit

in
g 

th
is

 R
ep

or
t b

ut
 th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
l. 

6.
 M

an
u

al
 e

n
tr

ie
s 

in
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
  

W
ea

kn
es

se
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f j

ou
rn

al
s,

 o
ff 

le
dg

er
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
, 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 a
ss

et
 r

ec
or

ds
. 

 T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
ar

is
in

g 
bu

t o
ffi

ce
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
ns

id
er

 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
le

dg
er

 is
 b

ei
ng

 u
se

d 
to

 m
ax

im
um

 e
ffe

ct
. 

7.
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 b

en
ef

it
s 

(H
B

) 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 g

ra
n

t 
in

co
m

e 
 

O
ur

 d
ea

dl
in

e 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

be
ne

fit
s 

su
bs

id
y 

cl
ai

m
 is

 a
fte

r 
ou

r 
op

in
io

n 
de

ad
lin

e 
on

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

. 
 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 te
st

in
g 

on
 th

e 
H

B
 c

la
im

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 u

s 
w

ith
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
m

at
er

ia
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

os
iti

on
 

8.
 P

re
vi

o
u

s 
ye

ar
 is

su
es

  

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 1

9 
no

n-
tr

iv
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
3 

m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
) 

in
 th

e 
20

09
/1

0 
au

di
t –

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 r

eo
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

nd
 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

te
st

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

. I
ss

ue
s 

ar
is

in
g 

in
cl

ud
ed

: 

!
 

P
F

I s
ch

oo
ls

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 fo

un
da

tio
n 

st
at

us
 

!
 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

ga
in

s 
an

d 
lo

ss
es

 (
S

T
R

G
L)

  

!
 

B
al

an
ce

 s
he

et
 a

ss
et

s 

!
 

S
er

vi
ce

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
na

ly
si

s 
on

 th
e 

in
co

m
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

!
 

P
F

I -
 li

fe
cy

cl
e 

co
st

s 

N
on

-c
ur

re
nt

 a
ss

et
s 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
n 

ar
ea

 o
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
on

ce
rn

 

!
 

P
F

I s
ch

oo
ls

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 fo

un
da

tio
n 

st
at

us
 –

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
2 

P
F

I s
ch

oo
ls

 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
in

 2
01

0/
11

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
pe

rly
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r;

 
as

se
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

is
po

se
d 

of
 b

ut
 th

e 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

re
m

ai
n.

 

!
 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

ga
in

s 
an

d 
lo

ss
es

 (
S

T
R

G
L)

 –
 th

is
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ep
la

ce
d 

un
de

r 
IF

R
S

 b
ut

 in
te

rn
al

 in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
re

se
rv

es
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

!
 

B
al

an
ce

 s
he

et
 a

ss
et

s 
– 

th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
an

 a
re

a 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

on
ce

rn
 

ag
ai

n 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f v
eh

ic
le

s,
 p

la
nt

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t (

V
P

E
) 

Page 40



*"

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

ks
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d

K
ey

 A
u

d
it

 R
is

ks
 

 
F

in
d

in
g

: 

!
 

B
ad

 d
eb

t p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
co

un
ci

l t
ax

. 
!

 
S

er
vi

ce
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

na
ly

si
s 

on
 th

e 
in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 a
cc

ou
nt

 –
 

no
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
ss

ue
s 

ar
is

in
g 

!
 

P
F

I l
ife

cy
cl

e 
co

st
s 

– 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
do

es
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 li

fe
cy

cl
e 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

lis
ed

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 a

nd
 th

is
 is

 
no

te
d 

be
lo

w
 u

nd
er

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 

!
 

B
ad

 d
eb

t p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
co

un
ci

l t
ax

 –
 th

is
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
es

tim
at

e 
is

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e.

 
9.

 U
n

ad
ju

st
ed

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

20
09

/1
0 

au
d

it
 

T
he

 v
al

ue
 o

f u
na

dj
us

te
d 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
us

t b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ny

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
20

10
/1

1 
au

di
t. 

I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f u
na

dj
us

te
d 

ite
m

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
20

09
-1

0 
au

di
t o

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t a
ud

it 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

no
ne

 o
f t

he
 it

em
s 

ha
ve

 a
 d

ire
ct

 a
ffe

ct
 o

n 
re

po
rt

ed
 b

al
an

ce
s 

in
 2

01
0-

11
. H

ow
ev

er
, u

na
dj

us
te

d 
ite

m
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 n

o 
va

lu
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ed
 d

ue
 to

 is
su

es
 o

f c
on

tr
ol

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

re
-o

cc
ur

re
d 

in
 

th
is

 a
ud

it 
in

cl
ud

e 
 

! 
a 

la
ck

 o
f d

et
ai

le
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f P

F
I l

ife
cy

cl
e 

co
st

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 a
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 c

ap
ita

lis
ed

. W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il 
ac

co
un

ta
nt

s 
ha

ve
 s

et
 u

p 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 th

e 
P

F
I s

up
pl

ie
rs

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 is

su
e 

fo
r 

20
11

-1
2.

 

! 
ac

cu
ra

te
 r

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
an

d 
de

-r
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

P
E

 a
ss

et
s 

! 
in

te
rn

al
 in

co
ns

is
te

nc
ie

s 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

re
se

rv
es

 
10

. A
ss

et
 r

ec
o

rd
s 

W
ea

kn
es

se
s 

w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

au
di

ts
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
as

se
t r

ec
or

ds
. I

f n
o 

ac
tio

n 
is

 ta
ke

n 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 r
is

k 
of

 m
is

st
at

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s:

 

- 
ex

is
te

nc
e 

of
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 P
la

nt
 a

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t (
V

P
E

) 

- 
ca

pi
ta

lis
at

io
n 

of
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 o

n 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
ss

et
s 

V
P

E
 -

 w
e 

st
ill

 h
av

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f V

P
E

 a
nd

 th
e 

is
su

es
 a

re
 

se
t o

ut
 b

el
ow

.  

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

ss
et

s 
- 

re
co

rd
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 c

ap
ita

lis
at

io
n 

of
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

 
20

10
/1

1 
ha

ve
 im

pr
ov

ed
 b

ut
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 la
ck

 o
f h

is
to

ric
al

 r
ec

or
ds

.  

C
om

m
un

ity
 a

ss
et

s 
– 

la
nd

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 
IF

R
S

 r
es

ta
te

m
en

t e
xe

rc
is

e 
an

d 
w

e 
ha

ve
 n

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

ce
rn

s.
  

Page 41



!+
"

K
ey

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

ks
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d

K
ey

 A
u

d
it

 R
is

ks
 

 
F

in
d

in
g

: 

- 
co

m
pl

et
en

es
s 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
ss

et
s.

 
O

th
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

ss
et

s 
ar

e 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

m
at

er
ia

l a
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ne
ed

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 in
ve

nt
or

ie
s 

ar
e 

up
 to

 d
at

e.
 

11
. A

n
n

u
al

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

(A
G

S
) 

C
on

ce
rn

s 
th

at
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
t d

id
 n

ot
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 C

IP
F

A
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

w
as

 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 o

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

W
e 

ar
e 

st
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

th
is

 a
nd

 w
ill

 u
pd

at
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
t t

he
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 2
8 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
11

.

" " " R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

va
lu

ed
 a

nd
 r

ep
or

te
d 

on
 a

 c
on

si
st

en
t, 

su
pp

or
te

d 
ba

si
s 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 IF

R
S

 c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

ns
. 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

ga
in

s 
an

d 
lo

ss
es

 r
ep

or
te

d 
in

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
le

dg
er

 a
re

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

po
rt

ed
 c

on
si

st
en

tly
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 r
es

er
ve

s.
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

pl
an

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
co

nt
ro

l o
ve

r 
th

e 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

of
 li

fe
cy

cl
e 

co
st

s 
in

 P
F

I s
ch

em
es

 a
re

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
re

d 

" " " " " " " "Page 42



!!
"

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 
in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

N
o

n
-c

u
rr

en
t 

as
se

ts
 r

em
ai

n
s 

a 
si

g
n

if
ic

an
t 

co
n

ce
rn

. 

T
h

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
er

ro
rs

 in
 t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 in

d
ic

at
es

 t
h

at
 q

u
al

it
y 

as
su

ra
n

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 li
m

it
ed

 
 

T
he

se
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
ar

e 
on

ly
 th

os
e 

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

ur
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

th
at

 a
re

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

 a
m

 n
ot

 e
xp

re
ss

in
g 

an
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

.  

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l i

ss
u

es
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

ea
kn

es
s 

P
o

te
n

ti
al

 e
ff

ec
t:

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

ti
o

n
: 

D
ep

o
t 

eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

W
e 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 d

ep
ot

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t h

ad
 

no
t b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
as

se
t 

re
gi

st
er

 o
r 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t. 

 A
ss

et
s 

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
l c

ha
rg

es
 

un
de

rs
ta

te
d.

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

po
lic

y 
no

t c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
. 

 N
on

e.
 

 

V
eh

ic
le

s

W
e 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 w

e 
co

ul
d 

no
t t

ra
ce

 
so

m
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
gr

itt
in

g 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

ba
ck

 to
 th

e 
as

se
t r

eg
is

te
r.

 

W
e 

ca
nn

ot
 c

on
cl

ud
e 

w
he

th
er

 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
co

rr
ec

tly
. T

he
re

 is
 a

 p
os

si
bi

lit
y 

th
at

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
l c

ha
rg

es
 

un
de

rs
ta

te
d.

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

po
lic

y 
no

t c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
. 

S
til

l r
ev

ie
w

in
g.

 
 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n

W
e 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 s

om
e 

as
se

t l
iv

es
 in

 
ou

r 
sa

m
pl

e 
co

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
ag

re
ed

 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
as

se
t r

eg
is

te
r 

an
d 

th
e 

va
lu

er
s 

re
po

rt
.

 P
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 in
co

rr
ec

t c
ap

ita
l 

ch
ar

ge
s 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 a

nd
 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

IE
S

 a
nd

 
ba

la
nc

e 
sh

ee
t. 

F
or

 2
01

0/
11

 W
M

B
C

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t f

ur
th

er
 w

or
k 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
to

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 th

is
 y

ea
r 

w
as

 tr
iv

ia
l a

t 
£3

6k
. F

or
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 th

e 
va

lu
er

s 
re

po
rt

 a
nd

 a
ss

et
 r

eg
is

te
r 

as
se

t l
ife

 
fig

ur
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

nc
ile

d 
be

fo
re

 
pr

od
uc

in
g 

th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

Page 43



!#
"

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l i

ss
u

es
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

ea
kn

es
s 

P
o

te
n

ti
al

 e
ff

ec
t:

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

ti
o

n
: 

Q
A

 o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 

T
he

re
 w

as
 li

m
ite

d 
qu

al
ity

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

M
at

er
ia

l e
rr

or
s 

in
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 

In
cr

ea
se

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 in

 fu
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

. 
 

 R
el

at
ed

 P
ar

ti
es

T
he

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
 r

el
y 

on
 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

of
 in

te
re

st
 fo

rm
s 

be
in

g 
re

tu
rn

ed
 b

y 
of

fic
er

s 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
. 

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

4 
cu

rr
en

t m
em

be
r 

no
n 

re
tu

rn
s,

 d
es

pi
te

 c
ha

si
ng

 b
y 

fin
an

ce
, 

an
d 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

in
co

m
pl

et
e 

re
tu

rn
s 

fo
r 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 le
ft 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
.

R
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
 c

ou
ld

 
be

 in
co

m
pl

et
e.

 W
M

B
C

 m
ay

 b
e 

un
aw

ar
e 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 b

od
ie

s,
 

su
pp

lie
rs

 o
r 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s.

 

W
e 

ha
ve

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 
th

e 
re

la
te

d 
pa

rt
y 

an
d 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

in
te

re
st

 p
ro

ce
ss

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 ti

m
in

g 
an

d 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 a

n 
up

 to
 d

at
e 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

is
 a

 fo
rm

al
 p

ar
t o

f l
ea

vi
ng

 
a 

po
st

. 

P
F

I l
if

e 
cy

cl
e 

co
st

s 

P
F

I l
ife

cy
cl

e 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
lis

ed
 a

s 
th

ey
 a

re
 in

cu
rr

ed
. O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

er
e 

ab
le

 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 to
ta

l c
os

ts
 a

nd
 a

 
br

ea
kd

ow
n 

of
 w

or
ks

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t, 

bu
t 

co
ul

d 
no

t l
in

k 
th

e 
tw

o 
to

ge
th

er
.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

do
es

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 li
fe

cy
cl

e 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
lis

ed
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

. 

A
 m

ee
tin

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

et
 u

p 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 
th

is
 w

ith
 th

e 
P

F
I p

ar
tn

er
. 

Page 44



!$
"

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

V
eh

ic
le

s,
 p

la
nt

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t (

V
P

E
) 

– 
st

re
ng

th
en

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
ov

er
 v

er
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 V
P

E
 a

ss
et

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ve
rif

yi
ng

 
as

se
ts

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
st

er
 e

xi
st

 a
nd

 a
re

 in
 u

se
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
th

at
 a

ss
et

s 
in

 u
se

 a
re

 r
ec

or
de

d 
in

 th
e 

re
gi

st
er

. 

Q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 –
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
co

nt
ro

ls
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

er
ro

rs
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 
m

in
im

is
ed

; t
he

re
 m

us
t b

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
ro

bu
st

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
by

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 

           

Page 45



!%
"

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts

W
e 

h
av

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

ar
ea

s 
w

h
er

e 
p

o
lic

ie
s 

w
er

e 
n

o
t 

co
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
is

cl
o

su
re

s 
w

er
e 

n
o

t 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
. 

       
 

I c
on

si
de

r 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 y
ou

r 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

, a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s,

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

.  

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

a 
to

ta
l o

f 5
3 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

: 1
4 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 v
al

ue
s 

in
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
no

te
s,

 3
9 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
an

d 
ro

un
di

ng
 c

or
re

ct
io

ns
. T

he
re

 w
er

e 
al

so
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 e

di
tin

g 
am

en
dm

en
ts

. T
he

se
 a

re
 th

e 
m

or
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 is

su
es

 I 
w

an
t t

o 
ra

is
e 

w
ith

 y
ou

.  
 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
, p

o
lic

ie
s,

 e
st

im
at

es
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
s 

Is
su

e 
F

in
d

in
g

s 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s:

 

D
is

cl
os

ur
e 

no
te

 1
3 

– 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

pl
an

t a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t –

 m
ov

em
en

t 
on

 b
al

an
ce

s.
 

T
hi

s 
no

te
 w

as
 n

ot
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

en
tr

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t w
as

 c
or

re
ct

, t
he

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 th
e 

C
IE

S
, M

ov
em

en
t i

n 
R

es
er

ve
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t (

M
IR

S
),

 th
e 

C
as

h 
F

lo
w

 S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 N

ot
es

 1
3,

 8
 a

nd
 2

3.
 T

hi
s 

w
as

 d
ue

 to
 a

 
va

rie
ty

 o
f e

rr
or

s,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
in

 im
pa

irm
en

t, 
re

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

pr
ec

ia
tio

n.
   

 

D
is

cl
os

ur
e 

no
te

 4
8 

– 
Im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

IF
R

S
) 

T
hi

s 
no

te
 w

as
 n

ot
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

en
tr

ie
s 

w
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

re
st

at
em

en
t e

xe
rc

is
e.

 

D
is

cl
os

ur
e 

no
te

 3
2 

– 
O

ffi
ce

rs
’ 

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 

 

T
hi

s 
no

te
 o

rig
in

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

co
rr

ec
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ba

nd
in

gs
 

on
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
t. 

 

Page 46



!&
"

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
, p

o
lic

ie
s,

 e
st

im
at

es
 a

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
s 

Is
su

e 
F

in
d

in
g

s 
an

d
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s:

 

V
eh

ic
le

s,
 p

la
nt

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

fo
r 

ca
pi

ta
lis

at
io

n 
of

 a
ss

et
s 

w
as

 n
ot

 
fo

llo
w

ed
 in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f s

om
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
gr

itt
in

g 
ve

hi
cl

es
. 

 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
le

as
es

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t d
et

ai
le

d 
w

or
k 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
un

de
rly

in
g 

le
as

es
 in

 
on

go
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. W

hi
le

 n
ot

 m
at

er
ia

l, 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
di

d 
fin

d 
so

m
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 le
as

es
 th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
la

ss
ifi

ed
 a

s 
op

er
at

in
g 

le
as

es
, b

ut
 

di
sc

lo
se

d 
no

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
le

as
es

 in
 th

e 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 n
ot

e 
to

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

. 

Page 47



!'
"

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

W
e 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
ie

s 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

 d
u

e 
to

 t
h

e 
la

te
n

es
s 

o
f 

th
e 

IF
R

S
 

re
st

at
em

en
t 

ex
er

ci
se

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
. W

o
rk

in
g

 
p

ap
er

s 
w

er
e 

al
so

 la
te

, n
o

t 
co

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 s

o
m

e 
w

er
e 

n
o

t 
to

 
st

an
d

ar
d

         
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
d

if
fi

cu
lt

ie
s 

en
co

u
n

te
re

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

di
d 

no
t c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

IF
R

S
 r

es
ta

te
m

en
t e

xe
rc

is
e 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 it

s 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n,
 s

om
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 w

er
e 

no
t r

es
ta

te
d 

an
d 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 u
s 

fo
r 

re
vi

ew
 p

rio
r 

to
 r

ec
ei

pt
 o

f t
he

 2
01

0/
11

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
w

e 
al

so
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 v
er

si
on

s 
of

 th
e 

re
st

at
ed

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 w

e 
w

er
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 r

ev
ie

w
. W

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 th

e 
fir

st
 e

le
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
re

st
at

ed
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 o
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
1 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 o

ur
 q

ue
rie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

nt
 th

at
 w

e 
w

er
e 

st
ill

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
ou

t o
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
au

di
t a

nd
 th

is
 

im
pa

ct
ed

 o
n 

ou
r 

tim
et

ab
le

 a
nd

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

au
di

t. 
 

T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
w

er
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 fo
r 

au
di

t o
n 

th
e 

ev
en

in
g 

of
 4

 J
ul

y 
20

11
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
fte

r 
th

e 
de

ad
lin

e.
 D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 th

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

A
ud

it 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 w

er
e 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

th
e 

20
11

 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 m

us
t a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 b

y 
30

 J
un

e 
(p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
m

em
be

rs
 

w
er

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
pp

ro
ve

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 b
y 

30
 J

un
e)

. P
rio

r 
to

 th
is

 c
ha

ng
e,

 o
ur

 o
rig

in
al

 d
ea

dl
in

e 
fo

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 w
as

 2
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

1 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 c
ha

ng
ed

 to
 3

0 
Ju

ne
 2

01
1.

 T
hi

s 
la

te
 s

ta
rt

 to
 th

e 
au

di
t h

ad
 

so
m

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ou
r 

tim
et

ab
le

 a
nd

 r
es

ou
rc

es
.  

T
he

 d
ea

dl
in

e 
fo

r 
pr

es
en

tin
g 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

w
as

 n
ot

 m
et

 a
nd

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
no

t c
om

pl
et

e.
 D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

e 
ag

re
ed

 
w

hi
ch

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 (
re

vi
se

d 
de

ad
lin

e 
of

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

1)
. T

he
 fi

rs
t w

or
ki

ng
 

pa
pe

rs
 w

er
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 o
n 

7 
Ju

ly
 a

nd
 th

e 
tr

ia
l b

al
an

ce
 (

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
w

e 
ar

e 
au

di
tin

g 
th

e 
co

rr
ec

t f
ig

ur
es

 a
nd

 
to

 p
ic

k 
te

st
in

g 
sa

m
pl

es
) 

w
as

 n
ot

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
un

til
 1

3 
Ju

ly
 2

01
1.

 W
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

fo
r 

gr
ou

p 
ac

co
un

ts
 w

er
e 

st
ill

 b
ei

ng
 

re
qu

es
te

d 
on

 1
7 

A
ug

us
t 2

01
1.

 A
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

w
er

e 
la

te
 a

nd
 in

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

er
e 

no
t a

bl
e 

to
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

ou
r 

au
di

t e
ffi

ci
en

tly
 a

nd
 it

 a
ls

o 
ha

d 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

ou
r 

tim
et

ab
le

 a
nd

 r
es

ou
rc

es
.  

T
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

w
as

 v
ar

ia
bl

e.
 W

he
n 

w
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 th
em

, m
os

t w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

w
er

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 

al
th

ou
gh

 s
om

e 
w

er
e 

no
t t

o 
st

an
da

rd
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

no
n-

cu
rr

en
t a

ss
et

s.
 W

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
fo

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
fu

nd
 w

er
e 

go
od

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
ea

rly
 in

 th
e 

au
di

t. 

Page 48



!(
"

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
s 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

tim
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 ti
m

e 
bu

ilt
 in

to
 it

, t
o 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 a
vo

id
ab

le
 e

rr
or

s 
in

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 fo
r 

au
di

t. 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

ar
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
es

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
re

co
nc

ile
 to

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

, s
up

po
rt

in
g 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

ag
re

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 g

iv
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

gr
ea

te
r 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 a

cc
ur

at
e,

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

tim
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
au

di
t a

nd
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
of

 q
ue

rie
s 

to
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
au

di
t. 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
m

at
te

rs
 t

h
at

 w
er

e 
d

is
cu

ss
ed

 o
r 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 c
o

rr
es

p
o

n
d

en
ce

 w
it

h
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

, o
ffi

ce
rs

 k
ep

t m
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f t

he
 p

la
ns

 fo
r 

an
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

th
e 

re
du

nd
an

cy
 e

xe
rc

is
e.

 W
e 

ra
is

ed
 

no
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

tr
ea

tm
en

t i
n 

20
10

/1
1.

 

O
th

er
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

m
at

te
rs

 r
el

ev
an

t 
to

 t
h

e 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 p

la
nn

in
g 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

n 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t/S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 A

cc
ou

nt
s 

do
cu

m
en

t f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

au
di

t. 
W

e 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

is
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

it 
is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

L
et

te
r 

o
f 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  

B
ef

or
e 

I i
ss

ue
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 a

ud
iti

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 r
eq

ui
re

 m
e 

to
 a

sk
 y

ou
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
or

 w
rit

te
n 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 

ab
ou

t y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. A

pp
en

di
x 

6 
co

nt
ai

ns
 th

e 
dr

af
t l

et
te

r 
of

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n.

 

  

Page 49



!)
"

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 

I h
av

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 

yo
ur

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 in
 y

ou
r 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 
an

d 
pl

an
 to

 is
su

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 
op

in
io

n.
 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

is
ks

 a
nd

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
, a

nd
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

a 
st

ab
le

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 th
at

 
en

ab
le

s 
it 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 o
pe

ra
te

 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

, a
lth

ou
gh

 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 c

ru
ci

al
 to

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 

re
si

lie
nc

e.
 

     
 

I a
m

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 c

o
n

cl
u

d
e 

w
h

et
h

er
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g
 

ec
o

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
in

 it
s 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
. T

h
is

 is
 k

n
o

w
n

 a
s 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
.  

I a
ss

es
s 

yo
ur

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
ga

in
st

 tw
o 

cr
ite

ria
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. M
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 tw
o 

ar
ea

s 
is

 s
et

 o
ut

 b
el

ow
.  

I h
av

e 
so

m
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 w

he
th

er
 W

irr
al

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

. I
 p

la
n 

to
 is

su
e 

a 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 o

pi
ni

on
 th

at
 d

ra
w

s 
at

te
nt

io
n 

to
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
 H

E
S

P
E

 c
on

tr
ac

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 

co
nt

ro
l i

ss
ue

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 w

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
co

rd
in

g 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l o
f a

ss
et

s.
 M

y 
op

in
io

n 
w

ill
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, c
on

cl
ud

e 
th

at
  w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 th

es
e 

m
at

te
rs

, I
 a

m
 s

at
is

fie
d 

th
at

 in
 a

ll 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
es

pe
ct

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
an

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

 

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

 
F

in
d

in
g

s:

1.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
  

T
h

e 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

 h
as

 p
ro

p
er

 
ar

ra
n

g
em

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 
se

cu
re

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

.  
    

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 
re

si
lie

nc
e.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
its

 s
av

in
g 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 
ta

rg
et

s 
in

 2
01

0/
11

, a
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

re
du

nd
an

cy
 

sc
he

m
e 

th
at

 w
as

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

, t
he

 ‘C
ha

ng
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e’

 w
as

 n
ot

 o
n 

co
ur

se
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
av

in
gs

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 a

lth
ou

gh
 s

av
in

gs
 w

er
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 2

01
0/

11
. T

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

po
si

tio
n 

w
as

 m
on

ito
re

d 
cl

os
el

y 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 b
y 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

bu
dg

et
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l f

in
is

he
d 

th
e 

ye
ar

 w
ith

 a
 b

et
te

r 
th

an
 

pl
an

ne
d 

ba
la

nc
e 

on
 it

s 
ge

ne
ra

l f
un

d 
an

d 
se

t a
 b

al
an

ce
d 

bu
dg

et
 fo

r 
20

11
/1

2.
  

"

Page 50



!*
"

" V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
an

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

 

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

 
F

in
d

in
g

s:

F
oc

us
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1:
 

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ha

s 
ro

bu
st

 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 

m
an

ag
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
is

ks
 

an
d 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

, a
nd

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
a 

st
ab

le
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 th

at
 

en
ab

le
s 

it 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
 

fo
r 

th
e 

fo
re

se
ea

bl
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
on

 th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

bu
dg

et
 is

 a
de

qu
at

e 
bu

t c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 p
re

di
ct

in
g 

a 
ge

ne
ra

l f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e 
of

 £
7.

4m
 (

£1
1.

5m
 

at
 J

un
e 

20
11

).
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 a
re

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

re
ss

ur
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 in

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
(D

A
S

S
) 

w
he

re
 th

e 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

ov
er

sp
en

d 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 £

7m
 (

A
ug

us
t 2

01
1)

. 
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

le
ve

l o
f b

al
an

ce
s 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 

th
is

 fo
r 

20
11

/1
2,

 th
ey

 c
an

no
t b

e 
re

lie
d 

on
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

. L
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 w
ill

 b
e 

vi
ta

l t
o 

en
su

re
 a

 b
al

an
ce

d 
bu

dg
et

 in
 2

01
2/

13
 a

nd
 th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
ev

en
 m

or
e 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
re

tir
em

en
t o

f t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 d
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t o

f a
 n

ew
 

di
re

ct
or

. 
 T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 b

ud
ge

t s
ho

rt
fa

ll 
fo

r 
20

12
/1

3 
is

 £
25

.3
m

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
sh

or
tly

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

ho
w

 to
 c

lo
se

 th
e 

ga
p.

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 c

ru
ci

al
 to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

es
ili

en
ce

.  
 

Page 51



#+
"

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

I h
av

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 

yo
u

r 
ar

ra
n

g
em

en
ts

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 in
 y

o
u

r 
u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

.

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l i
s 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
si

n
g

 it
s 

re
so

u
rc

es
 w

it
h

in
 t

ig
h

te
r 

b
u

d
g

et
s,

 f
o

r 
ex

am
p

le
 b

y 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g
 c

o
st

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

s 
b

u
t 

is
 

n
o

t 
ab

le
 t

o
 d

em
o

n
st

ra
te

 t
h

at
 it

 is
 

im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y 

in
 s

o
m

e 
ar

ea
s,

 f
o

r 
ex

am
p

le
 in

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o

f 
th

e 
H

E
S

P
E

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t.

 
       

 

" V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
an

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

co
n

ti
n

u
ed

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

 
F

in
d

in
g

s:

2.
 S

ec
u

ri
n

g
 e

co
n

o
m

y 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 
an

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 

T
h

e 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

 h
as

 p
ro

p
er

 
ar

ra
n

g
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
ch

al
le

n
g

in
g

 
h

o
w

 it
 s

ec
u

re
s 

ec
o

n
o

m
y,

 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s.
 

F
oc

us
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1:
  

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
is

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

its
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 ti
gh

te
r 

bu
dg

et
s,

 
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
by

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 c

os
t 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 b

y 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
pr

od
uc

tiv
ity

. 
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
om

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

bo
ut

 w
he

th
er

 W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
pr

op
er

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 s
ec

ur
es

 e
co

no
m

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s.

 A
lth

ou
gh

 c
os

t r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 b
ei

ng
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it 
is

 n
ot

 c
le

ar
 w

he
th

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 p
ro

du
ct

iv
ity

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 im

pr
ov

ed
. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 w

ith
in

 it
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

P
la

n 
an

d 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

pl
an

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 fu
rt

he
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. F
or

 
ex

am
pl

e,
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ev
ie

w
 in

 D
A

S
S

 is
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
ts

 to
 c

ar
e 

ho
m

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

to
 b

rin
g 

ba
ck

 to
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
se

ct
or

 a
nd

 p
ut

tin
g 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
go

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d.

  
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 a
re

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 C
ha

ng
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

‘re
d’

 (
at

 J
un

e 
20

11
),

 s
uc

h 
as

 L
oo

ke
d 

af
te

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n,

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s,
  D

is
po

sa
l o

f A
ss

et
s,

 O
ffi

ce
 R

at
io

na
lis

at
io

n 
an

d 
so

m
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he

re
 a

re
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 th

at
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 ‘r
ed

’, 
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
th

e 
in

di
ca

to
r 

fo
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 is
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
 ta

rg
et

.  
   

Page 52



#!
"

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
an

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

co
n

ti
n

u
ed

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

 
F

in
d

in
g

s:

W
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

re
al

iz
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

an
d 

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t E

xe
rc

is
e 

(H
E

S
P

E
) 

co
nt

ra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 n

ow
 

be
en

 in
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

la
st

 tw
o 

an
d 

a 
ha

lf 
ye

ar
s 

an
d 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 n
ot

 a
bl

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 a

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 it

 is
 r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 b
et

te
r 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

on
ey

 s
pe

nt
. 

R
ep

o
rt

 b
y 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

 
T

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
m

e 
to

 r
ep

or
t b

y 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

w
he

re
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t m
at

te
rs

 c
om

e 
to

 m
y 

at
te

nt
io

n,
 w

hi
ch

 I 
co

ns
id

er
 to

 b
e 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

us
e 

of
 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
  

T
he

re
 a

re
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 is

su
es

 th
at

 a
re

 im
pa

ct
in

g 
on

 th
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

w
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

is
su

es
 in

 D
A

S
S

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 o
r 

ar
e 

in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 b
ei

ng
 r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 m

em
be

rs
. W

e 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

ra
is

ed
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ov
er

 
th

e 
re

co
rd

in
g 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l o

f a
ss

et
s 

ov
er

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 a

lth
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

is
 s

om
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

he
re

 a
re

 
st

ill
 m

aj
or

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f v
eh

ic
le

s,
 p

la
nt

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t. 

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

E
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ro

bu
st

 p
la

ns
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
 g

oi
ng

 fo
rw

ar
d,

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

. 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
is

 s
tr

on
g 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

D
A

S
S

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
ov

er
 o

f t
he

 D
ire

ct
or

 p
os

t t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
ov

er
sp

en
di

ng
 is

 m
an

ag
ed

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ro

bu
st

 s
ys

te
m

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
V

al
ue

 fo
r 

M
on

ey
.

Page 53



##
"

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 d
ra

ft
 A

u
d

it
o

r’
s 

R
ep

o
rt

 

" D
R

A
FT
!IN

D
EP

EN
D

EN
T
!A

U
D

IT
O

R
’S
!R

EP
O

R
T
!T

O
!T

H
E!

M
EM

B
ER

S!
O

F!
W

IR
R

A
L!

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
!C

O
U

N
CI

L!
! O

pi
n

io
n
!o

n
!th

e!
A

ut
ho

ri
ty
!a

cc
ou

n
ti

n
g!

st
at

em
en

ts
!

! ,"-
./
0"
.1
23
40
2"
4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
"6
;"<

3=
=.
>"?
6=
61
8-
"@
61
75
3>"
;6
="
4-
0"
A0
.=
"0
72
02
"$
!"
B
.=
5-
"#
+!
!"
17
20
="
4-
0"
C
12
34
"@
6:

:
39
93
67
"

C
54
"!
**
)D
"E
-0
".
55
61
74
37
8"
94
.4
0:

07
49
"5
6:

F=
39
0"
4-
0"
B
6/
0:

07
4"3
7"
G
09
0=
/0
9"
H4
.4
0:

07
4I"
4-
0"
@6
:
F=
0-
07
93
/0
",7
56
:
0"
.7
2"
JK
F0
72
34
1=
0"

H4
.4
0:

07
4I"
4-
0"
?
.>
.7
50
"H
-0
04
I"4
-0
"@
.9
-"
L>
6M
"H
4.
40
:
07
4I"
4-
0"
@6
>>0
54
36
7"
L1
72
".
72
"4-
0"
=0
>.
40
2"
76
40
9D
"E
-0
90
".
55
61
74
37
8"
94
.4
0:

07
49
"-
./
0"

N0
07
"F
=0
F.
=0
2"
17
20
="
4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"F
6>
35
30
9"
90
4"6
14
"37
"4-
0"
H4
.4
0:

07
4"6
;"C
55
61
74
37
8"
O6
>35
30
9D
"

" E-
39
"=
0F
6=
4"3
9"
:
.2
0"
96
>0
>A
"46
"4-
0"
:
0:

N0
=9
"6
;"<

3=
=.
>"?
6=
61
8-
"@
61
75
3>"
37
".
55
6=
2.
75
0"
M
34
-"
O.
=4
",,
"6
;"4
-0
"C
12
34
"@
6:

:
39
93
67
"C
54
"!
**
)"
.7
2"

;6
="
76
"6
4-
0=
"F
1=
F6
90
I".
9"
90
4"6
14
"37
"F
.=
.8
=.
F-
"%
)"
6;
"4-
0"
H4
.4
0:

07
4"6
;"G
09
F6
79
3N
3>3
43
09
"6
;"C
12
34
6=
9"
.7
2"
C
12
34
02
"?
62
30
9"
F1
N>
39
-0
2"
NA
"4-
0"

C
12
34
"@
6:

:
39
93
67
"37
"B
.=
5-
"#
+!
+D
"

" R
es

pe
ct

iv
e!

re
sp

on
si

bi
li

ti
es
!o

f!t
he
!D

ir
ec

to
r!

of
!F

in
an

ce
!a

n
d!

au
di

to
r!

! C
9"
0K
F>
.3
70
2"
:
6=
0"
;1
>>A
"37
"4-
0"
H4
.4
0:

07
4"6
;"G
09
F6
79
3N
3>3
43
09
";6
="
4-
0"
H4
.4
0:

07
4"6
;"C
55
61
74
9I
"4-
0"
P
3=
05
46
="
6;
"L
37
.7
50
"39
"=
09
F6
79
3N
>0
";6
="

4-
0"
F=
0F
.=
.4
36
7"
6;
"4-
0"
C
14
-6
=3
4A
Q9
"H
4.
40
:
07
4"6
;"C
55
61
74
9"
37
".
55
6=
2.
75
0"
M
34
-"
F=
6F
0=
"F
=.
54
35
09
".
9"
90
4"6
14
"37
"4-
0"
@,
OL
C
RS
C
HC
C
@"
@6
20
"6
;"

O=
.5
43
50
"6
7"
S6
5.
>"C
14
-6
=3
4A
"C
55
61
74
37
8"
37
"4-
0"
T
73
40
2"
U
37
82
6:

D"B
A"
=0
9F
67
93
N3
>34
A"
39
"46
".
12
34
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
"37
".
55
6=
2.
75
0"

M
34
-"
.F
F>
35
.N
>0
">.
M
".
72
",7
40
=7
.4
36
7.
>"H
4.
72
.=
29
"6
7"
C
12
34
37
8"
VT
U
".
72
",=
0>
.7
2W
D"E
-6
90
"9
4.
72
.=
29
"=
0X
13
=0
":
0"
46
"5
6:

F>
A"
M
34
-"
4-
0"

C
12
34
37
8"
O=
.5
43
50
9"
?
6.
=2
Q9
"J
4-
35
.>
"H
4.
72
.=
29
";6
="
C
12
34
6=
9D
"

" Sc
op

e!
of
!th

e!
au

di
t!o

f!t
he
!fi

n
an

ci
al
!s

ta
te

m
en

ts
!

! C
7"
.1
23
4"3
7/
6>
/0
9"
6N
4.
37
37
8"
0/
32
07
50
".
N6
14
"4-
0"
.:

61
74
9"
.7
2"
23
95
>6
91
=0
9"
37
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
"9
1;
;35
30
74
"46
"8
3/
0"
=0
.9
67
.N
>0
"

.9
91
=.
75
0"
4-
.4
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
".
=0
";=
00
";=
6:

":
.4
0=
3.
>":

39
94
.4
0:

07
4I"
M
-0
4-
0=
"5
.1
90
2"
NA
";=
.1
2"
6=
"0
==
6=
D"E
-3
9"
37
5>
12
09
".
7"

.9
90
99
:
07
4"6
;Y"
M
-0
4-
0=
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"F
6>
35
30
9"
.=
0"
.F
F=
6F
=3
.4
0"
46
"4-
0"
C
14
-6
=3
4A
Q9
"5
3=
51
:
94
.7
50
9"
.7
2"
-.
/0
"N
00
7"
56
79
39
40
74
>A
".
FF
>30
2"

.7
2"
.2
0X
1.
40
>A
"2
39
5>
69
02
Z"4
-0
"=
0.
96
7.
N>
07
09
9"
6;
"9
38
73
;35
.7
4".
55
61
74
37
8"
09
43
:
.4
09
":
.2
0"
NA
"4-
0"
C
14
-6
=3
4A
Z".
72
"4-
0"
6/
0=
.>
>"F
=0
90
74
.4
36
7"

Page 54



#$
"

6;
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
D",
"=
0.
2"
.>
>"4
-0
"37
;6
=:
.4
36
7"
37
"4-
0"
0K
F>
.7
.4
6=
A"
;6
=0
M
6=
2"
46
"32
07
43
;A
":
.4
0=
3.
>"3
75
67
93
94
07
53
09
"M
34
-"
4-
0"

.1
23
40
2"
;37
.7
53
.>
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
D",
;",
"N
05
6:

0"
.M
.=
0"
6;
".
7A
".
FF
.=
07
4":

.4
0=
3.
>":

39
94
.4
0:

07
49
"6
="
37
56
79
39
40
75
30
9"
,"5
67
93
20
="
4-
0"
3:
F>
35
.4
36
79
"

;6
="
:
A"
=0
F6
=4
D"

" O
pi

n
io

n
!o

n
!a

cc
ou

n
ti

n
g!

st
at

em
en

ts
!

! ,7
":
A"
6F
37
36
7"
4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
Y"

! 
83
/0
".
"4=
10
".
72
";.
3=
"/
30
M
"6
;"4
-0
"9
4.
40
"6
;"<

3=
=.
>"?
6=
61
8-
"@
61
75
3>Q
9"
.;
;.
3=
9"
.9
".
4"$
!"
B
.=
5-
"#
+!
!"
.7
2"
6;
"34
9"
37
56
:
0"
.7
2"
0K
F0
72
34
1=
0"

;6
="
4-
0"
A0
.=
"4-
07
"0
72
02
Z".
72
"

! 
-.
/0
"N
00
7"
F=
6F
0=
>A
"F
=0
F.
=0
2"
37
".
55
6=
2.
75
0"
M
34
-"
4-
0"
@,
OL
C
RS
C
HC
C
@"
@6
20
"6
;"O
=.
54
35
0"
67
"S
65
.>
"C
14
-6
=3
4A
"C
55
61
74
37
8"
37
"4-
0"

T
73
40
2"
U
37
82
6:

D"
" O

pi
n

io
n
!o

n
!o

th
er
!m

at
te

rs
!

! ,7
":
A"
6F
37
36
7I
"4-
0"
37
;6
=:
.4
36
7"
83
/0
7"
37
"4-
0"
0K
F>
.7
.4
6=
A"
;6
=0
M
6=
2"
;6
="
4-
0"
;37
.7
53
.>
"A
0.
="
;6
="
M
-3
5-
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
".
=0
"

F=
0F
.=
02
"39
"5
67
93
94
07
4"M

34
-"
4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
D"

" M
at

te
rs
!o

n
!w

hi
ch
!I!

re
po

rt
!b

y!
ex

ce
pt

io
n
!

! ,"-
./
0"
76
4-
37
8"
46
"=
0F
6=
4"3
7"
=0
9F
05
4"6
;"4
-0
"8
6/
0=
7.
75
0"
94
.4
0:

07
4"6
7"
M
-3
5-
","
=0
F6
=4
"46
"A
61
"3;
I"3
7"
:
A"
6F
37
36
7"
4-
0"
86
/0
=7
.7
50
"9
4.
40
:
07
4"

26
09
"7
64
"=
0;
>0
54
"5
6:

F>
3.
75
0"
M
34
-"
[P
0>
3/
0=
37
8"
\
66
2"
\
6/
0=
7.
75
0"
37
"S
65
.>
"\
6/
0=
7:

07
4Y
".
"L
=.
:
0M
6=
]Q
"F
1N
>39
-0
2"
NA
"@
,O
LC
RH
^
SC
@J
"37
"

_1
70
"#
++
(D
"

" O
pi

n
io

n
!o

n
!th

e!
pe

n
si

on
!fu

n
d!

ac
co

un
ti

n
g!

st
at

em
en

ts
!

! ,"-
./
0"
.1
23
40
2"
4-
0"
F0
79
36
7"
;1
72
".
55
61
74
37
8"
94
.4
0:

07
49
";6
="
4-
0"
A0
.=
"0
72
02
"$
!"
B
.=
5-
"#
+!
!"
17
20
="
4-
0"
C
12
34
"@
6:

:
39
93
67
"C
54
"!
**
)D
"E
-0
"

F0
79
36
7"
;1
72
".
55
61
74
37
8"
94
.4
0:

07
49
"5
6:

F=
39
0"
4-
0"
L1
72
"C
55
61
74
I"4
-0
"`
04
"C
99
04
9"
H4
.4
0:

07
4".
72
"4-
0"
=0
>.
40
2"
76
40
9D
"E
-0
90
".
55
61
74
37
8"

94
.4
0:

07
49
"-
./
0"
N0
07
"F
=0
F.
=0
2"
17
20
="
4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"F
6>
35
30
9"
90
4"6
14
"37
"4-
0"
H4
.4
0:

07
4"6
;"C
55
61
74
37
8"
O6
>35
30
9D
"

" E-
39
"=
0F
6=
4"3
9"
:
.2
0"
96
>0
>A
"46
"4-
0"
:
0:

N0
=9
"6
;"<

3=
=.
>"?
6=
61
8-
"@
61
75
3>"
37
".
55
6=
2.
75
0"
M
34
-"
O.
=4
",,
"6
;"4
-0
"C
12
34
"@
6:

:
39
93
67
"C
54
"!
**
)"
.7
2"

;6
="
76
"6
4-
0=
"F
1=
F6
90
I".
9"
90
4"6
14
"37
"F
.=
.8
=.
F-
"%
)"
6;
"4-
0"
H4
.4
0:

07
4"6
;"G
09
F6
79
3N
3>3
43
09
"6
;"C
12
34
6=
9"
.7
2"
C
12
34
02
"?
62
30
9"
F1
N>
39
-0
2"
NA
"4-
0"

C
12
34
"@
6:

:
39
93
67
"37
"B
.=
5-
"#
+!
+D
"

Page 55



#%
"

" R
es

pe
ct

iv
e!

re
sp

on
si

bi
li

ti
es
!o

f!t
he
!D

ir
ec

to
r!

of
!F

in
an

ce
!a

n
d!

au
di

to
r!

! C
9"
0K
F>
.3
70
2"
:
6=
0"
;1
>>A
"37
"4-
0"
H4
.4
0:

07
4"6
;"G
09
F6
79
3N
3>3
43
09
";6
="
4-
0"
H4
.4
0:

07
4"6
;"C
55
61
74
9I
"4-
0"
P
3=
05
46
="
6;
"L
37
.7
50
"39
"=
09
F6
79
3N
>0
";6
="

4-
0"
F=
0F
.=
.4
36
7"
6;
"4-
0"
F0
79
36
7"
;1
72
Q9
"H
4.
40
:
07
4"6
;"C
55
61
74
9"
37
".
55
6=
2.
75
0"
M
34
-"
F=
6F
0=
"F
=.
54
35
09
".
9"
90
4"6
14
"37
"4-
0"
@,
OL
C
RS
C
HC
C
@"

@6
20
"6
;"O
=.
54
35
0"
67
"S
65
.>
"C
14
-6
=3
4A
"C
55
61
74
37
8"
37
"4-
0"
T
73
40
2"
U
37
82
6:

D"B
A"
=0
9F
67
93
N3
>34
A"
39
"46
".
12
34
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
"37
"

.5
56
=2
.7
50
"M
34
-"
.F
F>
35
.N
>0
">.
M
".
72
",7
40
=7
.4
36
7.
>"H
4.
72
.=
29
"6
7"
C
12
34
37
8"
VT
U
".
72
",=
0>
.7
2W
D"E
-6
90
"9
4.
72
.=
29
"=
0X
13
=0
":
0"
46
"5
6:

F>
A"

M
34
-"
4-
0"
C
12
34
37
8"
O=
.5
43
50
9"
?
6.
=2
Q9
"J
4-
35
.>
"H
4.
72
.=
29
";6
="
C
12
34
6=
9D
"

" Sc
op

e!
of
!th

e!
au

di
t!o

f!t
he
!fi

n
an

ci
al
!s

ta
te

m
en

ts
!

! C
7"
.1
23
4"3
7/
6>
/0
9"
6N
4.
37
37
8"
0/
32
07
50
".
N6
14
"4-
0"
.:

61
74
9"
.7
2"
23
95
>6
91
=0
9"
37
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
"9
1;
;35
30
74
"46
"8
3/
0"
=0
.9
67
.N
>0
"

.9
91
=.
75
0"
4-
.4
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
".
=0
";=
00
";=
6:

":
.4
0=
3.
>":

39
94
.4
0:

07
4I"
M
-0
4-
0=
"5
.1
90
2"
NA
";=
.1
2"
6=
"0
==
6=
D"E
-3
9"
37
5>
12
09
".
7"

.9
90
99
:
07
4"6
;Y"
M
-0
4-
0=
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"F
6>
35
30
9"
.=
0"
.F
F=
6F
=3
.4
0"
46
"4-
0"
;1
72
Q9
"5
3=
51
:
94
.7
50
9"
.7
2"
-.
/0
"N
00
7"
56
79
39
40
74
>A
".
FF
>30
2"
.7
2"

.2
0X
1.
40
>A
"2
39
5>
69
02
Z"4
-0
"=
0.
96
7.
N>
07
09
9"
6;
"9
38
73
;35
.7
4".
55
61
74
37
8"
09
43
:
.4
09
":
.2
0"
NA
"4-
0"
;1
72
Z".
72
"4-
0"
6/
0=
.>
>"F
=0
90
74
.4
36
7"
6;
"4-
0"

.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
D",
"=
0.
2"
.>
>"4
-0
"37
;6
=:
.4
36
7"
37
"4-
0"
0K
F>
.7
.4
6=
A"
;6
=0
M
6=
2"
46
"32
07
43
;A
":
.4
0=
3.
>"3
75
67
93
94
07
53
09
"M
34
-"
4-
0"
.1
23
40
2"

.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
D",
;",
"N
05
6:

0"
.M
.=
0"
6;
".
7A
".
FF
.=
07
4":

.4
0=
3.
>":

39
94
.4
0:

07
49
"6
="
37
56
79
39
40
75
30
9"
,"5
67
93
20
="
4-
0"
3:
F>
35
.4
36
79
";6
="

:
A"
=0
F6
=4
D"

" O
pi

n
io

n
!o

n
!a

cc
ou

n
ti

n
g!

st
at

em
en

ts
!

! ,7
":
A"
6F
37
36
7"
4-
0"
F0
79
36
7"
;1
72
Q9
".
55
61
74
37
8"
94
.4
0:

07
49
Y"

! 
83
/0
".
"4=
10
".
72
";.
3=
"/
30
M
"6
;"4
-0
";3
7.
75
3.
>"4
=.
79
.5
43
67
9"
6;
"4-
0"
F0
79
36
7"
;1
72
"2
1=
37
8"
4-
0"
A0
.=
"0
72
02
"$
!"
B
.=
5-
"#
+!
!"
.7
2"
4-
0"

.:
61
74
".
72
"2
39
F6
93
43
67
"6
;"4
-0
";1
72
Q9
".
99
04
9"
.7
2"
>3.
N3
>34
30
9"
.9
".
4"$
!"
B
.=
5-
"#
+!
!I
"6
4-
0=
"4-
.7
">3
.N
3>3
43
09
"46
"F
.A
"F
07
93
67
9"
.7
2"
64
-0
="

N0
70
;34
9"
.;
40
="
4-
0"
07
2"
6;
"4-
0"
95
-0
:
0"
A0
.=
Z".
72
"

! 
-.
/0
"N
00
7"
F=
6F
0=
>A
"F
=0
F.
=0
2"
37
".
55
6=
2.
75
0"
M
34
-"
4-
0"
@,
OL
C
RS
C
HC
C
@"
@6
20
"6
;"O
=.
54
35
0"
67
"S
65
.>
"C
14
-6
=3
4A
"C
55
61
74
37
8"
37
"4-
0"

T
73
40
2"
U
37
82
6:

D"
" O

pi
n

io
n
!o

n
!o

th
er
!m

at
te

rs
!

! ,7
":
A"
6F
37
36
7I
"4-
0"
37
;6
=:
.4
36
7"
83
/0
7"
37
"4-
0"
0K
F>
.7
.4
6=
A"
;6
=0
M
6=
2"
;6
="
4-
0"
;37
.7
53
.>
"A
0.
="
;6
="
M
-3
5-
"4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
".
=0
"

F=
0F
.=
02
"39
"5
67
93
94
07
4"M

34
-"
4-
0"
.5
56
17
43
78
"9
4.
40
:
07
49
D"

Page 56



#&
"

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
n

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

rr
an

g
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
se

cu
ri

n
g

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
in

 t
h

e 
u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r 
pu

tti
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

pe
r 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pr
op

er
 s

te
w

ar
ds

hi
p 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
, a

nd
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 th

e 
ad

eq
ua

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

es
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 
 A

u
d

it
o

r’
s 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es

I a
m

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
un

de
r 

S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8 

to
 s

at
is

fy
 m

ys
el

f t
ha

t t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. T

he
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
e 

to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

yo
u 

m
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 to
 r

el
ev

an
t c

rit
er

ia
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. 
 I r

ep
or

t i
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t m
at

te
rs

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 m

y 
at

te
nt

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 p

re
ve

nt
 m

e 
fr

om
 c

on
cl

ud
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. I

 a
m

 n
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r,
 n

or
 h

av
e 

I 
co

ns
id

er
ed

, w
he

th
er

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 
ar

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y.

 
 B

as
is

 o
f 

q
u

al
if

ie
d

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

I h
av

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 m
y 

au
di

t i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e,
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 c

rit
er

ia
, p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
0,

 a
s 

to
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r:

 
! 

90
51
=3
78
";3
7.
75
3.
>"=
09
3>3
07
50
Z".
72
"

! 
5-
.>
>0
78
37
8"
-6
M
"34
"9
05
1=
09
"0
56
76
:
AI
"0
;;
35
30
75
A"
.7
2"
0;
;0
54
3/
07
09
9D
"

 T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 th

es
e 

tw
o 

cr
ite

ria
 a

s 
th

os
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

r 
m

e 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 

sa
tis

fy
in

g 
m

ys
el

f w
he

th
er

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1.

 
 I p

la
nn

ed
 m

y 
w

or
k 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e.
 B

as
ed

 o
n 

m
y 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

I u
nd

er
to

ok
 s

uc
h 

w
or

k 
as

 I 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 fo

rm
 a

 v
ie

w
 o

n 
w

he
th

er
, i

n 
al

l s
ig

ni
fic

an
t r

es
pe

ct
s,

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ha

d 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

. 
 Page 57



#'
"

<
0"
=0
/3
0M
02
"4-
0"
N0
70
;34
9"
=0
.>
3a
.4
36
7"
6;
"4-
0"
b
38
-M

.A
9"
.7
2"
J7
83
70
0=
37
8"
H0
=/
35
09
"O
=6
51
=0
:
07
4"J
K0
=5
39
0"
Vb
JH
OJ
W"
56
74
=.
54
"M
-3
5-
"-
.9
"

76
M
"N
00
7"
37
"6
F0
=.
43
67
";6
="
4-
0"
>.
94
"4M

6"
.7
2"
."
-.
>;"
A0
.=
9"
.7
2"
;6
17
2"
4-
.4
"4-
0"
@6
17
53
>"3
9"
76
4".
N>
0"
46
"F
=6
/3
20
"37
;6
=:
.4
36
7"
67
".
54
3/
34
A"
.7
2"

F0
=;
6=
:
.7
50
"46
"2
04
0=
:
37
0"
M
-0
4-
0=
"34
"39
"=
05
03
/3
78
"N
04
40
="
/.
>1
0"
;6
="
4-
0"
:
67
0A
"9
F0
74
D"

 C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 O
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 m
y 

w
or

k,
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 c

rit
er

ia
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
0,

 w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

m
at

te
r 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

fo
r 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
ab

ov
e,

 I 
am

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 in

 a
ll 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

es
pe

ct
s 

W
irr

al
 

B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
en

di
ng

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1.

 
 T

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

's
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

al
so

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
m

e 
to

 r
ep

or
t b

y 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

on
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

dd
iti

on
al

 m
at

te
rs

 th
at

 c
om

e 
to

 m
y 

at
te

nt
io

n 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 I 
co

ns
id

er
 to

 b
e 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 S
uc

h 
a 

m
at

te
r 

ha
s 

co
m

e 
to

 m
y 

at
te

nt
io

n 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
w

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
is

su
es

 a
ris

in
g 

in
 D

A
S

S
 a

nd
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

f a
ss

et
s.

 
 Ce

rt
if

ic
at

e!
! ,"5
0=
43
;A
"4-
.4
","
-.
/0
"5
6:

F>
04
02
"4-
0"
.1
23
4"6
;"4
-0
".
55
61
74
9"
6;
"<
3=
=.
>"?
6=
61
8-
"@
61
75
3>"
.7
2"
B
0=
90
A9
32
0"
O0
79
36
7"
L1
72
"37
".
55
6=
2.
75
0"
M
34
-"

4-
0"
=0
X1
3=
0:

07
49
"6
;"4
-0
"C
12
34
"@
6:

:
39
93
67
"C
54
"!
**
)"
.7
2"
4-
0"
@6
20
"6
;"C
12
34
"O
=.
54
35
0"
39
91
02
"N
A"
4-
0"
C
12
34
"@
6:

:
39
93
67
D"

"  [S
ig

na
tu

re
] 

 M
ic

ha
el

 T
ho

m
as

, O
ffi

ce
r 

of
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 
  A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, L
iv

er
po

ol
 O

ffi
ce

, 3
rd

 F
lo

or
, M

ill
en

ni
um

 H
ou

se
, 6

0 
V

ic
to

ria
 S

tr
ee

t, 
Li

ve
rp

oo
l L

1 
6L

D
 

    
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

"Page 58



#(
"

" A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

d
ra

ft
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 d

ur
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t h
av

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

 b
rin

g 
th

em
 to

 y
ou

r 
at

te
nt

io
n 

to
 a

id
 

yo
u 

in
 fu

lfi
lli

ng
 y

ou
r 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s.
 

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
an

d
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

B
al

an
ce

 s
h

ee
t

A
d

ju
st

ed
 m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

N
at

u
re

 o
f 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

D
r 

£’
00

0s
 

C
r 

£’
00

0s
 

D
r 

£’
00

0s
 

C
r 

£’
00

0s
 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
am

ou
nt

 c
ha

rg
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

as
se

t n
ot

e 
an

d 
as

se
t r

eg
is

te
r 

di
ffe

re
nt

 to
 

th
at

 c
ha

rg
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

in
co

m
e 

st
at

em
en

t 
an

d 
re

se
rv

es
. A

 m
an

ua
l r

ev
er

sa
l o

f t
he

 
fin

al
 q

ua
rt

er
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

fo
r 

a 
di

sp
os

ed
 o

f 
as

se
t h

ad
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 e
rr

or
. T

he
 c

or
re

ct
 

am
ou

nt
 h

ad
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

en
 p

ro
ce

ss
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
as

se
t r

eg
is

te
r 

T
he

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t c

or
re

ct
s 

th
is

 in
co

rr
ec

t 
po

st
in

g 
in

 th
e 

C
IE

S
, t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
M

IR
S

, i
n 

th
e 

C
as

h 
F

lo
w

 s
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 in

 th
e 

va
rio

us
 

no
te

s 
an

d 
un

us
ab

le
 r

es
er

ve
s 

w
he

re
 th

e 
in

co
rr

ec
t d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

fig
ur

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

se
d.

  

74
 

 
n/

a 
–

af
fe

ct
s 

M
IR

S
 

 

A
n 

as
se

t w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

an
 a

dd
iti

on
 in

 
th

e 
as

se
t r

eg
is

te
r 

at
 a

n 
in

co
rr

ec
t v

al
ue

 a
nd

 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 th
is

 a
nd

 th
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 im

pa
irm

en
t t

o 
re

po
rt

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
ba

la
nc

e 
at

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
t v

al
ue

. 

T
he

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t r

ed
uc

es
 th

e 
ad

di
tio

ns
 fi

gu
re

 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
irm

en
t f

ig
ur

e,
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 

w
hi

ch
 n

et
 e

ac
h 

ot
he

r 
of

f a
nd

 le
av

e 
th

e 
co

rr
ec

t t
ot

al
s.

 

 
 

42
 

42
 

R
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

re
ve

rs
al

s 
of

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
im

pa
irm

en
t h

ad
 b

ee
n 

ta
ke

n 
to

 th
e 

re
va

lu
at

io
n 

re
se

rv
e 

w
ith

ou
t f

irs
t r

ev
er

si
ng

 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f i

m
pa

irm
en

t c
ha

rg
ed

 to
 C

IE
S

 

A
n 

el
em

en
t o

f r
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

th
at

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

re
ve

rs
al

 o
f i

m
pa

irm
en

t c
re

di
te

d 
to

 C
IE

S
. 

T
he

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
re

se
rv

es
 is

 w
rit

te
n 

ou
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
va

lu
at

io
n 

re
se

rv
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 

th
e 

M
IR

S
, a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

am
en

ds
 to

ta
l 

un
us

ab
le

 r
es

er
ve

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
sh

ee
t. 

 
87

5 
87

5 
 

Page 59



#)
"

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
an

d
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

B
al

an
ce

 s
h

ee
t

A
d

ju
st

ed
 m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

N
at

u
re

 o
f 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

D
r 

£’
00

0s
 

C
r 

£’
00

0s
 

D
r 

£’
00

0s
 

C
r 

£’
00

0s
 

T
he

 s
ur

pl
us

 o
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fr

om
 

th
e 

C
IE

S
 w

as
 in

co
rr

ec
tly

 e
nt

er
ed

 a
s 

a 
de

fic
it 

in
 th

e 
fir

st
 li

ne
 o

f t
he

 c
as

h 
flo

w
 

st
at

em
en

t. 
A

n 
in

co
rr

ec
t b

al
an

ci
ng

 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t w
as

 th
en

 e
nt

er
ed

 in
to

 li
ne

 2
 o

f 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
t  

 

C
as

h 
flo

w
 s

ta
te

m
en

t l
in

e 
1 

£(
64

,8
00

)k
 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t, 

C
as

h 
flo

w
 s

ta
te

m
en

t l
in

e 
2 

£6
4,

80
0k

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t. 

n/
a 

 
n/

a 
 

T
he

 c
as

h 
flo

w
 s

ta
te

m
en

t d
id

 n
ot

 r
ec

on
ci

le
 

to
 th

e 
ca

sh
 a

nd
 c

as
h 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
fa

ce
 o

f t
he

 B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et
 

T
he

 C
as

h 
F

lo
w

 s
ta

te
m

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
st

at
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

ca
sh

 a
nd

 c
as

h 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

s 
fig

ur
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 a

gr
ee

 to
 th

e 
B

al
an

ce
 

S
he

et
 fi

gu
re

. 

n/
a 

 
n/

a 
 

T
he

 s
ta

ff 
le

av
e 

ac
cr

ua
l w

as
 u

nd
er

st
at

ed
 in

 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 e

rr
or

 a
nd

 d
id

 n
ot

 r
ef

le
ct

 
th

e 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

. 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ac
cr

ua
l t

o 
th

e 
co

rr
ec

t v
al

ue
 b

y 
de

bi
tin

g 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 a
ga

in
st

 s
er

vi
ce

 li
ne

s 
in

 
th

e 
C

IE
S

. T
he

 o
pp

os
ite

 e
nt

ry
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ac

cr
ua

l h
el

d 
on

 th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t. 

1,
29

0 
 

 
1,

29
0 

T
he

 lo
ss

 o
n 

di
sp

os
al

 fi
gu

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
IE

S
 w

as
 n

ot
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
n 

di
sp

os
al

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 e

ls
ew

he
re

 in
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

. T
he

 C
IE

S
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

a 
co

rr
ec

tio
n 

of
 6

07
k.

 

T
he

 C
IE

S
 fi

gu
re

 is
 a

dj
us

te
d 

by
 6

07
k.

 T
he

 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t c
or

re
ct

s 
an

 in
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
C

IE
S

 a
nd

 th
e 

M
IR

S
, r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 n

o 
ne

t i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t. 

60
7 

 
n/

a 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 60



#*
"

" A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 U
n

ad
ju

st
ed

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 d

ur
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t, 

bu
t m

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 n
ot

 a
dj

us
te

d 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

 b
rin

g 
th

em
 to

 y
ou

r 
at

te
nt

io
n 

to
 

he
lp

 y
ou

 in
 fu

lfi
lli

ng
 y

ou
r 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
as

k 
yo

u 
to

 c
or

re
ct

 th
es

e 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
f y

ou
 d

ec
id

e 
no

t t
o 

am
en

d,
 p

le
as

e 
te

ll 
m

e 
w

hy
 in

 th
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
le

tte
r.

 If
 y

ou
 b

el
ie

ve
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

he
 u

nc
or

re
ct

ed
 e

rr
or

s,
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 a

nd
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

el
y,

 is
 im

m
at

er
ia

l, 
pl

ea
se

 r
ef

le
ct

 th
is

 in
 th

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

le
tte

r.
 P

le
as

e 
at

ta
ch

 a
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 th

e 
un

co
rr

ec
te

d 
er

ro
rs

 to
 th

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

le
tte

r.
  

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
an

d
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

B
al

an
ce

 s
h

ee
t

U
n

ad
ju

st
ed

 m
is

st
at

em
en

t 
N

at
u

re
 o

f 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 a
d

ju
st

m
en

t 
D

r 
£’

00
0s

 
C

r 
£’

00
0s

 
D

r 
£’

00
0s

 
C

r 
£’

00
0s

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
he

 d
ef

ic
it 

on
 r

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 P
P

E
 a

ss
et

s 
lin

e 
on

 th
e 

fa
ce

 o
f t

he
 C

IE
S

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 s

up
po

rt
ed

. T
he

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

pa
pe

rs
 

ap
pe

ar
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

ite
m

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

re
po

rt
ed

 u
nd

er
 n

et
 c

os
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 

  

N
ot

 y
et

 k
no

w
n 

(a
w

ai
tin

g 
fu

rt
he

r 
re

sp
on

se
) 

no
t k

no
w

n 
 

n/
a 

 

Page 61



$+
"

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
 

 
A

u
d

it
 c

lo
su

re
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

te

A
 c

er
tif

ic
at

e 
th

at
 I 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
au

di
t f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. T
hi

s 
m

ar
ks

 th
e 

po
in

t w
he

n 
I 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 p
er

io
d 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

O
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, I
 m

us
t g

iv
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
  

• 
w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
 a

nd
 it

s 
sp

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 

in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 in
 q

ue
st

io
n;

 a
nd

  

• 
w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
pr

op
er

ly
, f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
ru

le
s.

   

O
p

in
io

n

If 
I a

gr
ee

 th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

, I
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n.
 I 

is
su

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 o
pi

ni
on

 if
: 

• 
I f

in
d 

th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 d

o 
no

t g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

; o
r 

• 
I c

an
no

t c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
. 

Page 62



$!
"

" A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 -

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
an

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
ce

 

T
he

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

 (
A

P
B

) 
de

fin
es

 th
is

 c
on

ce
pt

 a
s 

‘a
n 

ex
pr

es
si

on
 o

f t
he

 r
el

at
iv

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
or

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 m
at

te
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

. A
 m

at
te

r 
is

 m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

ts
 

om
is

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
in

flu
en

ce
 u

se
rs

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
ad

dr
es

se
es

 o
f t

he
 

au
di

to
r’s

 r
ep

or
t; 

al
so

 a
 m

is
st

at
em

en
t i

s 
m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
t w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

si
m

ila
r 

in
flu

en
ce

. M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 fo
r 

an
y 

in
di

vi
du

al
 p

rim
ar

y 
st

at
em

en
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
r 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

 it
em

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
em

. W
e 

ca
nn

ot
 d

ef
in

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
m

at
he

m
at

ic
al

ly
, a

s 
it 

ha
s 

bo
th

 n
um

er
ic

al
 a

nd
 n

on
-

nu
m

er
ic

al
 a

sp
ec

ts
’. 

 

T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

‘S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

’ a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

es
e 

w
id

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
au

di
to

rs
 a

do
pt

 a
 le

ve
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 th
at

 m
ay

 
di

ffe
r 

fr
om

 th
e 

m
at

er
ia

lit
y 

le
ve

l a
pp

lie
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

au
di

t i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. S

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 h

as
 

bo
th

 q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s.

  

W
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

A
 w

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

xi
st

s 
w

he
n:

  

• 
a 

co
nt

ro
l i

s 
de

si
gn

ed
, s

et
 u

p 
or

 u
se

d 
in

 s
uc

h 
a 

w
ay

 th
at

 it
 is

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
, o

r 
de

te
ct

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

, 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 q

ui
ck

ly
; o

r 
 

• 
a 

co
nt

ro
l n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
, o

r 
de

te
ct

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

, m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 q
ui

ck
ly

 
is

 m
is

si
ng

.  

A
n 

im
po

rt
an

t w
ea

kn
es

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 is
 a

 w
ea

kn
es

s,
 o

r 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
th

at
, i

n 
m

y 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 ju

dg
em

en
t, 

ar
e 

im
po

rt
an

t e
no

ug
h 

th
at

 I 
sh

ou
ld

 r
ep

or
t t

he
m

 to
 y

ou
.  

Page 63



$#
"

" A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 -

G
lo

ss
ar

y 

 
 

       
 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 

T
he

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 c
on

cl
us

io
n 

on
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 h

as
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
cr

ite
ria

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. T

he
 c

rit
er

ia
 s

et
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 fo
r 

20
10

/1
1 

co
ve

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

y,
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s.

  

T
he

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

de
fin

es
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

s 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 th
at

 fo
rm

 a
 k

ey
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 s
ys

te
m

 o
f i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
. T

h
es

e 
co

m
pr

is
e 

th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r:

  

• 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fi

na
nc

es
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

se
cu

re
 s

ou
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l h
ea

lth
; 

• 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 s

ou
nd

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f c
os

ts
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 in
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

; 
• 

re
lia

bl
e 

an
d 

tim
el

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

th
at

 m
ee

ts
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 u

se
rs

, s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

pe
op

le
; 

• 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
bu

yi
ng

 q
ua

lit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
th

at
 a

re
 ta

ilo
re

d 
to

 lo
ca

l n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 a
nd

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

; 
• 

pr
od

uc
in

g 
re

le
va

nt
 a

nd
 r

el
ia

bl
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

m
an

ag
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

; 
• 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
an

d 
di

sp
la

yi
ng

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 a

nd
 v

al
ue

s 
of

 g
oo

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

; 
• 

m
an

ag
in

g 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 s
ou

nd
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

; 
• 

m
ak

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 n
at

ur
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
; 

• 
m

an
ag

in
g 

as
se

ts
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 h
el

p 
de

liv
er

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

ne
ed

s;
 a

nd
 

• 
pl

an
ni

ng
, o

rg
an

is
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f s
tr

at
eg

ic
 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
 

If 
I f

in
d 

th
at

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

 h
ad

 a
de

qu
at

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, I

 is
su

e 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

co
nc

lu
si

on
. I

f I
 fi

nd
 th

at
 it

 
di

d 
no

t, 
I i

ss
ue

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

co
nc

lu
si

on
.  

Page 64



$$
"

" A
p

p
en

d
ix

 5
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
 

 P
ag

e
n

o
. 

3.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

4.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
1 

= 
L

o
w

2 
= 

M
ed

   
 3

 =
 

H
ig

h
5.

 T
o

p
ic

 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

 

A
g

re
ed

 
C

o
m

m
en

ts
 

D
at

e
 

5 
M

em
be

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
id

er
 w

he
th

er
 

to
 a

m
en

d 
th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

un
ad

ju
st

ed
 e

rr
or

. I
f y

ou
 d

ec
id

e 
no

t 
to

 a
m

en
d,

 p
le

as
e 

te
ll 

m
e 

w
hy

 in
 

th
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
le

tte
r.

 If
 y

ou
 

be
lie

ve
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

he
 

un
co

rr
ec

te
d 

er
ro

r 
is

 im
m

at
er

ia
l, 

pl
ea

se
 r

ef
le

ct
 th

is
 in

 th
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
le

tte
r.

 P
le

as
e 

at
ta

ch
 a

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 th
e 

un
co

rr
ec

te
d 

er
ro

r 
to

 th
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
le

tte
r 

3 
 

 
 

 

10
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

va
lu

ed
 a

nd
 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

a 
co

ns
is

te
nt

, 
su

pp
or

te
d 

ba
si

s 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 IF
R

S
 

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

ns
. 

2 
R

eg
 H

uy
to

n 
F

in
an

ce
 

T
on

y 
S

im
ps

on
 

La
w

, H
R

 a
nd

 A
ss

et
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Y
es

 
W

or
k 

is
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r 

to
 

va
lu

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

ss
et

s.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
vo

lv
e 

lo
ok

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ss
et

 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 IF

R
S

 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
ns

. 
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

Page 65



$%
"

P
ag

e
n

o
. 

3.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

4.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
1 

= 
L

o
w

2 
= 

M
ed

   
 3

 =
 

H
ig

h
5.

 T
o

p
ic

 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

   

A
gr

ee
d 

   
C

om
m

en
ts

 
   

D
at

e 
 

10
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

ga
in

s 
an

d 
lo

ss
es

 r
ep

or
te

d 
in

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

le
dg

er
 a

re
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

po
rt

ed
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

es
er

ve
s.

 

2 
Je

nn
y 

S
pi

ck
 

F
in

an
ce

 
Y

es
 

D
ur

in
g 

20
11

/1
2 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

to
 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

ve
rif

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
ro

ss
 r

ef
er

en
ci

ng
 

of
 fi

gu
re

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

10
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

pl
an

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
co

nt
ro

l o
ve

r 
th

e 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

of
 

lif
ec

yc
le

 c
os

ts
 in

 P
F

I s
ch

em
es

 a
re

 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
m

on
ito

re
d 

2 
R

eg
 H

uy
to

n 
F

in
an

ce
 

T
om

 Q
ui

gl
ey

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

es
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Y
es

 
In

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s 
de

ta
ils

 w
ill

 
be

 s
ou

gh
t f

ro
m

 o
ur

 P
F

I s
ch

oo
ls

 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

. T
he

 a
im

 o
f t

hi
s 

is
 to

 
id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
m

on
ito

r 
lif

ec
yc

le
 

co
st

s.
   

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

13
 

V
eh

ic
le

s,
 p

la
nt

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

(V
P

E
) 

– 
st

re
ng

th
en

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
ov

er
 

ve
rif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 V

P
E

 a
ss

et
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ve

rif
yi

ng
 a

ss
et

s 
in

 th
e 

re
gi

st
er

 e
xi

st
 a

nd
 a

re
 in

 u
se

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

th
at

 a
ss

et
s 

in
 

us
e 

ar
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
st

er
. 

3 
R

eg
 H

uy
to

n 
an

d 
Je

nn
y 

S
pi

ck
 

F
in

an
ce

 
A

ll 
C

ou
nc

il 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

Y
es

 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

to
 v

er
ify

 V
P

E
 a

ss
et

s.
  

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 in

vo
lv

e 
se

ek
in

g 
as

su
ra

nc
es

 fr
om

 a
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

13
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 
– 

st
re

ng
th

en
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
er

ro
rs

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

ar
e 

m
in

im
is

ed
; t

he
re

 m
us

t b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
ro

bu
st

 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
by

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
. 

 

2 
T

om
 S

au
lt 

 
F

in
an

ce
 

Y
es

 
T

he
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

qu
al

ity
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 

up
da

te
d.

  F
or

 2
01

1/
12

 w
e 

w
ill

 lo
ok

 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 
de

di
ca

te
d 

to
 th

is
 a

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f 
A

cc
ou

nt
s.

  

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

Page 66



$&
"

P
ag

e
n

o
. 

3.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

4.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1 
= 

L
o

w
 

2 
= 

M
ed

 
   

 3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

5.
 T

o
p

ic
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

   

A
gr

ee
d 

   
C

om
m

en
ts

 
   

D
at

e 
 

17
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
s 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

tim
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
tim

e 
bu

ilt
 in

to
 it

, t
o 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 a
vo

id
ab

le
 

er
ro

rs
 in

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 
fo

r 
au

di
t. 

2 
T

om
 S

au
lt 

 
F

in
an

ce
 

Y
es

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 ti
m

e 
is

 a
lw

ay
s 

bu
ilt

 in
to

 th
e 

tim
et

ab
le

. F
or

 
20

11
/1

2 
cl

os
ed

ow
n 

it 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t 
th

at
 th

is
 ti

m
e 

is
 r

ea
lis

ed
 a

nd
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

us
ed

.  

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 
 

17
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

ar
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 th
at

 
th

es
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

re
co

nc
ile

 to
 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

, s
up

po
rt

in
g 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

ag
re

ed
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
gr

ea
te

r 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 a
cc

ur
at

e,
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
tim

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

au
di

t a
nd

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 q

ue
rie

s 
to

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t. 

   

2 
Je

nn
y 

S
pi

ck
 a

nd
 G

ro
up

 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts
 

F
in

an
ce

 

Y
es

  
F

or
 th

e 
20

11
/1

2 
w

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 w
or

ki
ng

 
pa

pe
rs

 th
at

 li
nk

 th
ro

ug
h 

to
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
fil

es
/s

pr
ea

ds
he

et
s 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
ac

ka
ge

.  

Ju
ne

 2
01

2 

Page 67



$'
"

P
ag

e
n

o
. 

3.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

4.
 T

o
p

ic
  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1 
= 

L
o

w
 

2 
= 

M
ed

 
   

 3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

5.
 T

o
p

ic
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

   

A
gr

ee
d 

   
C

om
m

en
ts

 
   

D
at

e 
 

21
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ro

bu
st

 p
la

ns
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 
go

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d,

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
is

 d
el

iv
er

ed
. 

3 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
an

d 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

Y
es

 
B

ud
ge

t p
re

di
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 r
ep

or
te

d 
to

 
C

ab
in

et
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
is

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 m

on
ito

re
d.

 
W

or
k 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 to

 
ex

am
in

e 
op

tio
ns

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

bu
dg

et
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
20

12
/1

3 
an

d 
th

e 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 P

la
n.

  

O
ng

oi
ng

 

21
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
is

 s
tr

on
g 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t i

n 
D

A
S

S
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

ov
er

 o
f t

he
 D

ire
ct

or
 

po
st

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ov

er
sp

en
di

ng
 is

 m
an

ag
ed

 

3 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Y

es
 

T
he

 p
os

t i
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
ut

 to
 a

dv
er

t 
w

ith
 a

 c
lo

si
ng

 d
at

e 
of

 1
4th

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

21
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ro

bu
st

 s
ys

te
m

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
V

al
ue

 fo
r 

M
on

ey
 

3 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
an

d 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

Y
es

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

ils
 s

ys
te

m
s 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
in

g 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

V
al

ue
 

fo
r 

M
on

ey
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 

20
11

/1
2.

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 O
ng

oi
ng

 

 " " "Page 68



$(
"

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
 –

 D
ra

ft
 L

et
te

r 
o

f 
R

ep
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

   
to

 
M

ic
ha

el
 T

ho
m

as
, 

da
te

 
 2

8 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r,

 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, 
T

he
 H

ea
th

 B
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
T

ec
hn

ic
al

 P
ar

k,
 

R
un

co
rn

, 
C

he
sh

ire
, 

 
 

 
 

 
W

A
7 

4Q
F

 
 

 
yo

ur
 r

ef
 

 
 

m
y 

re
f 

F
A

/IE
C

 
 p

le
as

e 
as

k 
fo

r 
Ia

n 
C

ol
em

an
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

R
A

F
T

 
D

ea
r 

S
ir,

 
 W

ir
ra

l B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

ci
l -

 A
u

d
it

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

n
d

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 

I 
co

nf
irm

 t
o 

th
e 

be
st

 o
f 

m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
be

lie
f, 

ha
vi

ng
 m

ad
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

of
 o

th
er

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 o
f 

W
irr

al
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il,
 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 g
iv

en
 t

o 
yo

u 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 y
ou

r 
au

di
t 

of
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 f
or

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

de
d 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
 

 C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
st

at
u

to
ry

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
 

 I a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

un
de

r 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

 w
hi

ch
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 fo
r 

m
ak

in
g 

ac
cu

ra
te

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 to
 y

ou
. 

_

Page 69



$)
"

 U
n

co
rr

ec
te

d
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 
 E

ith
er

  
 T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

un
co

rr
ec

te
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

 O
R

 
I 

co
nf

irm
 t

ha
t 

I 
be

lie
ve

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 t
he

 u
nc

or
re

ct
ed

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 li
st

ed
 in

 t
he

 r
ep

or
t 

ar
e 

no
t 

m
at

er
ia

l 
to

 t
he

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, 

ei
th

er
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 o

r 
in

 a
gg

re
ga

te
. 

T
he

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 w

ith
 t

ho
se

 c
ha

rg
ed

 w
ith

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r 
no

t c
or

re
ct

in
g 

th
es

e 
ite

m
s 

ar
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s;
 

! D
et

ai
ls

 t
o

 b
e 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 e

tc
. 

 I a
ls

o 
co

nf
irm

 th
at

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
no

 im
pa

ct
 u

po
n 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f b

al
an

ce
s,

 r
es

er
ve

s 
or

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
at

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 

20
11

. 
"

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
ec

o
rd

s 
 

A
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
pe

rs
on

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 y

ou
 f

or
 t

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
yo

ur
 a

ud
it,

 
an

d 
al

l t
he

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
op

er
ly

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 a

nd
 r

ec
or

de
d 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

 
Ir

re
g

u
la

ri
ti

es
 I 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

m
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 s

ys
te

m
s 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 

de
te

ct
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. 
 I a

ls
o 

co
nf

irm
 th

at
 I 

ha
ve

 d
is

cl
os

ed
: 

a)
 

m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 f
ra

ud
, 

or
 s

us
pe

ct
ed

 f
ra

ud
, 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
ei

th
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ro
le

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
r 

ot
he

rs
 w

he
re

 fr
au

d 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

;  

Page 70



$*
"

b)
 

m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
lle

ga
tio

ns
 o

f 
fr

au
d,

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
fr

au
d,

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 b
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 fo

rm
er

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
na

ly
st

s,
 r

eg
ul

at
or

s 
or

 o
th

er
s;

 a
nd

 
 c)

 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f o

ur
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

he
 r

is
k 

th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 m

is
st

at
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 fr

au
d.

 

L
aw

, r
eg

u
la

ti
o

n
s,

 c
o

n
tr

ac
tu

al
 a

rr
an

g
em

en
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
d

es
 o

f 
p

ra
ct

ic
e 

I h
av

e 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

to
 y

ou
 a

ll 
kn

ow
n 

in
st

an
ce

s 
of

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e,

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s,

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
od

es
 o

f 
pr

ac
tic

e,
 w

ho
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
he

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
 T

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
, 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
or

 o
th

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 c

on
tr

ac
tu

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 t
ha

t 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 i

n 
th

e 
ev

en
t 

of
 n

on
-

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e.

   
 A

ll 
kn

ow
n 

ac
tu

al
 o

r 
po

ss
ib

le
 li

tig
at

io
n 

an
d 

cl
ai

m
s,

 w
ho

se
 e

ffe
ct

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 w

he
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

to
 t

he
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

an
d 

di
sc

lo
se

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 f

in
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 e
st

im
at

es
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 f

ai
r 

va
lu

es
 

 I 
co

nf
irm

 t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

of
 t

he
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

in
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e.

 
 I c

on
fir

m
: 

a)
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t m
et

ho
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

la
te

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 m

od
el

s,
 th

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
in

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s;
 

b)
 

th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 r

ef
le

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t’s
 in

te
nt

 a
nd

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 s
pe

ci
fic

 c
ou

rs
es

 o
f 

ac
tio

n 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il,

 w
he

re
 r

el
ev

an
t t

o 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

 a
nd

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

; 
c)

 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

va
lu

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

fix
ed

 a
ss

et
s;

 
d)

 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
en

es
s 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ne

ss
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k;

 a
nd

  

Page 71



%+
"

e)
 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 e

ve
nt

s 
do

 n
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
es

tim
at

es
 a

nd
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

U
se

 o
f 

E
xp

er
ts

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

us
ed

 e
xp

er
ts

 in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

re
as

 to
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 a

nd
 

di
sc

lo
se

d 
th

es
e 

to
 y

ou
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
au

di
t. 

F
in

an
ci

al
 G

u
ar

an
te

es
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

gi
ve

n 
no

 fi
na

nc
ia

l g
ua

ra
nt

ee
s 

in
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r 

to
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
 

! R
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 th
e 

id
en

tit
y 

of
 W

irr
al

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

al
l t

he
 r

el
at

ed
 p

ar
ty

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 a

nd
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 

of
 w

hi
ch

 I 
am

 a
w

ar
e.

  I
 h

av
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

su
ch

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 a

nd
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f t

he
 fr

am
ew

or
k.

 
 S

u
b

se
q

u
en

t 
ev

en
ts

 
 A

ll 
ev

en
ts

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t t

o 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t o
r 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, h
av

e 
be

en
 a

dj
us

te
d 

or
 d

is
cl

os
ed

. 

S
ig

n
ed

 o
n

 b
eh

al
f 

o
f 

W
ir

ra
l B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
ci

l
 I 

co
nf

irm
 t

ha
t 

th
is

 le
tte

r 
w

as
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 t
he

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

f 
W

irr
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

on
 2

8 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
. 

  N
am

e 
 

Ia
n 

C
ol

em
an

 
P

os
iti

on
   

   
   

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 

D
at

e 
 

28
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
 

Page 72



Audit Commission, 3rd Floor, Millennium House, 60 Victoria Street, Liverpool, L1 6LD 
T 0151 233 4276 F 0151 236 3668  www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

Our reference MT-Ltm

12 September 2011 

Direct line 07879667712
Email m-thomas@audit-

commission.gov.uk

Councillor Crabtree 
Chair, Audit and Risk Management Committee 
Wirral Borough Council 
Wallasey Town Hall 
Brighton Street, Wallasey 
Wirral
CH44 8ED 

Dear Councillor Crabtree and members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee 

Annual Governance Report 2010/11 

I am pleased to present the results of my audit work for 2010/11. I discussed and agreed a draft 
of my report with the Chief Executive and Director of Finance on 12 September 2011 and 
updated it as issues have been resolved. I will provide an update on outstanding matters to the 
Committee on 28 September. 

My report sets out the key issues that you should consider before I complete the audit. It asks 
you to: 

! consider the matters raised in the Pension Fund Annual Governance Report and the 
recommendation of the Pensions Committee (separate report); 

! consider the matters raised in the report before approving the financial statements (pages 1 
to 17); 

! note the adjustments to the financial statements set out in this report (appendix 2);
! agree to adjust the error in the financial statements I have identified, which management 

has declined to amend or set out the reasons for not amending the error (appendix 3);  
! approve the letter of representation on behalf of the Council before I issue my opinion and 

conclusion (appendix 6); and 
! agree your response to the proposed action plan (appendix 5) 

Yours sincerely 

Michael Thomas 
District Auditor 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
28 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 
SUBJECT BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2012-15 
WARD/S AFFECTED ALL 
REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER 

COUNCILLOR STEVE FOULKES 
 

KEY DECISION YES 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 Following the agreement of the budget for 2011-12 at the Council meeting 

on 1 March 2011, this report presents the projected budgets for 2012-15.  It 
was presented to the Cabinet on 1 September 2011. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the budget projections be regularly reviewed. 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Regular reporting of the projected financial prospects is a requirement of 

good corporate and financial planning. 
 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 Assumptions Underpinning the Projections 
 
 a) Inflation - Provision is made for price inflation of 2% per annum with 

income to continue to increase by 3% per annum.  Pay awards will be 
limited to those employees earning less than £21,000 per annum for 
2012-13 and are assumed to increase by 2% per annum from 2013. 

 
 b) Capital Financing - Cabinet on 21 February 2011 agreed a capital 

programme at an increased revenue cost of £1.9m in 2012-13. 
 
 c) Pension Fund - the increase arising from the actuarial valuation including 

the impact of the outsourcing of the highways and engineering services 
contract will increase the contribution by £0.3m in 2012-13 and by £0.3m 
in 2013-14.  The revaluation scheduled for March 2013 will be 
implemented from 2014. 

 
 d) National Insurance – Employers NI changes will cost an additional £1m. 
 
 e) Waste Disposal - Landfill Tax is increasing by £8 per ton per annum, an 

increase of 50% between 2010-11 and 2014-15.  The levy is assumed to 
increase by £1.5m per annum from 2013. 

 
 f) Merseytravel - From 2013 the levy is assumed to increase by £1m per 

annum. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 75



 g) Schools - it is assumed that the Schools Budget will vary in line with the 
Dedicated Schools grant. 

 
 h) Academies – the Department for Education will reduce the budget by a 

further £0.9m in 2012-13 to fund academies. 
 
 i) Neighbourhood Management – Cabinet on 2 June 2011 agreed to 

increase the budget by £0.4m to be funded by the Local Services 
Support Grant. 

 
 j) Home to School Transport – Cabinet on 2 June 2011 agreed to increase 

the budget by £0.2m to be funded by the Local Services Support Grant. 
 
 k) Integrated Transport – Cabinet on 23 June 2011 agreed to increase the 

budget by £0.3m. 
 
 l) Housing – Cabinet on 21 July 2011 agreed to increased housing 

expenditure of £0.3m to equal the New Homes Bonus. 
 
 m) Adult Social Services Reprovision - £3.5m identified as part of budget 

preparation. 
 
 n) Efficiency Investment - in order to continue to deliver efficiencies in 

future years it will be necessary to continue to invest and therefore £2m 
per annum has been provided. 

 
 o) Other Unavoidable Growth - a number of items of unavoidable growth of 

less than £0.2m will arise.  These usually total about £1m per annum. 
 
4.2 Grant Negotiations 
 
4.2.1 The Local Government Finance Settlement for 2011-12 incorporated a 

provisional settlement for 2012-13, in which the Formula Grant will be 
reduced by £14m. 

 
4.2.2 The Spending Review 2011-15 incorporated four year projections for local 

government expenditure.  However the Finance Settlement only provided 
figures for 2011-13.  Figures for 2013-15 will be subject to the outcome of 
the Local Government Resource Review (LGRR).  Clearly this will have a 
major impact on the budget projections for 2013-15 included in the appendix.  
The Terms of Reference for phase I of the LGRR were reported to Cabinet 
on 14 April 2011.  A consultation paper on phase I, localisation of business 
rates, is reported elsewhere on this agenda, as is a report on phase II, 
community budgets.  Subsequent phases will be reported to Cabinet as they 
are released. 

 
4.2.3. The Government has announced a new general grant, the Local Services 

Support Grant of £1.2m.  This absorbs a number of previous specific grants 
totalling £0.5m and was reported to Cabinet on 2 June 2011. 

 
4.2.4. The New Homes Bonus of £0.3m has also been released as a general grant 

which was reported to Cabinet on 2 June 2011. 

Page 76



 
4.3 Other Legislative Issues 
 
4.3.1 Independent Public Service Pensions Commission – Final recommendations 

issued on 10 March 2011.  The detailed Government response is expected 
in Autumn. 

 
4.3.2 Welfare Reform Bill – Implementation of Universal Credit and a Local 

Council Tax Benefit System due to commence in 2013.  The Local Council 
Tax Benefit System will result in a reduction of grant of £3.2m. 

 
4.3.3 Localism Bill - Will require a local referendum if a proposed Council Tax 

increase is considered to be excessive from 2012-13. 
 
4.3.4 Council Tax Revaluation - This has been deferred until after 2015. 
 
4.3.5 Census - During the course of this budgeting period the results of the 

Census 2011 will become available and will be incorporated into the grant 
distribution formulae.  The Office for National Statistics (ONS) has released 
the Mid 2009 estimated populations.  The reduction for Wirral since the 
Census 2001 is greater than for any other metropolitan or unitary authority.  
If this is confirmed in the Census 2011 then the reduction in grant receivable 
could be significant.  The ONS has confirmed that the analysis of the Census 
data should be completed for incorporation into the Finance Settlement for  
2013-14. 

 
4.4 Balances 
 
4.4.1 The budget for 2011-12 includes balances of £14.1m. 
 
4.4.2 The final phase of the Early Voluntary Retirement/Voluntary Severance 

Scheme covering those staff due to depart in early 2011-12 is projected to 
utilise £4.4m of the balances. 

 
4.4.3. The budget for 2011-12 will utilise £2.8m of the balances to fund one-off 

expenditure. 
 
4.4.4. HM Treasury has announced two increases to National Insurance which will 

cost an additional £1m. 
 
4.4.5. Cabinet on 17 March 2011 agreed to reinstate the budget for Fernleigh for 

2011-12 at a cost of £0.5m. 
 
4.4.6. Cabinet on 2 June 2011 received details of the Local Services Support Grant 

and the New Homes Bonus. 
 
4.4.7. Cabinet on 23 June 2011 agreed that integrated transport would not deliver 

the previously agreed savings but would instead cost an additional £0.3m. 
 
4.4.8. Closure of the Accounts for 2010-11 which was reported to Cabinet on 23 

June 2011 resulted in a net overspending of £3.3m. 
 
4.4.9. The Insurance Fund Annual Report presented to Cabinet on 23 June 2011 

transferred £0.9m to balances. 
 

Page 77



4.4.10. The Treasury Management Annual Report presented to Cabinet on 23 June 
2011 transferred £3.0m to balances. 

 
4.4.11. Cabinet on 23 June 2011 agreed to transfer the Connexions Pension 

Reserve of £4.7m to General Fund balances. 
 
4.4.12. This had originally been identified to meet reprovision costs of £3.5m in Adult 

Social Services in 2011-12. 
 
4.4.13. Cabinet on 21 July 2011 agreed to allocate an amount equal to the New 

Homes Bonus for housing expenditure. 
 
4.4.14. Therefore the projected balances are as follows:- 
 
  £m 
 Budgeted opening balance 14.1 
 Overspending 2010-11 -3.3 
 Insurance Fund 0.9 
 Treasury Management 3.0 
 Connexions Pension Reserve 4.7 
 Adult Social Services Reprovision -3.5 
 EVR/VS -4.4 
 Policy Options 2011-12 only -2.8 
 National Insurance -1.0 
 Fernleigh -0.5 
 Local Services Support Grant 0.5 
 Integrated Transport -0.3 
 Projected Balance 7.4 
 
4.4.15. The minimum recommended balances are £6.0m. 
 
4.5. Savings 
 
4.5.1. Cabinet has agreed to the following savings:- 
 

 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 
 £000 £000 £000 
Human Resources IT System 474 100 20 
Family Group Conferencing 130   
IT Services 400 400 400 
Benefits     1,200   
Printing Services      250 ____ ____ 
 2,454 500 420 

 
4.5.2. In addition to the savings agreed by Cabinet the Strategic Change 

Programme Board has agreed to the following additional savings for  
2012-13:- 

 
  £000 
 Looked After Children 670 
 Disposal of Assets 310 
 Office Rationalisation 123 
 Street Lighting 100 
 DASS Market Management   847 
  2,050 

Page 78



 
4.5.3. The full year effect of the Early Voluntary Retirement/Voluntary Severance 

scheme savings totalling £24m will be achieved in 2012/13.  This will 
increase to £27m after the additional cost of the pensions has been met in 
2017. 

 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
5.1 Any projections carry risks.  For 2012-13 the Government has indicated the 

provisional Formula Grant and so the risks are primarily with the expenditure 
projections which will be influenced by changes to Government policies, 
inflation, and delivery against budgets in 2011-12. 

 
5.2 For 2013-15 the Government proposes significant changes to the grant 

distribution system which could cause major changes to these projections. 
 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
6.1 All of these projections represent my assumptions of the most likely outcome 

from a wide range of available options. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 The Government will be consulting on a number of issues which will impact 

on the budget projections.  I will respond to all consultation exercises to try to 
ensure the best outcome for Wirral. 

 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
8.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 
 
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS – FINANCIAL 
 
9.1 The assumptions outlined above are reflected in the budget projections in 

the Appendix. 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

Page 79



 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
FNCE/204/11 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Ian Coleman 
  Director of Finance 
  telephone:  0151 666 3056 
  email:   iancoleman@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Budget Projections 2012-15 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 
Budget - HM Treasury - March 2011 
Independent Public Service Pensions Commission Report - March 2011 
Spending Review - HM Treasury - October 2010 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2011-14 - November 2010 
Local Government Finance Settlement 2011-13 - DCLG - January 2011 
Council Budget 2011-12 - March 2011 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY 
Council Meeting  Date 

This report is revised for each meeting of the Cabinet.  

 

Page 80



APPENDIX 
 

Wirral Council 
Budget Projections 2012-15 

 
 
 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 
 £m £m £m 
Base Budget 294.8 281.0 267.2 
Increased Requirements 
Pay Inflation 1.0 3.5 3.5 
Price Inflation 4.2 4.2 4.2 
Capital Financing 1.9 2.0 2.0 
Pension Fund 0.3 0.3 2.5 
National Insurance 1.0 - - 
Academies 0.9 - - 
Waste Disposal - 1.5 1.5 
Merseytravel - 1.0 1.0 
Neighbourhood Management 0.4 - - 
Home to School Transport 0.2 - - 
Integrated Transport 0.3 - - 
Housing 0.3 - - 
DASS Reprovision 3.5 - - 
Council Tax Benefit - 3.2 - 
Other Unavoidable Growth 1.0 1.0 1.0 
Efficiency Investment      2.0      2.0     2.0 
 311.8 299.7 284.9 
 
Reduced Requirements 
Income Inflation     -1.0     -1.0     -1.0 
Savings Agreed   - 2.5     -0.5     -0.4 
Additional Savings   - 2.0         -         - 
 306.3 298.2 283.5 
Resources 
Formula Grant 144.8 131.0 117.0 
Council Tax Grant 3.3 3.3 3.3 
Local Services Support Grant 1.2 1.2 1.2 
New Homes Bonus 0.3 0.3 0.3 
Council Tax 131.4 131.4 131.4 
Forecast Resources 281.0 267.2 253.2 
 
Shortfall 25.3 31.0 30.3 
 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Progress report 
Wirral Council September 2011

Audit 2010/11 

Agenda Item 10

Page 83



 

 
 

The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, 

driving economy, efficiency and effectiveness in local 

public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, 

community safety and fire and rescue services means 

that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for 

money for taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 

11,000 local public bodies. 

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership 

to assess local public services and make practical 

recommendations for promoting a better quality of life 

for local people. 

Page 84



 

Audit Commission Progress report 1
 
 

Contents 

Key messages ....................................................................................................2

Audit plan ...........................................................................................................4

Opinion ...............................................................................................................9

Wirral Council 2010/11 .................................................................................9

Merseyside Pension Fund 2010/11 ............................................................11

Value for money conclusion ...........................................................................12

PIDA work .........................................................................................................13

Adult social services ...................................................................................13

Procurement of highways and engineering services ..................................13

National Fraud Initiative ..................................................................................14

Grant claims and returns ................................................................................16

Annual Audit Letter..........................................................................................17

The audit team and key contacts....................................................................18

Members' resources ........................................................................................19

Audit Commission information for members...............................................19

Upcoming reports .......................................................................................19

Published reports........................................................................................20

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) ...................................24

Appendix 1  IFRS implementation..................................................................27

Appendix 2  Wirral Council - opinion timetable ............................................29

Wirral Council timetable..............................................................................29

Merseyside Pension Fund timetable...........................................................33
 

Page 85



 

Audit Commission Progress report 2
 
 

Key messages 

1 This report provides members with an update of our ongoing work at the 
Council and informs you of the risks arising from the audit, under 
International Standard on Auditing (United Kingdom and Ireland) 300. The 
key messages to draw to members' attention are as follows. 

The Audit Commission 
! The Audit Commission has started the procurement process to 

outsource the work of its in-house Audit Practice with effect from the 
2012/13. The Audit Practice is planning to submit an in-house bid. 

Fees
! The Audit Commission has now confirmed the programme of work and 

scale of fees for local government for 2011/12 and is consulting on a 
further rebate. 

Opinion on the statement of accounts
! The implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS) was a significant challenge for the Council and a significant risk 
for our audit. 

! The outcome of the Wirral's opinion audit is reported in our Annual 
Governance Report 2010/11. 

! The Merseyside Pension Fund audit is reported in a separate Annual 
Governance Report. 

Value for money conclusion 
! Our value for money work is reported in our Annual Governance Report.  

Public Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA) work 
! Work on the PIDA in respect of the Directorate for Adult Social Services 

(DASS) continues 
! We are currently following up the PIDA in respect of the Highways and 

Engineering Services Procurement Exercise (HESPE) and will report 
back to members at a future meeting. 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
! The Council is continuing to follow up matches on the 2009/10 NFI with 

the result that £318k is being recovered following error or fraud.  
! The 201/12 matches were release by the Audit Commission in January 

2011 and the current figure for recovery stands at £29k.  

Grant claims and returns 
! Our grants work for 2010/11 has started. 

Page 86



 

Audit Commission Progress report 3
 
 

Annual Audit Letter 2009/10 
! Our Annual Audit Letter, summarising the key issues for the year, was 

presented to Cabinet and the Audit and Risk Management Committee in 
January. 

Audit team and key contacts 
! We have brought two potential conflicts to members' attention. 

Members' resources 
! Members' resources have been updated with the latest reports 

published by the Audit Commission. We have also provided a full list of 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) reports and briefings 
for management and members. 

 

Page 87



 

Audit Commission Progress report 4
 
 

Audit plan 

Audit Commission 

2 The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
announced in August 2010 plans to abolish the Audit Commission and put 
in place new arrangements for auditing England's local public bodies. DCLG 
stated its intention to transfer the Commission's existing in-house Audit 
Practice to the private sector from 2012/13 and in due course abolish the 
residual elements of the Commission. The new regime will see the end of 
the Commission's responsibilities for overseeing and commissioning local 
audit and its other statutory functions, including those relating to studies into 
financial management and value for money.  

3 The Commission worked with DCLG and has now formally launched the 
process for outsourcing the work of the Audit Practice and has issued 
Contract Notices in the Official Journal of the European Union. It has also 
published two other key documents relating to the procurement. The first is 
the Procurement strategy (PDF, 161kb) setting out the objectives of the 
procurement exercises and how they will be carried out. The second 
document is the formal Protocol (PDF, 194kb), to which all Commission staff 
have been required to sign up, to ensure propriety in the preparation of any 
employee-led bids which could form the basis of a new and distinctive 
provider in the market, possibly a mutual. 

4 The table below provides the key milestones currently planned for the 
procurement of principal bodies. This is intended as a guide and while the 
Commission does not intend to depart from the timetable it reserves the 
right to do so at any stage. 

Table 1: Timetable for outsourcing 

The outcome of the outsourcing will be known in the Spring and the 
Commission will consult with Audited Bodies in April 2012 

Key milestone Date Progress

Issue Contract Notices in the 
Official Journal of the European 
Union  

5 September 
2011 

Completed to 
plan 

Issue pre-qualification 
questionnaires (PQQ) on request 

From 5 
September 2011

Completed to 
plan 

Deadline for return of PQQs 7 October 2011 Date o/s 

Issue invitations to tender and 
anonymised TUPE information to 
selected suppliers 

w/c 24 October 
2011 

Date o/s 

Page 88



 

Audit Commission Progress report 5
 
 

Key milestone Date Progress

Deadline for submission of tenders 16 December 
2011 

Date o/s 

Approval of contract awards w/c 20 February 
2012 

Date o/s 

Consultation with audited bodies 
on appointments 

23 April - 13 
July 2012 

Date o/s 

Approval of auditor appointments w/c 23 July 
2012 

Date o/s 

Appointments for 2012/13 
commence 

1 September 
2012 

Date o/s 

Staff transfer to firms awarded 
contracts 

31 October 
2012 

Date o/s 

Source: Audit Commission@ September 2011 

5 We have discussed developments with chief officers and have 
reaffirmed the Commission's, and our own, commitment to delivering a high 
quality and effective audit service right through to the date the transfer to 
new arrangements takes place. We will continue to keep you up to date on 
developments. 

2010/11 plan 

6 The letters with the proposed fees for 2010/11 for audit and assessment 
were agreed with officers in April 2010 and were presented to members on  
30 June 2010. Alongside the audit fees letter we presented the Work 
programme and scales of fees 2010/11, the new Code of Audit Practice 
2010 and the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited bodies.  

7 The impact of the latest Audit Commission proposals on fees on Wirral 
Council for 2010/11 is summarised in the table below: 

Table 2: Work programme and fees 2010/11 

This represents the latest position on proposed fees for 2010/11. The scale 
fee for the 2010/11 audit is £363,000. 

Work
programme 

Original fee £ Rebate/
reduction £ 

Latest fee 
proposal

Financial 
statements 

257,612 21,904 235,708 

Whole of 
government 
accounts 

7,466 - 7,466 

Value for money 126,922 12,705 114,217 

Page 89



 

Audit Commission Progress report 6
 
 

Work
programme 

Original fee £ Rebate/
reduction £ 

Latest fee 
proposal

Total audit 392,000 34,609 357,391 

Managing 
performance 

16,630 16,630 0 

Economic 
development 

32,523 32,523 0 

Total
inspection

49,153 49,153 0 

Certification of 
claims and 
returns

128,000 - 128,000 

National Fraud 
Initiative * 

2,000 - 2,000 

Total work 
programme 

571,153 83,762 487,391 

Source: Audit Commission, December 2010 

Note: The Audit Commission is sending rebates directly to audited bodies to 
avoid confusion with the annual audit fee - the figures for rebates in this 
table are estimates. 

* NFI is £4,000 every 2 years. 

Audit fee 

8 The total indicative fee for the audit for 2010/11 is £392,000 (excluding 
VAT), a 0.5 per cent increase on the fee of £390,000 for 2009/10. This was 
less than the Audit Commission’s anticipated 6 per cent increase for 
2010/11 for the first year of International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) and is in line with our commitment to reduce the 2010/11 fee as 
noted at meetings with officers and members.  

9 Members should also note that the Commission has confirmed that it 
would subsidise the 'one-off' element of the cost of transition to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for local authorities from 2010/11. 
You will have received a refund from the Audit Commission of £21,904 
which brings the fee charged for 2010/11 to £370,096. 

10 The letter sent by the Audit Commission to the Council made it clear 
that we will continue to deliver the audit in line with the statutory Code of 
Audit Practice under which we are required to give a value for money 
conclusion alongside the opinion on the financial statements. The impact of 
stopping Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), including the cost of 
making several hundred staff redundant, has limited the level of rebates the 
Commission can afford to give bodies in 2010/11. However, the 
Commission now proposes to rebate 3.5 per cent for single-tier councils in 

Page 90



 

Audit Commission Progress report 7
 
 

respect of the new approach for value for money. The rebate will be sent out 
shortly and brings the audit fee down to £357,391.  

11 These reductions, and the earlier rebate for the additional audit costs 
from the transition to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
mean that Wirral's audit fee for 2010/11 is around 1 per cent  less when 
compared to the scale fee and 9 per cent less when compared to the 
original fee. We will discuss with the Director of Finance the impact on fees 
of the difficulties encountered during the audit.   

Grant claims and returns fee 

12 The planned fee for grant claims and returns is £128,000. 

Page 91



 

Audit Commission Progress report 8
 
 

Assessment and inspection fee 

13 The fee letter agreed with officers in April showed the total indicative fee 
for inspection as £49,153. The Commission now proposes not to charge 
inspection fees for work already carried out in this financial year on the 
managing performance part of the organisational effectiveness assessment. 
This is because there was no value to the work once CAA ended.  

National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 2010/11 

14 We presented the work programme and scale of fees for NFI 2010/11 to 
members on 30 June 2010. The rate for metropolitan borough councils 
remains at the 2008/09 rate of £4k. The NFI is run over a two-year period, 
so the scale of fees covers the two financial years 2010/11 and 2011/12. 
We will bill for these fees in two equal annual instalments. 

2011/12 plan 

Audit fee 

15 The Work programme and scales of fees 2011/12 document was 
published on 25 February 2011 and confirms significant reductions in audit 
fees, reflecting both the new approach to local value for money (VFM) audit 
work and a reduction in the ongoing audit costs arising from the introduction 
of International Financial Reporting Standards. The scale fee for each 
audited local government, housing and community safety body are also 
available. 

16 The proposed 2011/12 scale fee for Wirral is £352,800. We have 
assessed the fee for Wirral Council for 2011/12 and have agreed with the 
Director of Finance that it will be at the scale fee of £352,800.  

17 The Commission is consulting on a reduction of 10 per cent from the 
published 2011/12 scale fees for principal bodies. This continues its 
programme, begun before the announcement in August 2010 of the 
abolition of the Commission, to deliver cost cuts of £70 million (30 per cent) 
over a three-year period. 

NFI 2011/12 

18 As noted above, the NFI fee is £4,000 over two years and so the 
Council will be billed £2,000 in 2011/12. 

 

 

 

Page 92



 

Audit Commission Progress report 9
 
 

Opinion  

Wirral Council 2010/11 

19 The District Auditor is required to issue an audit report by 30 September 
2011 giving his opinion on whether the Council's accounts give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2011. Our 
Opinion Plan was presented to members of this Committee in January 2011 
and set out in more detail the audit work we proposed to carry out in relation 
to the audit of the financial statements 2010/11 for Wirral Council, including 
the audit of the Whole of Government Accounts. We have updated the 
timetable at Appendix 2 to this report.  

20 There is a separate Opinion plan in respect of Merseyside Pension 
Fund's financial statements which was also presented to members of this 
Committee in January 2011. Progress on the Pension Fund is summarised 
in a separate section below and reported in the Annual Governance Report 
being presented at the Pensions Committee on 19 September 2011 and the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee on 28 September 2011. 

21 2010/11 is the first year that the accounts need to be prepared in 
accordance with IFRS and represents a significant challenge for the Council 
and a significant risk for our audit. Our work on the council's statement of 
accounts is split into two elements. 
! Pre-statements audit: 

! updating, documenting and walking through your systems; 
! identifying and testing key controls; 
! reviewing the control environment and general IT controls; 
! reviewing the implementation of IFRS; and 
! any early testing. 

! Post statements audit: 
! testing material balances and ensuring the statements are in line 

with accounting standards. 

Pre-statements audit 

22 We did not progress to plan on all areas of the pre-statements audit. 
The key area of delay is the IFRS restatement work and issues are set out 
below and in our Annual Governance Report 2010/11. 

Systems and controls 

23 We have completed work on updating, documenting and walking 
through your systems and assessing the control environment, including IT 
controls: 

Page 93



 

Audit Commission Progress report 10
 
 

! Documenting and walking through your systems: we have not identified 
any significant weaknesses in how your systems produce materially 
accurate figures in the financial statements    

! Identifying and testing key controls: no significant issues identified in our 
testing of accounts payable and payroll; we raised issues regarding 
fixed assets,  

! Control environment: we have not identified any significant weaknesses 
in overall management controls or risk management  

! IT controls: we assessed that Wirral's IT controls give us adequate 
assurance that the systems that provide information for the financial 
statements will not lead to material mis-statement in the Councils 
accounts. 

 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 

24 2010/11 is the first year that the accounts need to be prepared in 
accordance with IFRS and last year we completed two surveys in November 
2009 and July 2010 to assess the Council's preparedness.  

25 In November 2009 we assessed the Council as 'red' risk overall and 
following the July 2010 survey we reported to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee in September 2010 that our updated assessment 
of the Council was 'amber' overall. We also provided a set of graphs setting 
out Wirral's progress and issues compared to other councils. We reported 
that the key risk areas where Wirral Council varied significantly from 
comparator authorities were leases, progress against project plan and 
Involvement of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. (see Appendix 
1). 

26 The latest Audit Commission report setting out the national findings 
from the survey is at available at Audit Commission website - IFRS 
implementation.  

27 We updated the Audit Commission survey in January 2011 and 
provided information on the national comparisons to officers. Our overall 
assessment for the January 2011 survey is 'red' as the Council is not on 
track against its project plan. We received IFRS re-stated opening balances 
in January and the 2009/10 comparatives, the policies and disclosures up to 
July 2011. The material and significant amendments are set out in our 
Annual Governance Report 2010/11. 

Post-statements Audit 

28 Our post-statements audit is reported in our Annual Governance 
Report. 

Chief Accountants' workshops  

29 The Audit Commission runs workshops every year for chief accountants 
to ensure that consistent messages about technical issues are shared with 

Page 94



 

Audit Commission Progress report 11
 
 

audited bodies. Key finance officers attended the workshop at Warrington 
on 1 February 2011. 

Merseyside Pension Fund 2010/11 

30 The 2010/11 audit plan was presented to the Pensions Committee and 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee in January 2011. It confirmed 
the proposed fee of £54,065 for 2010/11. 

31 The plan included areas of risk to our audit opinion. The plan also set 
out the timetable for delivery of the 2010/11 audit and this is attached at 
Appendix 2 to this report.   

32 The results of our audit, including our findings and conclusions in 
respect of the risks in our plan are set out in the Pension Fund Annual 
Governance Report. 

33 The proposed fee for 2011/12 has been agreed with the Director of 
Finance at £60,966. 

 

Page 95



 

Audit Commission Progress report 12
 
 

Value for money conclusion 

34 The District Auditor is required to give a statutory value for money 
(VFM) conclusion on whether the Council has satisfactory arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  

35 The VFM conclusion for 2010/11 will be based on a reduced number 
reporting criteria, specified by the Commission, concentrating on:  
! securing financial resilience; and  
! prioritising resources within tighter budgets. 

36 Our value for money conclusion is reported in our Annual Governance 
Report.  

 

Page 96



 

Audit Commission Progress report 13
 
 

PIDA work 

37 Work on two PIDA disclosures in respect of adult social services and 
the Highways and Engineering Services Procurement Exercise (HESPE) 
continues.  

Adult social services 

38 We are continuing to monitor the Council's progress in responding to 
our 2007/08 report: Adult Social Services - Follow up of PIDA Disclosure 
which was considered by the Audit and Risk Management Committee in 
September 2008. A key issue was in respect of the charging policy applied 
at three supported living units. 

39 The previous administration commissioned an independent 
investigation into the whistleblower's allegations of bullying and harassment 
and this has now been reported to Cabinet.  

40 The previous Leader of the Council also commissioned an independent 
review to confirm that all issues raised by the whistleblower have been 
appropriately dealt with. We understand that the fieldwork is now complete 
and will be reported to members shortly. 

Procurement of highways and engineering services

41 During 2008/09 we received a PIDA disclosure in respect of the process 
for awarding the Highways and Engineering Services Procurement Exercise 
(HESPE) contract. The report was presented to members at the Audit 
Committee and Risk Management Committee on 28 September 2010. We 
agreed that we would continue to monitor the Council's response to the 
recommendations in the action plan. 

42 Our follow-up work on the action plan and review of the Council's 
information on the benefits realisation process is underway and will be 
reported to members in November 2011.  

Page 97



 

Audit Commission Progress report 14
 
 

National Fraud Initiative 

43 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is the UK-wide anti-fraud programme 
developed by the Audit Commission. A data matching exercise is carried out 
every two years comparing information held by and between around 1,300 
organisations including councils, the police, hospitals and nearly 100 private 
companies. This helps to identify potentially fraudulent claims, errors and 
overpayments. Where matches are identified these are presented to the 
organisations to investigate. For example, when data matching shows a 
person listed as deceased and also in receipt of a pension, the Council will 
investigate and, if appropriate, stop pension payments. The Audit 
Commission fee to the Council is £4k over two years for this exercise.  

44 Internal audit co-ordinates the follow-up of matches, which is 
undertaken by the responsible department. Matches are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis and the figures below reflect the position at 14 March 2011. 

NFI 2008/09 - 2009/10 

45 The Council is reviewing the output from the 2008/09 NFI matching 
exercise which identified 20,325 matches. At the beginning of March 2011 
the Council has identified that as a result of investigating the 2008/09 
matches: 

Table 3: Fraud and error identified from the 20,325 NFI 2008 matches 

Fraud and error September 2010 March 2011 

Total matches 
progressed 

5,901* - 29% 7,605 - 37% 

Frauds identified 28 frauds 82 frauds (70 relate to 
council tax) 

Errors identified 296 errors 539 errors 

Value of frauds and 
errors 

£255k £326k 

Recovering** £256k £318k 

Still progressing 14,424* 12,720 (creditors 
4,715; council tax - 
6496; 1,519 other) 

Source: Audit Commission NFI 14 March 2011 

* information at 13/10/10 
** The Council is in the process of recovering this amount and has stopped 

future payments where applicable 

Page 98



 

Audit Commission Progress report 15
 
 

46 The national report on NFI 2008/09 was published in May 2010 and is 
available at Audit Commission website -NFI 2008/09.  

47 Now that work on NFI 2008/09 should be nearing completion the Audit 
Commission withdrew access to most of the NFI 2008/09 matches on March 
28 2011. Council tax matches will remain on the system for the immediate 
future as these were released at a later date than the other matches. 

NFI 2010/11 - 2011/12 

48 The Council provided the required information to participate in the 
exercise and data matches were provided by the Audit Commission at the 
end of January 2011. The position in March is set out below: 

Table 4: Fraud and error identified from the 22,917 NFI 2010 matches 

Fraud and error March 2011 

Total matches progressed 1472 cases (mainly pensions, 
housing benefits and blue badges) 

Frauds identified 0 frauds 

Errors identified 34 errors 

Value of frauds and errors £32k 

Recovering* £29k 

Still progressing 21,445  

Source: Audit Commission NFI 14 March 2011 

* The Council is in the process of recovering this amount and has stopped 
future payments where applicable 

Page 99



 

Audit Commission Progress report 16
 
 

Grant claims and returns 

2009/10

49 The 2009/10 grant claims and returns report was presented to this 
meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.  

50 The grants claim programme was successfully completed in 2009/10. 
All claims were submitted on time, a significant improvement compared to 
previous years and all claims were also certified on time. Coordination 
arrangements worked well, there was a slight improvement in the control 
environment and a reduction in the number of claims requiring amendment 
and qualification. The amendments resulted in an increase of funding due to 
the Council of £33,793. 

2010/11

51 The 2010/11 programme is underway and comprises the following 
claims. 
! Housing and Council Tax Benefits Scheme.  
! National non-domestic rates grant. 
! Teachers' pensions return. 
! Disabled facilities grant. 
! Single programme grants. 
! General Sure Start grant. 

Page 100



 

Audit Commission Progress report 17
 
 

Annual Audit Letter  

2009/10 - key findings 

52 The 2009/10 Annual Audit Letter was presented to the January 2011 
meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. It was also  
considered by Cabinet in January 2011. 

53 The key issues were: 
! unqualified opinion on Wirral Council's 2009/10 financial statements 

given by the statutory deadline 
! unqualified opinion on Merseyside Pension Fund's 2009/10 financial 

statements by the statutory deadline 
! unqualified opinion on the Whole of Government Accounts consolidation 

pack on 1 October 2010 
! unqualified value for money conclusion confirming that the Council has 

satisfactory arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources 

! our actual fees (£390,000) were in line with our proposed fees as 
agreed with the Audit and Risk Management Committee at its meeting 
in June 2009.  

! we charged an additional £20,000 for work carried out to deal with an 
issue under the Public Interest Disclosure Act (PIDA) in relation to the 
Highways and Engineering Services Procurement Exercise (HESPE).  

! we highlighted the current and future challenges for the Council and the 
corporate and service pressures that will make the achievement of 
savings challenging including: 
! Delivery of savings from the change programme. 
! Prioritisation of the outcomes from the consultation process and 

consideration of the options put forward by the Task Forces into a 
cohesive budget strategy. 

! Maintaining service quality and capacity following the severance 
and early voluntary retirement exercise. 

! Responding to the improvement agenda, highlighted by the Care 
Quality Commission, in adult social services whilst keeping within 
the budget and implementing personal social care budgets. 

! Responding to potentially reduced future government funding as a 
result of the reduced population figures for Wirral. 

Page 101



 

Audit Commission Progress report 18
 
 

The audit team and key contacts 

54 The key members of the audit team for the 2010/11 Council and 
Pension fund audits were set out in our Audit Plans which were presented to 
the January meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. There 
is currently no change to either of the teams.  

55 I can confirm that the audit of both the Council and the Pension Fund 
are being carried out in accordance with the Audit Commission’s policies on 
integrity, objectivity and independence. We have reported two potential 
conflicts in our Annual Governance Report. 

Page 102



 

Audit Commission Progress report 19
 
 

Members' resources 

Audit Commission information for members 

56 The local government national studies programme aims to improve local 
public services through its independent authoritative analysis of national 
evidence and local practice. Information on the programme is on the Audit 
Commission's website at national studies programme.  

Advisory Services 

57 Our Advisory Services are able to support clients under paragraph 9 of 
Schedule 2A of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to provide 'advice and 
assistance' (A&A) to another public body. We have developed a number of 
briefings and tools to support councils with their efficiency agenda, get 
better value from partnerships and improve performance. Please contact the 
District Auditor or Audit Manager if you would like to know more about these 
improvement tools. 

Upcoming reports 

58 The following are the studies that the Audit Commission is currently 
proposing: 
! Local government workforce: What are the most effective means for 

councils to achieve savings from the pay bill while protecting the quality 
of services? This study will explore how councils can do this, including 
how they address working patterns, staffing tiers and numbers, rates of 
pay, and reward packages. It will identify barriers to achieving savings 
and their solutions as well as highlight innovative approaches to 
configuring workforces in response to financial cutbacks.  

! Managing with less (Spring 2011): This research project aims to help 
councils respond to the challenges of public spending reductions. It 
examines the approaches taken by local councils in responding to the 
need to make savings and to managing with less, and at how and why 
decisions are made. There will be a particular focus on the data and 
information used; the involvement of members and partners; and the 
balance between short, medium and longer term planning. 

! Review and challenge in councils (Spring 2011): Councils need to have 
effective means for reviewing and challenging their major activities, 
priorities and risks. This project will research how this can be done 
effectively and efficiently. Research will identify the principles that best 
underpin review and challenge in councils. These principles will provide 
the basis for a series of questions to help those responsible for council 
governance assess their review and challenge arrangements. 

! Schools workforce management (Spring 2011): Our 2009 report, 
'Valuable lessons', set out savings that could be made by schools 

Page 103



 

Audit Commission Progress report 20
 
 

through better balance management and more effective procurement. 
This study will focus on how schools, working with local authorities, can 
maintain or improve the value for money of their workforce deployment 

 

Published reports 

Latest releases 

 

!  Improving value for money in adult social 
services, 2 June 2011. This briefing is the first in a series of briefings 
that will look at value for money in health and social care and considers 
what councils might do to provide better, more efficient services. It finds 
that, as demographic change and financial pressures combine to create 
tough times for adult social care, councils have looked at many aspects 
of the service in order to provide better, more efficient services. Better 
procurement, improved back office arrangements, and a preference for 
community-based rather than residential care where possible, are just 
some of the changes that local authorities have implemented to help 
them meet the challenges they face. But the briefing also finds that the 
pace and scale of change need to increase if councils want to release 
material savings, as well as improve care for people. 

 

!  Going the distance - Achieving better value 
for money in road maintenance, 26 May 2011. This national report 
looks at what councils can do to get more for their money in road 
maintenance, in the face of increasing traffic, severe winters, higher 
costs, and dwindling highways funding. The report highlights how 
councils can get more for their money, including cost-saving 
collaborations with neighbours, asset management to show when road 
maintenance will be most effective, new ways of keeping residents 
informed, and weighing short-term repairs against long-term resilience. 
It includes a series of case studies which demonstrate how some 
councils have developed strategies that balance growing service 
demands with reducing resources. 

 

!  Better value for money in schools, 31 March 
2011. These four briefings are designed to help schools make the best 

Page 104



 

Audit Commission Progress report 21
 
 

use of their workforce - whether teachers, teaching assistants, or 
administration and finance staff - at a time when they have to find 
savings. They aim to help school heads, governing bodies and councils 
control costs without compromising educational attainment. In addition, 
the Commission published a summary paper, An overview of school 
workforce spending, which is targeted at chairs of governing bodies and 
lead members on children's services. 

 

!  Auditing the accounts 2009/10: Quality and 
timeliness of local public bodies' financial reporting, 16 December 
2010. A summary of the quality and timeliness of financial reporting by 
councils, police authorities, fire and rescue authorities and local 
government bodies.  

 

!  2011/12 Proposed work programme and scale 
of fees; published 10 December 2010. We are consulting on our 
proposed work programme and scales of fees for 2011/12. 

 

!  Against the odds - Re-engaging young people 
in education, employment or training; published 3 November 2010. 
Since the release of the report on 7 July 2010, we have produced a 
series of maps detailing changes in the proportion and numbers of 
young people not in employment education and training (NEET) 

 

!   Financial management of personal budgets; 
Challenges and opportunities for councils. Published 28 October 2010. 
This report examines personal budgets in adult social care and 
considers the financial management and governance implications for 
councils. It reviews the approaches to transition from providing services 
to providing personal budgets, the choices for allocating money, and 
how councils can plan for the financial implications. It also considers 
changes in social care commissioning and the governance 
arrangements needed for personal budgets. It is aimed at finance staff 
and staff in adult social care departments interested in personal 
budgets. The report includes a self-assessment checklist to help 

Page 105



 

Audit Commission Progress report 22
 
 

councils review progress in implementing personal budgets and identify 
areas for improvement. 

 

!    Protecting the public purse; Fighting fraud 
against local government and local taxpayers. Published 27 October 
2010. we describe what has happened in the field of fraud detection and 
prevention since 2009 and set out the findings from our recent fraud 
survey. Last year England’s councils detected around £99 million worth 
of benefit fraud, over £15 million worth of council tax fraud, and  
£21 million worth of other types of fraud including false insurance 
claims, and abuse of the disabled parking ‘blue badge’ scheme. In 
addition nearly 1,600 homes have been recovered by councils with a 
replacement cost of approximately £240 million. We also describe the 
action taken by some councils to tackle fraud and provide links to tools 
to help councils improve their counter-fraud defences. Our updated 
checklist gives organisations providing public services another 
opportunity to consider how effective they are at responding to the risk 
of fraud. Also available is a single person discount comparator tool that 
allows local authorities to compare their levels of council tax single 
person discount with their predicted levels, based on a national 
average. 

 

!   Finance improvement tool. Published16 
September 2010. Following our ‘Under Pressure’ study (February 
2010), we have developed a finance improvement tool to help councils 
respond to the financial challenges of an ageing population and identify 
scope for improvement. 

 

!  Strategic financial management in councils, 
8 September 2010.  Delivering services with a reduced income. In our 
latest report, we reveal how organisations that manage their finances 
strategically are more adaptable and resilient when money is tight, and 
how other councils can learn from them. Councils need to make some 
urgent and tough decisions. 'Strategic financial management in councils' 
is aimed at all council staff, especially those who hold the purse strings 
of local government. In it, we point out potential financial pitfalls, 
highlight successes, and feature a value for money self-assessment 
questionnaire that can be used locally. The findings in the report are 

Page 106



 

Audit Commission Progress report 23
 
 

supported by a good-practice checklist that describes the key issues for 
improving financial management. Councillors and managers can use 
the checklist to evaluate their current approach to financial 
management. 

 

!    Local government pensions in England - an 
information paper - 29 July 2010. In our latest information paper, we 
examine the long-term affordability of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme, and look at steps that could be taken to put it on a better 
financial footing. 

 
! Local government claims and returns, 27 July 2010. The level of 

amendments and the number of qualification letters issued by auditors 
in 2008/09 shows some authorities can improve their preparation of 
claims and returns. The first Audit Commission annual report on 
certification work, published on Thursday 29 July, shows that in 2008/09 
Audit Commission auditors certified claims and returns from local 
authorities for schemes covering £45.6 billion of public money. Auditors 
agreed amendments to claims and returns totalling £54.5 million. Eight 
schemes had total amendments over £1 million and auditors qualified 
673 (24 per cent) claims and returns. For the housing and council tax 
benefits scheme, 85 per cent of benefits claims had qualifications or 
amendments or both. Certification of 2008/09 claims and returns cost 
local authorities £18.7 million which is 0.04 per cent of the total value 
certified.   

 

!    Against the odds. Re-engaging young people 
in education, employment or training - 7 July 2010. We reveal how 
councils need a new approach in getting to grips with the needs of their 
local teens, in order to make scarce resources work harder for those at 
greatest risk of long-term unemployment.  

 

!    A review of collaborative procurement across 
the public sector, 21 May 2010. The National Audit Office and the 
Audit Commission have jointly produced this review. It draws on Audit 
Commission research in local government, carried out during the 
autumn of 2009. The review finds that although collaborative 
procurement has the potential to improve value for money, the public 
sector procurement landscape is fragmented, with no overall 

Page 107



 

Audit Commission Progress report 24
 
 

governance. Consequently, public bodies are incurring unnecessary 
administration costs by duplicating procurement activity, and they are 
paying a wide range of prices for the same commodities, even within 
existing collaborative arrangements. It recommends that, given the size 
of public sector procurement spend and the potential to significantly 
improve value for money, public bodies should work together much 
more effectively than they currently do. And there should be a clear 
framework to coordinate public sector procurement activity. 

! By mutual agreement, 16 March 2010. Severance deals serve 
councils and the taxpayer. But our research shows that not all pay-offs 
are justified. Competent chief executives sometimes lose their jobs 
needlessly, and less effective individuals have been paid-off rather than 
dismissed. 

 
! Healthy balance, 11 March 2010. Does your ward have a high number 

of teenage pregnancies, or is there growth in childhood obesity? This 
briefing says the NHS allocated £21 billion in 2009/10 on the basis of 
inequalities in health between areas. The impact of the spending is 
unclear.  

 
! The truth is out there: A discussion paper, 5 March 2010. 

Information is essential: it helps you make better decisions. Making 
more and better information available to the public should help them 
evaluate the decisions their elected representatives are making, what 
public money is spent on and with what result. This discussion paper 
looks at how councils and health trusts, social workers, doctors and 
police can improve data and analysis made available to the public. 

 
 
! Under pressure: Tackling the financial challenge for councils of an 

ageing population, 18 February 2010. Councils need to understand the 
nature and needs of residents who are ageing. The report stresses 
growth in the number of older citizens affects all services. We need 
better working across boundaries. 

 
 
! Giving children a healthy start: A review of health improvements in 

children from birth to five years, 3 February 2010. Have the large 
sums spent on young children from 1999 to 2009 improved their health? 
The study examines local service planning and delivery, and how 
councils and primary care trusts can improve services and access for 
vulnerable groups, lone and teenage parents and black and minority 
ethnic communities. 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

59 We have listed the IFRS reports and briefings available on the Audit 
Commission website for management and members. This is the first year of 

Page 108



 

Audit Commission Progress report 25
 
 

financial reporting under IFRS and members will be required to approve the 
accounts on this basis in September 2011. 

Complete list of resources 
! The final countdown: IFRS in local government  17 March 2011. The 

Commission has published the final briefing paper in its Countdown to 
IFRS series, reporting on findings from a January 2011 auditor survey 
on implementation of IFRS in local government.  

! Countdown to IFRS: Reporting on operating segments - 29 October 
2010 Our latest briefing on the countdown to IFRS covers principles and 
practical issues that authorities should consider when reporting on 
operating segments. 

! Countdown to IFRS: Progress on the transition to IFRS - 5 October 
2010  The deadline for local authorities to produce IFRS-compliant 
accounts is fast approaching. Successful implementation of IFRS will 
testify to the ability of local government to manage a major change in its 
financial arrangements. The paper draws on a survey completed in July 
2010 by auditors of all local authorities, fire and rescue authorities, and 
police authorities, on local government’s progress on transition to IFRS. 
In this paper we: 
! make comparisons with a baseline assessment taken in November 

2009;  
! set out relevant lessons from the NHS experience of transition, as 

NHS bodies have implemented IFRS a year earlier than local 
government; and  

! outline the key actions that authorities should be taking at this 
stage. 

! Countdown to IFRS: Accounting for employee benefits - 15 July 2010  
Issues authorities may face when accounting for employee benefits.  

! Countdown to IFRS: Managing the practical implications of restating 
non-current assets - 17 June 2010  
Guidance on managing the practical implications of restating  
non-current assets.  

! Countdown to IFRS: Summary paper - 8 June 2010  
A guide for senior managers and members.  

! Countdown to IFRS: Accounting for non-current assets - 17 May 2010  
Introducing international financial reporting standards (IFRS) for 
Accounting for non-current assets.  

! Countdown to IFRS - Checklist for councillors - 17 March 2010 
Councillors checklist - discussing IFRS transition plans with officers.  

! Countdown to IFRS - Identifying and accounting for leases - 17 March 
2010 
Issues arising from the introduction of International Accounting 
Standard (IAS) 17: Leases.  

! Countdown to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) - 19 
February 2010 
Implementation of IFRS in local government.  

Page 109



 

Audit Commission Progress report 26
 
 

! IFRS briefing paper 3 for local government - 4 May 2009 
Managing the transition to IFRS.  

! IFRS briefing paper 2 for local government - 1 September 2007 
The move to international financial reporting standards - how can your 
auditor help?  

! IFRS briefing paper 1 for local government - 1 May 2007 
The move to international financial reporting standards.   

 

Page 110



 

Audit Commission Progress report 27
 
 

Appendix 1  IFRS implementation 

60 In September 2010 we provided a set of graphs showing Wirral's 
progress on IFRS compared to other Councils and identified the key risk 
areas where the Council varied from comparator authorities:  
! leases – Wirral is amongst the 7 per cent of authorities overall that are 

assessed as red (8 per cent metropolitan boroughs and 5 per cent of 
northern authorities); currently being reviewed. 

! Wirral is not ‘on track’ against the project plan – 69 per cent of 
authorities overall are ‘on track’ (67 per cent metropolitan boroughs and 
74 per cent of northern authorities). This may also put at risk future 
milestones such as restating the 2009/10 accounts and drafting a model 
set of skeleton IFRS compliant financial statements; currently not on 
track. 

! the Audit and Risk Management Committee has had no involvement on 
IFRS implementation – 87 per cent of audit committees overall have 
been kept updated and 49 per cent of those and a further 3 per cent 
have also questioned officers on progress (87 per cent metropolitan 
boroughs and 85 per cent of northern authorities); the Committee 
received reports in November 2010 and January 2011. 

Table 5:  IFRS implementation 2010/11 
 

Issue Findings November 2009 Findings July 2010  Findings January 
2011

Governance and 
oversight 

The role of the Audit and 
Risk Management 
Committee in the 
implementation of IFRS 
has been limited. 

The role of the Audit and 
Risk Management 
Committee in the 
implementation of IFRS 
has been limited. 

The Audit and Risk 
Management 
Committee received 
reports in November 
2010 and January 
2011. 

Timetable The Council is not on track 
against its project plan. 

The Council is not on track 
against its project plan. An 
impact assessment has 
been completed but 
opening balances have 
not been restated. Officers 
plan to restate the 2009/10 
accounts and draft a 
model set of skeleton 
IFRS compliant financial 
statements including 
policies and notes before 

The Council is not on 
track against its 
project plan. 

We received restated 
opening balances in 
January and the 
Council is currently 
amending these. We 
expect the 
amendments and the 
remaining IFRS 
statements including 

Page 111



 

Audit Commission Progress report 28
 
 

Issue Findings November 2009 Findings July 2010  Findings January 
2011

the end of December 
2010. 

policies and notes 
before the end of 
March 2011. 

 

Non-current 
assets 

Assessed as 'red'. We assessed the risk as 
'amber'. Concerns remain 
regarding information 
required in respect of 
vehicles plant and 
equipment and 
infrastructure assets. The 
systems need to be set up 
to satisfy component 
accounting. 

We are currently 
reviewing this as part 
of the IFRS 
restatement exercise 

Leases and 
other lease type 
arrangements 

Assessed as 'red'. We assessed the risk as 
'red'. There has been no 
review of leases and other 
lease type arrangements 
to determine the 
appropriate accounting 
treatment for these. 

We are currently 
reviewing this as part 
of the IFRS 
restatement exercise 

Employee 
benefits 

Assessed as 'green' We assessed the risk as 
'amber' Although systems 
are in place, the 2009/10 
accrual for holiday pay has 
not yet been calculated. A 
new payroll and HR 
system is planned. 

We are currently 
reviewing this as part 
of the IFRS 
restatement exercise 

Group accounts Assessed 'green' We assessed the risk as 
'green'. The Council does 
not currently have any 
arrangements that would 
require it to produce group 
accounts. 

We are currently 
reviewing this as part 
of the IFRS 
restatement exercise 

Source: Audit Commission surveys, November 2009, July 2010 and January 2011 

 

 

 

 

Page 112



 

Audit Commission Progress report 29
 
 

Appendix 2  Wirral Council - opinion timetable 

Wirral Council timetable 

61 The timetable is proceeding to plan for some areas. Our work on IFRS 
has been delayed due to non or late receipt of information from the Council. 

Table 6: Agreed timetable for the financial statements audit 

This timetable will be kept up to date and members of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee (ARMC) will be informed of any significant 
changes. 

Activity Date Update at June 2011 

Agreement of plan with 
officers 

Draft by mid 
December 2010 

Final by end 
December 2010 

Completed as planned 

Progress meetings with 
officers pre statements 

Monthly Ongoing as planned 

Training provided by 
officers to ARMC 
members on IFRS 

January 2011 

March 2011 

June 2011 

Reports received 
November 2010 and 
January 2011. Training 
14 July 2011 

Presentation of plans to 
members of ARMC** 

ARMC 17 
January 2011 

Completed as planned 

Audit progress reports to 
ARMC

17 January 2011

28 March 2011 

June 2011

September 2011 

November 2011 

Completed as planned to 
June 2011. 

Receipt of IFRS restated 
accounts by ARMC and 
auditor

! Opening balance 
sheet at 1 April 2009 

! Comparative figures 
for 2009/10 for all the 
statements

31 December 
2010

Mid January 
2011

1st version of restated 
opening balance sheet 
received 14 January 
2011.  

Final versions of 
comparatives, policies 
and disclosures received 
by beginning July 2011. 

 

Working papers for IFRS Mid January Some received in 

Page 113



 

Audit Commission Progress report 30
 
 

Activity Date Update at June 2011 

restatement provided to the 
auditor 

2011 January; some 
outstanding in mid 
August (provided by end 
August). 

Audit of IFRS restated 
accounts 

Mid January to 
mid February 
2011 

Delayed due to non or 
late receipt of all restated 
accounts. Work 
completed end August 
2011. 

Feedback to officers and 
members on the audit of 
the IFRS restated 
accounts

Officers by end 
February 

ARMC 28 March 
2011 - in 
Progress report 

Delayed due to non or 
late receipt of all restated 
accounts. We have 
reported the latest 
position in these progress 
reports throughout the 
process.  

ISA+315 knowledge of the 
entity including 
documenting and walking 
through material information 
systems 

December 2011 - 
January 2011 

Completed as planned 

Evaluating the control 
environment including IT 
controls 

December 2010 - 
January 2011 

Completed as planned 

Controls and relevant early 
substantive testing 

Mid January to 
mid February 
2011 

Delayed - as above due 
to IFRS restatement. 
Some controls testing not 
dependant upon IFRS 
was completed to plan. 

Feedback to officers and 
members of ARMC on the 
pre-statements audit 

Officers by end 
February 

ARMC 28 March 
& 30 June 2011 - 
in Progress 
reports 

Interim report 14 June 
2011. No significant 
issues to bring to 
members' attention 
except for issues 
summarised in report 
above. 

ARMC consider draft 
Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS) 
presented by officers 

ARMC 28 March 
2011 

Complete - was on 
agenda for March 2011. 

Any further early 
substantive testing 

Mid June 2011 Completed to plan 

Page 114



 

Audit Commission Progress report 31
 
 

Activity Date Update at June 2011 

Receipt of pre-audit 
accounts** by: 

! ARMC - to review prior 
to challenge and 
approval at meeting by 
30 June 2011 

! and auditor - to complete 
detailed post-statements 
planning prior to 
fieldwork 

16 June 2011 ARMC are no longer 
required to approve the 
accounts prior to audit 
following the recent 
change in the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 
2011. * 

Auditor to receive 
accounts approved by 
DoF by 30 June 2011. 
Received evening of 4 
July 2011. 

Pensions Committee to 
challenge MPF accounts 
and make 
recommendations to ARMC 

Before ARMC 
meeting (by 30 
June 2011) 

No longer applicable due 
to the change in the 
Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011. * 

ARMC to challenge and 
approve accounts, 
including AGS and 
Pension Fund 
Statements.

By 30 June 2011 No longer applicable due 
to the change in the 
Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011. * 

Working papers provided to 
the auditor 

1 July 2011 Not met - received in 
stages from 7 July  

Start of detailed testing on 
main statements 

4 July 2011 Not met as lack of 
working papers; trial 
balance not received until 
17 August 2011 

Progress meetings with 
officers post-statements 

Weekly Met as planned and 
liaison arrangements 
worked well 

Completion of fieldwork on 
main statements 

5 August 2011 Timetable slipped due to 
later receipt of accounts 
and receipt and standard 
of working papers.  

Receipt of Whole of 
Government Accounts 
(WGA) and working papers 

22 July 2011 Submitted to National 
Audit Office (NAO) on 29 
July 2011 in line with 
revised deadline; 
received for audit 11 
August 2011 in line with 
new arrangements. 
Working papers received 
on 17 August 2011. 

Page 115



 

Audit Commission Progress report 32
 
 

Activity Date Update at June 2011 

Completion of fieldwork on 
WGA 

15 August 2011 ongoing at 12 September 

District Auditor review of 
audit work 

15 August 2011 Delayed. Interim review 
17 August 2011. 

Agreement of errors and 
uncertainties for Finance to 
complete covering reports 
and amend statements** 

19 August 2011 Delayed. Interim errors 
and uncertainties 
communicated 17 August 
2011. 

Draft Annual Governance 
Reports from Audit 
Commission to officers** 

5 September 
2011  

Draft AGR shared on 5 
September and hardcopy 
sent 6 September 2011. 

Meeting with officers to 
agree final AGRs** (AGRs 
will highlight any 
outstanding issues that will 
be updated at meetings with 
members) 

Meetings by 7 
September 2011 

Final AGRs by 
12 September 
2011 

Meetings held on 5 
September with DoF and 
12 September 2011 with 
CE and DoF. 

Final MPF AGR 8 
September 2011 

Final Wirral AGR 13 
September 2011 

Pensions Committee - to 
consider the Pension Fund 
AGR and any action plan, 
any amendments to 
statements and the Letter of 
Representation - to make 
recommendations to ARMC 

Before ARMC 
meeting below 
(by 30 
September 2011)

 

Meeting now confirmed 
for 19 September 2011.  

ARMC to: 

! consider the matters 
raised in the Pension 
Fund AGR and the 
recommendation of the 
Pensions Committee 

! consider the matters 
raised in Wirral 
Council's AGR and any 
tabled or verbal update 
on outstanding issues 

! take note of any 
adjustments to the 
financial statements 
and agree to adjust the 
errors in the financial 
statements

By 30 September 
2011 

Meeting now confirmed 
for 28 September 2011. 

Page 116



 

Audit Commission Progress report 33
 
 

Activity Date Update at June 2011 

management has 
declined to amend or 
set out the reasons for 
not amending the 
errors

! approve the letter of 
representation on 
behalf of the Council 
and for the Pension 
Fund

! agree the Council's 
response to the 
proposed action plans 

! approve the financial 
statements

District Auditor to issue 
opinions** (and value for 
money conclusion) 

Audited accounts published 
by the Council** 

By 30 September 
2011 

On course providing 
amended accounts and 
supporting working 
papers provided by 23 
September 2011. 

WGA return certified and 
submitted by District Auditor 

1 October 2011 

 

Recent revision to 30 
September 2011 
following Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2011. 

On course providing 
amended accounts and 
supporting working 
papers provided by 23 
September 2011. 

Source: Wirral Council Audit Plan 2010/11, January 2011 & update 
Septembere 2011. 
* revised following consultation on the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2010. 

 

Merseyside Pension Fund timetable 

62 The timetable is proceeding to plan for some areas. Our work on IFRS 
has been delayed due to non or late receipt of information from the Council. 

Page 117



 

Audit Commission Progress report 34
 
 

Table 7: Agreed timetable for the financial statements audit 

This timetable will be kept up to date and members of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee (ARMC) will be informed of any significant 
changes. 

Activity Date Update at June 2011 

Agreement of Opinion Plan 
with officers 

Draft by early 
December 2010  

Final by end 
December 2010 

Completed as planned 

Progress meetings - pre 
statements 

Quarterly Completed as planned 

Presentation of Opinion 
Plan to members 

Finance to present covering 
report including explanation 
of the final accounts 
process and the respective 
roles of Pensions and Audit 
and Risk Management 
Committees 

Pensions 
Committee 11 
January 2011 

ARMC 17 
January 2011. 

Completed as planned 

ISA+315 work - 
understanding the entity 

From November 
2010 

Completed on receipt 
of final information 
received in August 
2011 

Pre statements control and 
early substantive testing 

February/March 
2011 

Completed as planned 

Planning of and 
arrangements for IAS19 
assurance work 

March 2011 Completed as planned 

Pre statements testing of 
initial IAS19 assurance 
work and investment 
valuation 

Late May/early 
June 2011 

Completed as 
planned. 

Working papers provided to 
auditors 

Mid June 2011 Will now be presented 
with the pre-audit 
accounts - working 
papers received in 
stages after the 
statements and 
approved accounts. 

Receipt of pre audit 
accounts by Pensions 
Committee, Audit and Risk 

20 June 2011  ARMC are no longer 
required to approve 
nor Pensions 

Page 118



 

Audit Commission Progress report 35
 
 

Activity Date Update at June 2011 

Management Committee 
and auditor 

Committee to consider 
the accounts prior to 
audit following the 
recent change in the 
Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011. * 

Auditor to receive 
accounts approved by 
DoF by 30 June 2011. 
Pensions statements 
received 28 June but 
approved accounts not 
received until 4 July 
2011. 

Pensions Committee to 
challenge accounts and 
make recommendations to 
ARMC 

Before ARMC 
meeting (by 30 
June 2011) 

No longer applicable 
due to the change in 
the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 
2011. * 

ARMC to challenge and 
approve Council accounts, 
including Annual 
Governance Statement and 
Pension Fund Statements. 

By 30 June 2011 

 

No longer applicable 
due to the change in 
the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 
2011. * 

Start of detailed post 
statements testing 

June 2011 Will not be June 2011 
due to later planned 
receipt of accounts 
due to revised 
Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 - 
detailed testing started 
4 July 2011. 

Post statements progress 
meetings 

Weekly Discussions or 
meetings held 

Completion of fieldwork on 
statements 

Mid August 2011 Continuing at 12 
September 

Agreement of Errors and 
Uncertainties 

19 August 2011 Not met due to 
continuing testing - 
meeting 17 August 
discussed progress. 

Draft MPF Annual Report 
provided to auditors 

19 August 2011 Draft received 31 
August 2011 

Draft Annual Governance 5 September Met - draft sent 2 

Page 119



 

Audit Commission Progress report 36
 
 

Activity Date Update at June 2011 

Report from Audit 
Commission to officers 

2011 September 2011 

Meeting with officers to 
agree final AGRs (AGRs 
will highlight any 
outstanding issues that will 
be updated at meetings with 
members) 

Meetings by 7 
September 2011 

Final AGRs to 
officers and 
members by 12 
September 2011 

AGR agreed at 
meeting 5 September 
2011; 

Final AGR sent to 
officers and 
Committees 8 
September 2011 

Final version of Annual 
Report available for audit 
agreement 

16 September 
2011 

Will be delayed due to 
delay in draft. 

Pensions Committee - to 
consider the Pension Fund 
AGR and any action plan, 
any amendments to 
statements and the Letter of 
Representation - to make 
recommendations to ARMC 

Before ARMC 
meeting below 
(by 30 September 
2011) 

 

Meeting now 
confirmed for 19 
September 2011. 

ARMC - to consider Annual 
Governance Report, 
including any verbal update 
on outstanding issues 

By 30 September 
2011 

 

Meeting now 
confirmed for 28 
September 2011. 

Final check of post-audit 
statements and annual 
report 

By 30 September 
2011 

Final amendments not 
yet received 

Issue of opinion by District 
Auditor 

By 30 September 
2011 

On course providing 
amended accounts 
and supporting 
working papers 
provided by 23 
September 2011.  

Source: Merseyside Pension Fund audit plan 2010/11, January 2011. 
* revised following consultation on the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2011. 

 

Page 120



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
28 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

SUBJECT: INSURANCE FUND ANNUAL REPORT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

COUNCILLOR STEVE FOULKES 

 

KEY DECISION? NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a review of the Risk and Insurance activity during 2010/11 

and the plans for 2011/12. It also details the current status of the liability, fire and 
motor claims Insurance Fund and the impact of measures taken to improve the 
management of risk.  The report was presented to the Cabinet on 23 June 2011. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the transfer of £946,654 from the Insurance Fund to General Fund balances 

at 31 March 2011 be noted. 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Officers assessment is that the sum represents the excess over that needed to 

meet losses and its release will not present a risk to the stability of the Insurance 
Fund. 

 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
 Approach to Risk Financing 
 
4.1 Since 1988 the Council has self-insured a significant proportion of legal liability 

both to members of the public and to other organisations for injury or damage to 
property that it may cause in carrying out its business. The Council also self-
insures damage to Council buildings, motor accidents involving Council vehicles, 
damage to equipment, and a range of minor risks. 

 
4.2 Self-funding losses to a certain level is part of the overall Risk Management 

Strategy as it provides a greater incentive to deal with risk more effectively given 
that any reduction in claims directly benefits the Authority. The level of self 
insurance is set with reference to both the availability of a stable long term 
Insurance Fund and with regard to the appetite for risk. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 121



 
4.3 Claims are met from the Insurance Fund with the Fund being maintained through 

annual contributions from all departments. 
 
 Review of Liability Reserves and Provisions 
 
4.4 To help ensure that the Fund is sufficient to meet the cost of liability claims every 

two years a review is undertaken by an external actuary who assesses the amount 
needed to fund anticipated liabilities for previous years. 

 
4.5 The outcome of the formal study carried out in 2010 was reported to Cabinet on 2 

September 2010. With the actions taken to prevent claims arising, progress in 
mitigating / resolving claims and the consequent reduction in potential liabilities 
Cabinet agreed to the release of the £3.4 million surplus from the Insurance Fund 
to General Fund balances. 

 
4.6 In the intervening years a self-evaluation is undertaken as was the case for 

liabilities incurred as at 31 March 2011. The figure required was calculated by 
taking the sum recommended by the actuary for losses as at 31 March 2010 
adjusted for the premium received and losses met by the Fund in 2010/11. 

 
4.7 The self-evaluation indicated that a sum of £7,278,000 was required as at 31 

March 2011 to meet outstanding liabilities:- 
 

Class 
Actual 

Provision 
31/03/11 

Revised 
Provision 
31/03/11 

Difference 
 

 £ £ £ 
Combined Liability 7,878,337 7,278,337 600,000 

 
4.8 The surplus of £600,000 can be returned to the General Fund Balance. 
 
 Review of Other Reserves and Provisions 
 
4.9 The Insurance Fund underwrites a number of other classes of business and holds 

sums in respect of uninsured risks and to pay for risk improvement measures. 
These figures are also reviewed each financial year. 

 
4.10 The 2011 review identified that these elements of the Fund contained £346,654 

above that which was needed to fund claims.  Again as a consequence of actions 
taken to reduce the potential for losses and the continuing improvements in claims 
management, the cost of claims had reduced faster and to a greater degree than 
forecast. 

 
4.11 The surplus of £346,654 in respect of the other sections of the Insurance Fund can 

also be returned to the General Balance. 

Page 122



 
 Insurance and Risk Management 2010/11 
 
4.12 Throughout 2010/11 regular progress reports on Risk and Insurance Management 

were presented to the Audit & Risk Management Committee. 
 
4.13 Improvements reported in claims management in previous years have been 

sustained through the continuing efforts of departments to manage their liability 
risk. Allied to this are the ‘firm but fair’ stance on liability; the continuing active 
involvement in claims handling; and the counter-claims fraud strategy. The claims 
handling and legal services contracts continue to assist in reducing both claims 
numbers and the overall cost to the Council of this area of risk. 

 
4.14 Severe winter weather in 2009/10 and 2010/11 resulted in a sharp increase in the 

number of liability and property claims and a large cluster of Employers Liability 
claims also created a significant workload. 

 
4.15 In association with Zurich Municipal risk ranking surveys were conducted on all 

primary schools, special schools and Early Years Centres.  This programme has 
been of great benefit with each school given an individual report on good practice 
and areas where improvements could be made. 

 
4.16 Consequent to involvement in the Lord Justice Jackson Review during 2010, one 

of my officers was invited by the Ministry of Justice to meet with the Justice 
Minister to represent the views of local authorities in connection with the 
consultation process on proposed reforms to civil litigation funding and costs. The 
issues under consideration have the potential for a negative impact on the 
performance of the liability element of the Insurance Fund. Wirral Council 
maintained a prominent role throughout the consultation process with further 
meetings and discussions taking place and, with the consultation process now 
closed, the outcome is awaited from the Ministry of Justice. 

 
4.17 The Insurance Fund Budget 2011/12 was approved by Cabinet on 25 November 

2010. Cabinet noted the savings to the General Fund of £588,000 and to Schools 
of £285,000. The latter is a consequence of more effective procurement by the 
team and sustained improvements in the claims experience. 

 
4.18 The contract for Insurance Broking and Advice was reported to the Audit & Risk 

Management Committee on 17 January 2011. The annual cost is approximately 
£7,000 lower than for 2009/10. Liverpool City Council has expressed interest in 
joining this contract which was issued on a collaborative basis. 

 
4.19 In relation to partnerships enhanced risk management arrangements were 

introduced to support the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP). Improved processes 
for producing and managing risk registers for individual thematic partnerships and 
for the LSP as a whole were introduced. 

 
4.20 Following the refresh of the Corporate Plan work began with Chief Officers to 

review the Corporate Risk Register. This work continues and a draft version of the 
updated register will be the subject of a report to Cabinet. 

 

Page 123



4.21 Guidance for officers on the inclusion of information on risks and opportunities in 
reports to Members was revised. Regular quality checks on reports presented to 
Cabinet have been undertaken and feedback provided to departments to help 
ensure continuous improvement. 

 
 Insurance and Risk Management 2011/12 
 
4.22 Regular reports on the progress of Insurance and Risk Management will continue 

to be presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee. There will also be 
regular updates on significant risks as part of the quarterly Performance and 
Financial Review reports presented to Cabinet. 

 
4.23 A significant area of work will be improvements to the Risk Management Strategy 

and framework. Some of the tasks listed below relate directly to this initiative and 
the table outlines the principal areas and the target dates for completion. 

 
Task Target Date 
Conduct market-testing exercise for Academy Schools 
insurance 

May 2011 

Support Chief Officers in reviewing Corporate Risks May / June 2011 
Review of funding for insured liabilities May 2011 
Discuss priorities for future risk management with 
Executive Team 

June 2011 

Negotiate annual renewal of Property, Money, Fidelity 
Guarantee & Personal Accident insurance contracts 

June 2011 

Develop risk management training for Members July/August 2011 
Audit of external liability claims handlers’ performance August 2011 
Negotiate annual renewal of Marine Insurance 
contract 

September 2011 

Present the Insurance Fund Budget 2012/13 November 2011 
Review of key departmental risks for 2012/13. March 2012 
Negotiate annual renewal of Liabilities insurance 
contract 

March 2012 

Review Motor, Computer and Engineering insurance 
contracts Option to extend each contract for a further 
2 years. Officers will take a view prior to expiry as to 
whether extensions would represent good value.  

March 2012 

 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
5.1 The release of money from the Insurance Fund could potentially leave it exposed 

in the event of a series of major losses. However, liability is limited by aggregate 
excesses and for some policies the Fund reflects the maximum liability for that risk 
in any one year. In respect of other risks the amount within the Fund is influenced 
by the Risk & Insurance Team understanding of claims patterns and costs. 
Expenditure on major losses would be incurred over several years allowing time to 
supplement funding should it be necessary. 

Page 124



 
5.2 Insurance charges (including those for schools) are calculated six months before 

the start of each financial year. Schools converting to Academy status can no 
longer be covered by the Council insurance arrangements. Uncertainty over which 
schools will convert and the date of conversion presents a risk that the Insurance 
Fund will not recover sufficient premiums to meet claims from schools. This is 
mitigated by ensuring that developments are known as early as possible and by 
using the Fund to help off-set some of the potential shortfall. 

 
5.3 The growing number of Academies does present a potential opportunity for the 

service. The Team has created an insurance facility for Academy schools through 
which insurance would be provided by the insurance market and the Team would 
run procurement exercises, provide support on renewals and claims, and give 
general insurance advice. This enables schools to continue to contract with a 
service they value whilst providing a modest source of income for the Authority. 

 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
6.1. The balance in the Insurance Fund over that needed to meet claims could have 

been retained. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 Secondary Schools have been closely involved in the development of the 

insurance facility for Academy Schools. 
 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
8.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 
 
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

 
9.1 The continuing effective and pro-active approach to managing insured risk is 

reflected in the assessment of the amounts required in the Insurance Fund to meet 
current and future claims. 

 
9.2 During 2010/11 Cabinet agreed to the release of £3.4 million from the Insurance 

Fund to the General Fund balance following the Actuarial Review. The Insurance 
Fund Budget 2011/12 resulted in a reduction in contributions from departments 
and schools of £0.9 million. This Review now seeks Cabinet agreement to the 
transfer of a further £0.9 million from the Fund at the end of the 2010/11 financial 
year. 

 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
10.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report. 

Page 125



 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  
 
12.1 There are no carbon usage implications arising from this report. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are no planning implications. Actions taken as a result of the Risk Ranking 

Surveys will assist with the safety of staff pupils and visitors in schools. 
 
 
FNCE/163/11 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Mike Lane 
  Designation  Risk and Insurance Officer 
  Telephone  (0151) 666 3413 
  Email   mikelane@wirral.gov.uk 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
 
Council Meeting  Date 

Insurance Fund Annual Report - Cabinet 
Insurance Fund Budget 2011/12 - Cabinet 
Insurance Fund Actuarial Review - Cabinet 
Insurance Fund Annual Report - Cabinet 
Insurance fund Budget 2010/11 - Cabinet 
Insurance Fund Annual Report - Cabinet 
Insurance Fund Budget 2009/10 - Cabinet  
Insurance Fund Annual Report - Cabinet 

23 June 2011 
25 November 2010 
2 September 2010 
24 June 2010 
14 January 2010 
25 June 2009 
27 November 2008 
  9 July 2008 

 

Page 126



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
28 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

SUBJECT CORPORATE RISK AND INSURANCE 
MANAGEMENT 

WARD/S AFFECTED ALL 
REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER 

COUNCILLOR STEVE FOULKES 

KEY DECISION NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report details progress made against the objectives for corporate risk and 

insurance management and the anticipated developments in the coming 
months. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Corporate Risk and Insurance Management report be noted. 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Regular update reports are presented to this Committee on the work around 

Risk and Insurance which seek to support the Risk Management Strategy and 
maintain the successful management of the Insurance Fund. 

 
4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
 Insurance Management progress 
 
4.1 The Risk and Insurance Team continues to undertake a role in matters 

relating to the Jackson review of civil litigation. One officer is, by invitation, 
representing the views of self insured local authorities on the principal 
defendant lobbying group which is recognised by the Ministry of Justice as a 
key voice in the debate. This has provided direct access and influence to civil 
servants and key political figures and has shaped the national debate towards 
an acceptance that the cost of litigation to society is unsustainable and has 
led to an apparent political willingness for change. This remains an important 
area of work as the proposed bills and civil rule changes could have long term 
implications for the Insurance Fund and Wirral continues to have direct 
influence at the heart of the debate. 

 
4.2 The liability claims statistics for the quarter ending 30 June 2011 were 

compiled and analysed. The trend for larger numbers of public liability claims 
continues (the rise being attributed to the harsh winter and current economic 
conditions). Between 500 and 600 claims are forecast to be received for 2011. 
Whilst this will be the largest number of claims since 2004/05 efficiencies in 
claims handling mean that costs should remain within budget. 

Agenda Item 13

Page 127



 
4.3 Technically challenging work has continued on large liability losses / historic 

abuse / mesothelioma and other industrial disease claims; vibration related 
claims continue to emanate from the Parks & Countryside Service and claims 
for industrial deafness / noise induced hearing loss in relation to historic 
periods (some going back over 40 years) have maintained an upward trend. 
Claim specifics cannot be provided in this open format report but a 
discontinuance has recently been agreed on a potentially high profile Human 
Rights Act claim. 

 
4.4 Further meetings were held with the insurance brokers JLT Public Sector 

Risks to progress the service plan for 2011/12. 
 
4.5 The Property, Money, Fidelity Guarantee and Personal Accident / Business 

Travel policies were all renewed on 30 June 2011. Actual costs were within 
estimates for most policies. The exception was the Property policy where the 
actual premium exceeded the estimate by 3% because of an increase in 
building cost inflation which had not been forecast when budgets had been 
prepared. 

 
4.6 Revised sums insured were collated in advance of the renewal of the Marine 

insurance policy on 30 September 2011. Terms have been received from 
insurers. As the premium is within the 2011/2 budget the Council brokers 
have been instructed to proceed with renewal. 

 
4.7 Six Academy schools have taken out Service Level Agreements with the Risk 

& Insurance Team for professional advice and support in relation to insurance. 
Insurance packages have been put in place for four of those schools with the 
remaining two to be implemented by 1 October 2011. The project has taken 
up more capacity than anticipated but the lessons learnt will be of assistance 
in respect of future work in this area. Liaison also continues with other schools 
that are considering a move to Academy status. Initial feedback from schools 
using the service is very positive as they are appreciative of the assistance 
provided. Whilst the initial transfer of these schools out of the Insurance Fund 
has a negative impact on the 2011/12 budget, this work is expected to provide 
revenue of up to £5,000 per year for each secondary academy from 2012/13. 

 
4.8 Zurich Municipal was asked to indicate by early September 2011, the level of 

premium and service charge expected in relation to the Engineering and 
Motor insurance contracts. These policies are subject to Long Term 
Agreements which expire on 31 March 2012 but which can be extended for a 
further two years subject to there being no reduction in cover or increase in 
rating. An early indication is necessary to allow sufficient time to comply with 
procurement timescales if remarketing is required. The positive management 
of the motor risk coupled with a reduction in fleet size will justify an 
improvement in the insurance rating and claims handling charges. 

 
 Risk Management Progress 
 
4.9 The Executive Team has considered, and agreed, the current key risks 

relating to the delivery of the Corporate Plan. The Risk & Insurance Team is 
currently working with individual departments to understand how the risks are 
being controlled. 

Page 128



 
4.10 A training session providing Members with an introduction to risk 

management was delivered on 7 September 2011. 
 
4.11 The Risk Ranking Surveys of primary and special schools and early years 

centres was completed in July 2011. Whilst overall feedback was very positive 
a number of areas for general improvement were identified. A report 
summarising the findings has been shared with the Department for Children & 
Young People and should help to inform future investment in schools. 

 
4.12 The Executive Team met on 23 June 2011 to discuss a report on risk 

management arrangements and agreed that improvements were needed to 
help the Authority meet the major internal and external challenges which it 
faces. The Team also indentified the priorities which should influence any 
future corporate approach to risk and uncertainty. This will form part of a 
report to Cabinet on 13 Octover 2011 on the Risk Management Strategy and 
the Management of Risk and Opportunity. 

 
 Insurance Management – Issues for Next Period 
 
4.13  Liability claims statistics for the second quarter of 2011/12 will be compiled. 
 
4.14 The Marine Insurance policy will be renewed. 
 
4.15 If the Long Term Agreements are not extended on the Engineering and Motor 

insurance policies the Risk & Insurance Team will begin the process of a 
competitive tender for these contracts. 

 
4.16 Work with Academy Schools will continue. Individual cover packages will be 

implemented for the schools converting to Academy status on 1 October 2011 
with meetings arranged with schools anticipating conversion at the start of 
2012. 

 
4.17 The Insurance Fund budget for 2012/13 should be prepared and reported to 

Cabinet on 24 November 2011. 
 
 Risk Management – Issues for Next Period 
 
4.18 The risk information supporting the Corporate Finance and Performance 

Review will be updated and included in the end of September review for 
Cabinet and detailed in the supporting Risk Monitoring Summary. 

 
4.19 Should Cabinet approve the proposal to develop a new corporate approach to 

the management of risk and uncertainty the Risk & Insurance Team will begin 
the process to develop a detailed project plan and conduct an analysis of the 
gaps between existing framework and processes and current best practice. 

 
4.20 The revised list of key strategic risks to the delivery of the Corporate Plan will 

be analysed and an initial review conducted by the Executive Team as these 
will form the revised Corporate Risk Register for consideration by Cabinet. 

Page 129



 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
5.1 No decisions are required in relation to this report. As such there are no risks 

or opportunities to report. 
 
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
6.1 These are not applicable in respect of this monitoring report. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 No specific consultation has been undertaken with regard to this report. 
 
8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
8.1 Guidance for voluntary groups assists them in understanding whether they 

need to procure liability insurance in their own name. 
 
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The Academy Schools initiative undertaken by the Risk & Insurance Team 

has the potential to generate income to offset insurance administration costs.  
 
9.2 There are no staffing implications arising directly from this report. 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
FNCE/206/11 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Mike Lane 
  Risk & Insurance Officer 
  telephone:  0151 666 3413 
  email:   mikelane@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 130



 
REFERENCE MATERIAL / SUBJECT HISTORY 
 
Council Meeting  Date 
An update report is presented to each meeting of the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee 

 

 

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



 
WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
28 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 
SUBJECT: FRAUD PREVENTION 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

COUNCILLOR ADRIAN JONES 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
 
 
1.0. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. Corporate fraud is a crime that is increasing in both the public and private 

sectors.  In Local Government it is becoming more complex as a result of 
business transformation and the extended use of partnerships, outsourcing 
and new technologies. 

 
1.2. This report covers fraud prevention in the Council and identifies the roles of 

the various teams in pursuit of this aim. 
 
2.0. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1. That the report be noted. 
 
3.0. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1. To ensure Members are aware of actions being taken to prevent fraud. 
 
3.2. Cabinet on 14 April 2011 requested this report on fraud prevention which 

was presented to Cabinet on 21 July 2011. 
 
4.0. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1. Internal Audit 
 
4.1.1. In compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations and operating to 

standards set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government, the Internal Audit Section gives assurance on the adequacy of 
internal controls operating across the Council and provides advice to 
management where control weaknesses are identified. This fundamental role 
of Internal Audit serves to counter fraud in a general sense.  Work 
undertaken is directly concerned with targeting fraud and ensuring that the 
Council is in the best possible position to deter would be fraudsters. 

Agenda Item 14

Page 133



 
4.1.2 One such targeted exercise was a review of counter fraud arrangements 

across the Council. This review was undertaken in line with the CIPFA 
publication, ‘Managing the Risk of Fraud-Actions to Counter Fraud and 
Corruption’ which was published in October 2008, produced by the CIPFA 
Better Governance Forum Counter Fraud Advisory Panel.  It is aligned to the 
National Fraud Strategic Authority and NHS Performance Indicators, and is 
recommended by organisations such as ALARM and the Institute of Internal 
Auditors.  

 
4.1.3 The review resulted in the production of a report and action plan. An update 

report in respect of the review findings was presented to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee on 18 January 2010. The report recognised the 
value of the Council having Codes of Practice for Members and employees 
and corporate policies on Whistle-blowing, Anti-Fraud and Corruption, 
Money Laundering, Benefits Investigations, Pre-employment Screening and 
Gifts and Hospitality.  Areas of good practice were also recognised in areas 
such as Insurance claim processing, Housing Benefit Fraud Investigations, 
and participation in the National Fraud Initiative. 

 
4.1.4 The review did however identify a number of improvements which could be 

made to the counter fraud arrangements and as a consequence a remit for a 
specialist Internal Audit Counter Fraud Team was drawn up to implement 
these changes.  

 
4.1.5 The Counter Fraud Team co-ordinates all fraud related matters and acts as 

the first point of contact for all such matters for officers within the Council and 
external agencies such as the Audit Commission. The role as co-ordinator of 
fraud related matters  enables the Team to monitor fraudulent acts and 
identify trends and possible emerging control weaknesses and communicate 
these promptly to all employees, for example through issuing warnings on 
the Intranet.  

 
4.1.6 The Internal Audit Counter Fraud Team has been instrumental in the 

updating or introduction of key policies aimed at fighting fraud. For example: 
 

• the Anti-Fraud Policy has been redrafted to reflect a zero tolerance to 
fraud and a commitment to reducing losses: This was approved by the 
Cabinet on 15 April 2010 

• the Anti-Money Laundering Policy has been updated and approved by 
the Cabinet on 2 June 2011. Understanding of money laundering by 
key frontline employees has been tested and specialist training is 
planned for those needing further instruction  

• An Anti-Bribery Policy has been prepared in line with CIPFA guidelines 
and approved by the Cabinet on 2 June 2011.  It has been promoted to 
all employees through the Council intranet.  

Page 134



4.1.7 That part of the Internal Audit plan which refers to fraud includes tasks to 
cover:- 

 
• Creating a counter fraud culture,  
• Preventing Fraud and  
• Detecting Fraud.  

 
 Examples of tasks include the development and delivery of Staff Fraud 

Awareness Training (summer 2011); pro-active fraud detection work utilising 
specialist interrogation software and the audit of systems traditionally 
vulnerable to potential fraud (expenses, credit cards, mobile telephones, 
advertising hoardings.) A corporate fraud hotline has recently been set up 
and this will be promoted through the intranet, the One Brief, One Council 
magazine and online training. 

 
4.1.8  The Counter Fraud Team also has a key role in investigating large value or 

complex frauds and providing advice to other Investigating Officers involved 
in disciplinary investigations. Two of the Counter Fraud Team have 
successfully completed the CIPFA Certificate in Investigation Practice. As a 
result, investigations undertaken and advice given comply with best practice 
as set out in European and UK legislation and adopt professional advanced 
interviewing techniques. This professionalism provides for the best possible 
outcome for the Council, should any case end up in court. 

 
4.1.9  The fraud threat is ever changing and the restructuring of Council 

departments provides opportunities for controls to be weakened or key roles 
to disappear. To address this possibility the counter fraud arrangements will 
be reviewed during 2011/12 using the ‘Fraud Risk Evaluation Diagnostic’ 
(FRED) which builds on the successful Red Book and puts it into an 
electronic format. FRED presents opportunities to compare Wirral 
procedures against best practice in other Local Authorities. 

 
4.2 National Fraud Initiative 
 
4.2.1. The Audit Commission requires all local authorities to participate in the 

biennial National Fraud Initiative (NFI), which is a national exercise which 
uses computer assisted audit techniques, and specifically data matching, to 
identify potential fraud. The NFI has identified a significant number of 
matches (20,325 in 2008 and 23,832 to date for the 2010 exercise) which 
must then be investigated by officers of the Council.  

 
4.2.2. NFI exercises have resulted in significant savings to the Council, arising 

largely from payments recovered or stopped where the Council had made 
payments in error. After the investigation of the matches the 2008 exercise 
resulted in the identification of 84 frauds and 547 errors with a total value of 
£328,963. As the key contact within the Council the Deputy Chief Internal 
Auditor plays a vital role in managing the NFI exercise, liaising with contacts 
across the Council both before the submission of data and during the 
investigation of data matches.  By maintaining contact with responsible 
officers across the Council, the Deputy Chief Internal Auditor is able to 
monitor progress in investigating potential frauds which informs regular 
updates to the Finance Department Management Team.  This ensures that 
those responsible for investigating data matches have an incentive to act. 

Page 135



 
4.2.3 While the NFI exercise has proved valuable it does reflect only a snapshot of 

matches at a given point in time, albeit across a broader range of match data 
than would be available to the Council through any other means. Additional in 
house initiatives seek to extend the interrogation of data, in an attempt to 
detect fraud, to include more frequent “snapshots” Such initiatives include the 
use of IDEA software by Internal Audit to interrogate financial and other 
databases and in house data matching exercises in the Housing Benefit 
Fraud Team. In 2010 an internal audit data matching exercise resulted in the 
identification of £ 30,000 of duplicate payments for the Council to reclaim.  
 There were 36 HB cases identified through internal proactive exercises which 
included the matching of Housing Benefit data to other data held by the 
Council. 

 
4.3     Risk Management and Fraud Prevention 
 
4.3.1 The Risk and Insurance Team review all risk registers created in respect of 

departmental plans.  All risks are considered in relation to their effect on the 
Council objectives. Fraud is primarily considered to be an operational risk, 
whose impact is for the most part financial (i.e. it results in a loss of financial 
resources). The Team attempts to encourage Council departments to 
consider risk in a broad, but structured, way. One of the tools used is the 
guidance which is produced and distributed in relation to the identification, 
analysis and recording of risks to the delivery of departmental and divisional 
plans. The guidance contains a number of Risk Categories which are 
designed to give structure to the identification process. These are also 
contained in the Corporate Risk Management Strategy. Each category gives 
examples of the type of risk which would fall into it.  Fraud is specifically 
mentioned.  The Risk Management Team meets regularly with the Corporate 
Planning, Engagement and Communication Team to discuss potential 
improvements to the risk management framework. There are a number of 
points arising from the most recent set of departmental plans which include 
the need to maintain a focus on operational risks such as fraud. 

 
4.4 Insurance Fraud Prevention 
 
4.4.1  The zero tolerance to insurance fraud is promoted through pamphlets which 

encourage members of the public to report any suspicions about Insurance 
Fraud through the Insurance Fraud Hotline. Participation is encouraged 
through the offering of a reward for information leading to a conviction. The 
hotline has resulted in a number of reports since its introduction. 

 
4.4.2 Use of the Claims Underwriters Exchange (CUEpi) by Wirral’s partner 

agencies (solicitors and insurers) also maximises the probability that any 
attempt to make a fraudulent insurance claim against the Council is picked up 
at the earliest possible stage. 

 

Page 136



4.5. Housing Benefits 
 
4.5.1. Housing Benefits claims administration is prescribed by legislation and robust 

evidence and information verification procedures exist to secure the gateway 
to Benefit and minimise the opportunity for fraud and error. Working 
procedures are based upon the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
‘verification framework’ which helps to ensure that we are paying the right 
benefit to the right people.  We also operate a review programme based on 
risk, concentrating on the groups which, through analysis, are most likely to 
have an incorrect benefit entitlement.  This process includes direct access to 
the DWP Customer Information System (CIS).  Claims are not put into 
payment until the framework requirements are satisfied.  The quality 
assurance process requires that a sample of claims is checked with the 
outcome submitted on a quarterly basis to the DWP – Wirral’s accuracy rate is 
currently 96%.  Risk based intervention or reviews can be either postal or 
through a visit to the claimants home.  If a claimant does not co-operate with a 
review the claim is suspended. 

 
4.5.2 A significant number of Housing Benefit(HB) fraud referrals are received by 

the HB Fraud Investigation Team. Over the past four years the number has 
consistently been in excess of 1500 ranging from 1594 in 2007/08 and 
peaking at 2178 in 2009/10. In 2010/11 the number of referrals was 
1859.There is a dedicated investigation team which conducts joint working as 
necessary with other agencies such as DWP.   The work is both proactive and 
reactive:  Proactive is essentially intelligence work i.e. action prompted 
through data matches such as NFI/HBMS (Housing Benefit Matching Service) 
and local initiatives.  Reactive is in response to allegations of fraud, fraud 
referrals whether raised internally or externally, or anonymously by way of the 
fraud hotline or via e-mail. In 2010/11, 64 referrals were received via the fraud 
hotline and 31 via e-mail.  

 
4.5.3 Other proactive measures to maximise the detection of Housing Benefit 

frauds include annual HB fraud awareness training for all Revenues Benefits 
and Customer Services staff and the dissemination of useful information in 
relation to fraud alerts via the weekly internal bulletin. The Division also has 
an agreed protocol for the sharing of information with Merseyside Police. Data 
analysis of case load, demographics and potential hotspots is also undertaken 
every two years as a means of identifying potentially fraudulent claimants. 

 
4.5.4 Where fraud is identified the options are that the claimant be prosecuted, 

receive and administrative penalty (under which the claimant pays 30% of the 
total amount overpaid on top of repaying the amount over claimed), or receive 
a formal caution. Between 2002/03 and 2010/11 the investigation of 
fraudulent Housing Benefit claims resulted in 161 prosecutions, the issuing of 
465 cautions and 247 administrative penalties.  

Page 137



 
4.6 Council Tax 
 
4.6.1 The National Fraud Initiative provides leads about potential Council Tax fraud 

which are then investigated by the Council Tax Section. The current exercise 
which looks at Single Person Discounts has identified 97 frauds and 425 
errors to date with a total value of £91,500 

 
4.6.2 An additional in house exercise was undertaken prior to the latest NFI 

exercise. The in-house exercise resulted in a large reduction in Single Person 
Discounts from 57,606 to 54,910 a reduction of 2,696 producing savings of 
£767,000.  
 

4.6.3 The Council Tax Section is constantly evaluating new methods of Single 
Person Discount verification. 

 
5.0. RELEVANT RISKS 
 
5.1. The Council is not adequately protected against corporate fraud and 

corruption. 
 
6.0. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
6.1. No other options considered. 
 
7.0. CONSULTATION 
 
7.1. Relevant Sections of the Finance Department have been consulted in 

preparing this report. 
 
8.0. IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
8.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS 
 
9.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
11.0. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0. CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1. There are none arising from this report. 

Page 138



 
13.0. PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: David Garry 
  Chief Internal Auditor 
  telephone:  (0151 666 3525) 
  email:  davegarry@wirral.gov.uk 
 
FNCE/166/11 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
None 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 
CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 
CIPFA Managing the Risk of Fraud – Actions to Counter Fraud and Corruption 
CIPFA ‘Fraud Risk Evaluation Diagnostic’ 
Audit Commission ‘Protecting the Public Purse’ 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
 
Council Meeting  Dates 

Cabinet (Anti-Money Laundering Policy) 22 May 2008 

Cabinet  (Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy) 15 April 2010 

Audit and Risk Management Committee (Protecting the 
Public Purse) 

17 January 2011 

Cabinet (Bribery Act and Anti-Money Laundering 
Policy) 

2 June 2011 

Cabinet (Fraud Prevention) 21 July 2011 
 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
  

28 SEPTEMBER 2011  

 

(SUBJECT: REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY 
POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) 
 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: THE DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET 
MANAGEMENT 
 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

GEORGE DAVIES 

 

KEY DECISION?   NO  
 
1.0 SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report summarises the use of covert surveillance by the Council between  

1 June 2011 and 1 September 2011.  
 
1.2 This report was requested in the work plan for the Committee. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

 That members note the contents of the report on the use of covert 
surveillance. 

 
3.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
  

The Home Office Code of Practice on covert surveillance requires every 
Council to report quarterly on its use of RIPA.  

 

4.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) governs how public 

bodies use surveillance methods:  The Council may use covert surveillance 
for the purpose of preventing or detecting crime or preventing disorder. 

 
4.2 The origin of RIPA lies in the Human Rights Act 1998 which places 

restrictions on the extent to which public bodies may interfere with a person’s 
right to respect for his or her home and private life and correspondence 
during the course of an investigation into suspected criminal activities.  The 
provisions of RIPA ensure (in summary) that any such interferences are in 
accordance with the law and are necessary and proportionate (i.e. the 
seriousness of the suspected crime or disorder must outweigh any possible 
interferences with the personal privacy of the persons being investigated and 
of persons who associate with them). 

Agenda Item 15

Page 141



 
4.3 The Council’s Constitution authorises Directors to designate Heads of Service 

and Service Managers to authorise the use of covert surveillance in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed by RIPA. 

 
4.4 The Office of Surveillance Commissioners (OSC) is responsible for 

overseeing the operation of RIPA.  The OSC inspected the Council on 1 July 
2009.  The outcome of that inspection was reported to the Committee on 23 
September 2009.  The Committee approved amendments to the Council’s 
Policy and Guidance Document made in response to the Report. 

 
4.5 New Codes of Practice on covert surveillance have been published by the 

Home Office.  As from 1 April 2010 every Council should report quarterly to its 
Audit and Risk Management Committee on its use of RIPA.  The last such 
report was made to the Committee on 30 June 2011. 

 
5.0 THE USE OF RIPA BY THE COUNCIL 
 
5.1 Between 1 June 2011 and 1 September 2011 the Council granted 7 

authorisations for covert surveillance. 
 
5.2 Two authorisations were granted to obtain evidence of serious offences of fly-

tipping at sites in the Borough where this offence has become a public 
nuisance.  One has led to a prosecution. 

 
5.3 Five authorisations were granted to obtain evidence of alleged anti-social 

behaviour.  One authorisation has provided evidence for possession 
proceedings and three authorisations are current (at the time of writing this 
report).  Anti-social behaviour has included alleged racial harassment, 
intimidation, the lighting of fires in derelict property, criminal damage, drunken 
and abusive behaviour and the playing of loud music. 

 
6.0 CHANGES IN LEGISLATION 
 
6.1 In July 2010 the Home Secretary announced a review focusing on which 

security powers could be scaled back in order to restore the balance of civil 
liberties, including the use of RIPA by local authorities. The review was 
overseen by Lord MacDonald QC. The Local Government Association 
provided considerable evidence showing how evidence obtained through 
proper use of RIPA helped local authorities support communities. 

 
6.2 On the 26 January 2011 the Home Office published its review and made the 

following recommendations concerning local authorities; 
 

• Magistrate's approval should be required for local authority use of RIPA 
and should be in addition to the authorisation needed from a senior officer 
and the more general oversight by elected councillors. 

 
• Use of RIPA to authorise directed surveillance should be confined to 

cases where the offence under investigation carries a maximum custodial 
sentence of six months or more. But because of the importance of 
directed surveillance in corroborating investigations into underage sales of 
alcohol and tobacco, the Government should not seek to apply the 
threshold in these cases. Page 142



 
6.3 The above proposals have been incorporated in the draft legislation and are 

expected to be enacted in a year’s time. 
 
6.4 If the Bill becomes law, it will become more difficult to obtain evidence of anti 

social behaviour.  Persistent acts of disorder and nuisance will not pass the 
threshold.  Witnesses will be more reluctant to give evidence if the outcome of 
the case is less certain because the evidence of covert surveillance is no 
longer available to prove they are telling the truth.  They will fear retaliation.  
The change in the law will protect the right to privacy of suspected 
perpetrators of anti-social behaviour which will be regarded as a higher 
priority than the right of their victims to live peacefully and without fear. 

 
6.5 Evidence obtained by authorised cover surveillance has been used to support 

civil proceedings for anti-social behaviour, and in prosecutions for fly-tipping, 
underage sales of tobacco, and of counterfeit goods.  It is a valuable resource 
for a local authority provided proper safeguards are in place to prevent its 
abuse. 

 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
  

Less effective prosecution of instances of anti social behaviour. 
 

8.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
  

The Council has to accept the will of Parliament. 
 
9.0 CONSULTATION    
  

None 
 
10.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
  

None 
 
11.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  
 
 None at present. 
 
12.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
12.1 The current review of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act will require 

the Council to review its procedures for authorising directed surveillance, 
access to communications data and the use of covert human intelligence 
sources. 

 
12.2 Training on the proposed new legislation was delivered on 7 June 2011 by 

Ibrahim Hasan (an acknowledged expert in the field) to Authorising and 
Applying Officers. 

 
12.3 Pending the implementation of the proposed new legislation the Council’s 

current policy on the use of RIPA still applies. 
 

Page 143



 
13.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Any directed surveillance used will be authorised and conducted in 

accordance with the requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act, including any new requirements concerning approval by a magistrate.  

 
14.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  
 
 None 
 
15.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 See paragraph 6. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Bill Norman 
  Director of Law, HR and Asset Management 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
Council Meeting  Date 

Reports to the Audit & Risk Management 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
Report to the Cabinet 
 

23 September 2009 
30 June 2010 
28 September 2010 
22 November 2010 
28 March 2011 
30 June 2011 
 
26 November 2010 

 

Page 144



Agenda Item 18

Page 145

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Audit Commission - Merseyside Pension Fund Annual Governance Report
	6 Audit Commission - Annual Governance Report
	Mike Thomas Letter to Councillor Crabtree 12 Sep 2011

	8 Budget Projections 2012/2015
	10 Audit Commission - Progress Report
	12 Insurance Fund Annual Report
	13 Corporate Risk and Insurance  Management
	14 Fraud Prevention
	15 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA)  - Quarterly Update
	18 Care Homes - Contingency Planning

